THE PROJECT FOR IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION

IN

THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

FINAL REPORT

AUGUST 2017

JAPAN INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION AGENCY INTERNATIONAL METEOROLOGICAL CONSULTANT INC. JAPAN WEATHER ASSOCIATION

GE
JR
17-096

Table of Contents

List of Figures
List of Tables
List of Abbreviations
Exchange Rates of Currency assigned by JICA

1.	Outline of the Project (Background, Objectives and Circumstances)1				
1-1	Background of the Project1				
1-2	Meteorological Disasters in Sri Lanka	2			
1-3	Negative Impact on the Development of the Sri Lankan Economy	3			
1-4	Cooperation between Sri Lanka and Japan	5			
1-5	Objective of the Project	6			
2.	Actual Inputs	9			
2-1	Dispatch of JICA Expert	9			
2	2-1-1 Expert Dispatch Schedule	13			
2	2-1-2 Flowchart	14			
2	2-1-3 Work Schedule	15			
2-2	Provision of Equipment	16			
2-3	List of the Project Documents	22			
2-4	List of the Project Outputs	22			
2-5	Counterpart Trainings in Japan	27			
2-6	Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)	36			
3.	Actual Activities done under the Project and Outputs	45			
4.	4. Records of the Trainings conducted in Sri Lanka under the Project				
5.	5. Issues, Ideas and Lessons Learned During Project Implementation				
6.	6. Project Achievement				
7.	Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal	143			
8.	Recommendations for further contribution for mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM	147			
9.	Comments of the Consultant Team Leader on the Strategic Direction of Further Cooperation with the DOM.	150			

10. Records of the Joint Coordinating Committee and the Seminar	154
---	-----

Annexes

- 1. Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)
- 2. Flowchart
- 3. Work Schedule
- 4. Expert Dispatch Schedule
- 5. Counterpart Trainings in Japan
- 6. Provision of Equipment
- 7. Minutes of Meeting for the Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)
- 8. Major Project Outputs
- 9. Predictors of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka (DOM WRF)
- 10. Pictures of the Project Activities
- 11. Project Brief Notes

List of Figures

Figure 1	Deaths and Injured by Flood for 30 years (1985-2014) 1			
Figure 2	Annual Mean Precipitation Distribution			
Figure 3	Meteorological Disaster Calendar in Sri Lanka			
Figure 4	Meteorological Disaster, Number of Affected People by Disaster and			
	GDP Growth Rate (1990-2015)	5		
Figure 5	Location Map of 38 Meteorological Stations established by the Japan's Grant Aid +			
	Head Office of the Department of Meteorology	6		
Figure 6	Flowchart of Fundamental Policy	45		
Figure 7	Organization Structure of Ministry of Disaster	46		
Figure 8	Processes up to the Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments	51		
Figure 9	Route of the Traceability of Barometers in DOM	52		
Figure 10	Advantages of Common Earth	58		
Figure 11	Upper-Air Observation Sites			
Figure 12	Definition of Routing Path and Quick Fault Detection & Switching Alternative Path	65		
Figure 13	System Network Configuration Diagram	66		
Figure 14	Operation Flow Chart for the Transition from VSAT to IP-VPN	67		
Figure 15	Replacement of the existing GTS Message Switch System	69		
Figure 16	Production Procedures of Weather Forecast Guidance	73		
Figure 17	Monsoon Season of Sri Lanka			
Figure 18	5 points of Sea Surface Temperature (SST) up to 9 months ahead of			
	the NOAA Climate Forecasting System	86		
Figure 19	Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Heavy Rain])	104		
Figure 20	Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Strong Wind])	107		
Figure 21	Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Lightning])	110		
Figure 22	Flow Chart of Validation	111		
Figure 23	Validation Result for Prospective W/A Criteria of Heavy Rainfall	111		
Figure 24	Validation Result for Prospective W/A Criteria of Strong Wind	112		

Figure 25	Output (Advisory/Warning Signs)	113
Figure 26	Improved Advisory/Warning Bulletin	113
Figure 27	Existing and New DOM Websites	120
Figure 28	Status of the Number of new DOM Website	122
Figure 29	Storyboard of Disaster Awareness Cartoons	122
Figure 30	Flow of Disaster Awareness Animation Production	122
Figure 31	5 Characters of Disaster Awareness Animation	123
Figure 32	A Link Banner to Access the Animated Cartoon Site	123
Figure 33	Cloud Types for Observers in Sri Lanka	127
Figure 34	Issuance of Meteorological Forecasts & Warnings and Collaboration with Disaster Prevention	
	Related Organizations to be Strengthened	143

List of Tables

Table 1	Meteorological Disasters in Sri Lanka during 2003-Middle of 2016	
	(Number of Killed or Missing Person: Over 10)	3
Table 2	Dispatch of JICA Expert (Consultant Team)	9
Table 3	Dispatch of JICA Expert (Long Term Expert)	10
Table 4	Dispatch of JICA Expert (Short Term Expert)	11
Table 5	List of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by Consultant Team)	16
Table 6	Lists of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by Long Term Expert)	19
Table 7	Lists of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by JICA)	21
Table 8	List of Project Documents	22
Table 9	List of Project Outputs (Consultant Team)	22
Table 10	List of Project Outputs (the Long-term Expert and the Short-term Experts)	25
Table 11	Summary of the First Training	27
Table 12	First Training Schedule	28
Table 13	Summary of the Second Training	29
Table 14	Second Training Schedule	29
Table 15	Summary of the 1st C/P Training Program	31
Table 16	Schedule of the 1st Training	32
Table 17	Summary of the 2nd C/P Training Program	33
Table 18	Schedule of the 2nd Training	34
Table 19	Number of Failures of the Equipment due to Lightning	58
Table 20	Training: Maintenance and Calibration of Meteorological Observation Equipment	61
Table 21	Remarks on "Output 1"	63
Table 22	Training: Data Transmitting and Receiving Capacity	70
Table 23	Remarks on "Output 2"	71
Table 24	Methods for Production of Weather Forecast Guidance	75
Table 25	Comparison of "Correlation Coefficient" and "Intercept" between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy	76

Table 26	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (one throughout the year)	77
Table 27	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (one throughout the year)	77
Table 28	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	78
Table 29	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)	78
Table 30	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	78
Table 31	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)	
	Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)	78
Table 32	Comparisons among Data of the Observation, the DOM WRF and the Weather Forecast Guidance	79
Table 33	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)	
	Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Puttalam (4 Monsoon Seasons)	81
Table 34	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)	
	Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pottuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)	81
Table 35	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)	
	Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Puttalam (4 Monsoon Seasons)	81
Table 36	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)	
	Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pottuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)	81
Table 37	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast	
	Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	83
Table 38	Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast	
	Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)	83
Table 39	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast	
	Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	83
Table 40	Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast	
	Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)	83
Table 41	Training: Weather Guidance	93

Table 42	Voluntary lectures by Japanese meteorological researcher		
Table 43	Remarks on "Output 3"		
Table 44	Training: Warning Elaboration	114	
Table 45	Remarks on "Output 4"	116	
Table 46	Number of Accesses of New DOM Website	121	
Table 47	Records of Open Class	124	
Table 48	Training: Weather Information Dissemination		
Table 49	Remarks on "Output 5"	132	
Table 50	Records of the Trainings conducted in Sri Lanka under the Project	134	
Table 51	Challenges, Efforts and the Lessons Learned from the Implementation of the Project .	135	
Table 52	Issues, Ideas and Lessons Learned During Project Implementation	136	
Table 53	Project Achievement	140	
Table 54	Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal	147	
Table 55	Expected Technical Cooperation to be required for the DOM		
Table 56	Records of the Joint Coordinating Committee	153	
Table 57	Program on the Seminar "Next Generation Weather Services focusing on Rainfall		
	Disaster Mitigation in Sri Lanka"	154	

List of Abbreviations

AWS : Automatic Weather System **BUFR** : Binary Universal Form for the Representation of meteorological data CAPE : Convective Available Potential Energy CFS : Climate Forecast System C/P : Counterpart COMS : Communication, Ocean and Meteorological Satellite of Korea CRED : Centre for Research on the Epidemiology of Disasters DMC : Disaster Management Centre DOM : Department of Meteorology **EM-DAT** : Emergency Events Database : File Transfer Protocol FTP GDP : Gross Domestic Product GFS : Global Forecast System : Grid Point Vale GPV GTS : Global Telecommunication System ICTA : Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka IEC : International Electrotechnical Commission ISO : International Organization for Standardization IMF : International Monetary Fund IP-VPN : Internet Protocol Virtual Private Network JCC : Joint Coordinating Committee JICA : Japan International Cooperation Agency JMA : Japan Meteorological Agency MOS : Model Output Statistics MSS : Message Switching System

NOAA	:	National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration
NWP	:	Numerical Weather Prediction
OFDA	:	Office of U.S. Foreign Disaster Assistance
PDM	:	Project Design Matrix
RMSE	:	Root Mean Square Error
ROD	:	Record of Discussions
SADIS	:	Secure Aviation Data Information Service
SATAID	:	Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis
SMS	:	Short Message Service
SSI	:	Showalter Stability Index
VSAT	:	Very Small Aperture Terminal
WAFS	:	World Area Forecast System
WHO	:	World Health Organization
WIS	:	WMO Information System
WMO	:	World Meteorological Organization
WRF	:	Weather Research and Forecast

Month	Japanese Yen/ 1US\$	Japanese Yen/ 1 Sri Lanka Rupee		
FY2014				
9	98.04	0.736		
10	98.29	0.752		
11	98.25	0.750		
12	102.19	0.779		
1	104.71	0.801		
2	102.46	0.784		
3	102.20	0.780		
FY2015				
4	102.82	0.787		
5	102.58	0.786		
6	101.68	0.780		
7	103.41	0.780		
8	102.39	0.787		
9	103.77	0.797		
10	109.45	0.843		
11	109.06	0.834		
12	117.58	0.897		
1	120.48	0.918		
2	117.93	0.909		
3	119.03	0.916		

Month	Japanese Yen/ 1US\$	Japanese Yen/ 1 Sri Lanka Rupee						
FY2016								
4	113.393000	0.787000						
5	111.099000	0.775400						
6	110.333000	0.748300						
7	102.280000	0.707200						
8	105.440000	0.738100						
9	102.129000	0.713200						
10	100.606000	0.700300						
11	104.758000	0.728000						
12	112.305000	0.774700						
1	117.382000	0.801930						
2	115.144000	0.783560						
3	112.217000	0.749110						
FY22017								
4	111.083000	0.737240						
5	111.313000	0.740410						
6	111.326000	0.734260						
7	112.185000	0.741120						

Source: JICA Website http://www.jica.go.jp/announce/manual/form/consul_g/rate.html

1. Outline of the Project (Background, Objectives and Circumstances)

1-1 Background of the Project

The Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka (hereinafter referred to as Sri Lanka) is suffering annually from floods and landslides caused by torrential rains. The torrential rain that occurred in May 2003 caused serious floods and landslides inflicting damage to about 140,000 households and resulted to the loss of 235 lives. Property damage amounted to about 56 million U.S. dollars which is equivalent to 0.3% of the country's GDP. Furthermore, there were 38 recorded cases of floods and landslides in 2006. In both 2008 and 2011, large-scale and devastating occurrences of flooding happened 3 times for each year. In the past 20 years (1996-2015), more than 66% of the total population of 20.35 million (2012) people, which is approximately 13.5 million people, are reported to have been affected by major disasters caused by hazardous meteorological phenomena. It is, therefore, an urgent task for Sri Lanka to mitigate the



Figure 1: Deaths and Injured by Flood for 30 years (1985-2014) Source: The United Nations Secretariat for International Strategy for Disaster Reduction (UNISDR)

damages and untoward consequences caused by meteorological disasters associated with torrential rains.

While most of the northern areas are composed of flat lands, there lie mountains as high as 2,000 meters in the southern areas, represented by the Pidurutalagala (2,524m) in the central southern area, the highest peak in Sri Lanka. Rivers flow into the sea radially from the central highland. The upper basins of those rivers are precipitous and the middle and lower basins are extremely gradual. Therefore, landslides frequently occur in the upper basins where numerous waterfalls and rapid flows are formed on the steep slopes and cliffs. On the other hand, the middle and lower basins are easily flooded in case of heavy rain since the river waters flow too slowly to be drained smoothly into the sea.





Source: The United Nations Secretariat for International Strategy for Disaster Reduction (UNISDR) The rainfall in Sri Lanka is greatly influenced by its topography. The figure located on the right side presents the annual average precipitation distribution in Sri Lanka. Since the Southwest Monsoon (from May to September) blows in the southwestern slope of the mountains ranging in the southern part of Sri Lanka, there is a great deal of precipitation in the area. The annual mean precipitation is more than 3,000mm and there is even an area in the country where it reaches 5,000 mm. In addition, the amount of precipitation in the eastern part of Sri Lanka increases due to the Northeast Monsoon (from December to February) wherein the annual mean precipitation is more than 2,000mm. The rain distribution in Sri Lanka greatly changes by the direction where a monsoon blows in the Central Highlands and local heavy rains may occur due to the influence of the country's topography.

1-2 Meteorological Disasters in Sri Lanka

As shown in the figure on the right, various meteorological disasters Sri Lanka occur in throughout the year. The areas where these disasters happen are different seasonally and locally due to the topographic features of the country. Therefore, a timely and quantitative observation network which covers the entire country is



Source: Disaster Information Management System, Sri Lanka

essential in order to monitor disaster occurrence.

In Sri Lanka, the meteorological disasters which bring about massive damages to the people and economy are floods or landslides caused by heavy rains which are attributed to monsoons or tropical cyclones. A significant disaster killing more than 10 people has happened almost every year since 2006 and the frequency of its occurrence has tended to increase.

	(
Year/Month	Season	Type of Disaster	Killed/Missing	Total Affected	Estimated Damage (US\$ Million)
May 2003	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	235	695,000	29
October-November 2006	Second Inter-Monsoon	Flood	25	333,002	3
January 2007	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	18	35,000	-
May 2007	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	15	121,000	0.05
May-June 2008	Southwest Monsoon	Flash Flood	25	362,582	-
November 2008	Second Inter-Monsoon	Tropical Cyclone	15	360,000	-
May 2010	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	20	75,000	105
January 2011	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	47	1,060,324	200
February 2011	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	18	225,000	300
November 2011	Second Inter-Monsoon	Storm	22	35,041	-
December 2012	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	53	447,021	1.2
January 2013	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	52	56,747	-
June 2013	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	58	17,214	-
February 2014	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	27	-	-
June 2014	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	27	104,009	-
October 2014	Second Inter-Monsoon	Land Slide	38	330	-
October 2014	Second Inter-Monsoon	Land Slide	196	1,067	-
December 2014	Northeast Monsoon	Flood	41	1,100,020	-
May 2016	Southwest Monsoon	Flood	245	500,000	2,000

Table 1: Meteorological Disasters in Sri Lanka during 2003-Middle of 2016 (Number of Killed or Missing Person: Over 10)

Source: WHO Collaborating Centre for Research on the Epidemiology of Disasters (CRED)

Emergency Events Database (EM-DAT)

Since more than 90% of the major disasters in Sri Lanka were caused by hazardous meteorological phenomena, meteorology has indeed become a matter of life or death in Sri Lanka. As such, the role of the DOM, the only meteorological organization in the country, is crucial and important.

1-3 Negative Impact on the Development of the Sri Lankan Economy

An agricultural sector centered on rice and plantation crops of tea, rubber, and coconut has traditionally driven the development of the market economy of Sri Lanka. A GDP (gross domestic product) growth rate of more than 10% was achieved due to the expansion of the

manufacturing and wholesale and retail industry under the government policy for economic development adopted in 1990. Since 1991, a GDP growth rate of 4.0% to 6.0% has been constantly maintained and a high rate of 8.0% in 2010 and 8.3% in 2011 were achieved due to the further intensification of economic activities which accelerated since the end of a quarter of a century civil war in 2009.

Throughout the course of the robust economic development achieved by Sri Lanka, negative impacts on the economy have been observed due to natural disasters as shown in the table presented below. The widespread drought indicated in the table hereunder which persisted until September 2001 (rainy season: from October to December in previous years) caused serious negative impacts to the district of Puttalam, which has a thriving agricultural and fisheries industry and is considered to be a place of strategic importance for the Sri Lankan economy, as well as to the district of Badulla, which is one of the major tea production regions in the country. From a 6.0% GDP growth rate in the previous year, a significant negative GDP growth rate of -1.6% was recorded with a total of one million affected people.

In 2008 when a GDP growth rate of 6.0% was recorded, it suddenly dropped to 3.5% in 2009. A similar case was observed during 2012 when the GDP growth rate dropped to 6.3% from 8.0% in 2011. In both instances, large-scale and devastating occurrences of river flood and flood happened 3 times in each year and approximately 0.8 million people were affected in 2008 while 1.3 million people were affected in 2011. Thus, there is a real and significant evidence that widespread and persistent disasters such as droughts and floods caused by weather phenomenon induces a major negative impact in the economic activity in Sri Lanka. It should be noted that the reduced impact on the GDP growth rate caused by an extensive tsunami disaster created by an earthquake in the Indian Ocean off Sumatra on December 26, 2004 is attributed to the intensification of international assistance and investments for reconstruction in the devastated areas.





1-4 Cooperation between Sri Lanka and Japan

The serious damages caused by the tsunami that attacked the country's coast facing the Indian Ocean in December 2004 are still fresh in our memory. In response to the severe disaster caused by the tsunami that affected 13 out of the 14 coastal districts facing the Indian Ocean in Sri Lanka, the Government of Japan extended assistance to Sri Lanka in the area of disaster management. The grant aid project "Improvement of Meteorological Information and Disaster Management Networks" is one example of Japanese cooperation in disaster management.

In particular, the equipment for meteorological observations and data network provided and introduced under the Japanese grant aid, "Improvement of Meteorological Information and Disaster Management Networks" (the official date of completion of the project was July 13, 2009; but the equipment was frequently damaged by lightning and needed repair and replacement, so the total functional system was delivered to Sri Lanka in July 2011) is closely related and connected to this Technical Cooperation Project. The figure on the right shows the

location map of the 38 observation stations installed under the grant aid program. The equipment for all the observation stations procured under Japan's grant aid is being handled, maintained and managed by the DOM.

In order for the DOM to mitigate the damages generated by the disasters caused by hazardous meteorological phenomena, it is a priority issue to detect hazardous meteorological phenomena which may create massive damages and disseminate highly accurate forecasts/warnings to the public more appropriately and promptly before the risk of disasters further escalate. Given all the circumstances mentioned above, it is significantly imperative to materialize urgently the further improvement of the technical capabilities of the DOM.





- Synoptic Meteorological Stations
- \triangle Collaborator Stations

the Government of Japan for this Technical Cooperation Project. In response to this request, the Japan International Cooperation Agency (hereinafter referred to as "JICA") held a series of discussions with the Government of Sri Lanka and concluded the Record of Discussions for the Project on May 23, 2014. Finally, it was decided to implement the Project beginning September 2014.

1-5 Objective of the Project

The objective of this Work is to achieve the Project Purpose by attaining the expected outputs described below through a variety of activities in accordance with PDM (Project Design Matrix).

Cognizant of the aforementioned situation, the Government of Sri Lanka has requested

1) Overall Goal

Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- (1) Number of the civil work projects for disaster mitigation that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM
- (2) Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM

2) Project Purpose

More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- Traceability of meteorology instruments (Availability of national standards/frequency of inspection)
- (2) Number of missing observation data
- (3) Accuracy of rainfall forecast in the selected stations.
- (4) Number of selected station where weekly forecast is enabled in trial basis

3) Expected Outputs and Objectively Verifiable Indicators

Outputs 1: Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- 1-1 Revision of the inspection and repairing (parts replacing) manual for AWS is completed during the Project.
- 1-2 Training on inspection and repairing of AWS is conducted for 70% of the relevant DOM staff.
- Outputs 2: Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- 2-1 Data from AWS are obtained and made available to a full extent in DOM.
- 2-2 Binary data via. GTS are obtained and made available to a full extent in DOM during the Project.

Outputs 3: Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.

- (Objectively Verifiable Indicators)
 - 3-1 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain ability to produce the short range and weekly weather forecast guidance.
 - 3-2 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain ability to produce the weather forecast guidance of sea wind.

Outputs 4: Warning criteria is elaborated.

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- 4-1 Number of areas where newly designed warning criteria that can meet the past disaster records are prepared.
- Outputs 5: The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.

(Objectively Verifiable Indicators)

- 5-1 Number of developed educational material for weather services.
- 5-2 Monthly access number of the DOM Website is increased by 30% or more. The objectives of the Project are as follows.

2. Actual Inputs

2-1 Dispatch of JICA Expert

(1) The following JICA experts of Consultant Team that were involved in the Project for three(3) years in accordance with the following schedule. After that, the Expert Dispatch Schedule, the Flowchart, and the Work Schedule are shown in order.

Field	Name of Experts	Project Phase	Dispatch Record	In Sri Lanka	In Japan
		Phase 1	Sep. 29, 2014 - Oct. 16, 2014 Jan. 15, 2015 - Feb. 02, 2015 Jun. 20, 2015 - Jul. 12, 2015	2.00 M/M	0.30 M/M
Leader/Weather Forecasting	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	Phase 2	Dec. 01, 2015Dec. 21, 2015Apr. 21, 2016May 11, 2016Jun. 05, 2016Jul. 04, 2016Oct. 31, 2016Nov. 21, 2016Mar. 24, 2017Apr. 09, 2017Apr. 28, 2017May. 03, 2017Jul. 19, 2017Jul. 25, 2017	4.20 M/M	0.35 M/M
		Phase 1	Sep. 29, 2014 - Oct. 16, 2014 Jan. 15, 2015 - Feb. 02, 2015 Jun. 20, 2015 - Jul. 12, 2015	2.00 M/M	0.45 M/M
Weather Guidance	Nobutaka NOGUCHI	Phase 2	Dec. 01, 2015Dec. 21, 2015Apr. 21, 2016May 11, 2016Jun. 14, 2016Jul. 04, 2016Nov. 01, 2016Nov. 21, 2016Mar. 10, 2017Apr. 09, 2017Apr. 26, 2017May. 03, 2017Jul. 18, 2017Jul. 27, 2017	4.43 M/M	0.60 M/M
		Phase 1	Sep. 29, 2014 - Oct. 16, 2014 Jan. 12, 2015 - Feb. 02, 2015 Jun. 14, 2015 - Jul. 04, 2015	2.00 M/M	0.25 M/M
Meteorological Observation Technology	Toshihide ENDO	Phase 2	Dec. 01, 2015 - Dec. 21, 2015 Apr. 21, 2016 - May 11, 2016 Jun. 30, 2016 - Jul. 17, 2016 Oct. 29, 2016 - Nov. 21, 2016 Mar. 10, 2017 - Apr. 09, 2017 Apr. 26, 2017 - May. 03, 2017	4.47 M/M	0.20 M/M

Table 2: Dispatch of JICA Expert (Consultant Team)

			Jul. 18, 2017 Jul. 2	.8, 2017	
			Oct. 01, 2014 - Oct.	18, 2014	
		Phase 1	Jan. 21, 2015 - Feb.	10, 2015 2.00 M/M	0.10 M/M
Data			Jun. 21, 2015 - Jul. 1	1, 2015	
Management/	Takanari		Jun. 22, 2016 Jul. 1	2, 2016	
Information	FUJII		Oct. 31, 2016 Nov.	19, 2016	
Technology		Phase 2	Feb. 19, 2017 - Mar.	03, 2017 2.70 M/M	0.15 M/M
			Mar. 24, 2017 - Apr.	05, 2017	
			May 14, 2017 May	27, 2017	
			Sep. 29, 2014 - Oct.	16, 2014	
		Phase 1	Apr. 05, 2015 - Apr.	25, 2015 2.00 M/M	0.25 M/M
TT 1			Jun. 21, 2015 - Jul. 1	1, 2015	
Weather			Dec. 01, 2015 Dec.	18, 2015	
	Soshi IWAIA		Jun. 09, 2016 Jul. 0	02, 2016	
Dissemination		Phase 2	Oct. 25, 2016 Nov.	19, 2016 3.60 M/M	0.85 M/M
			Mar. 01, 2017 - Mar.	15, 2017	
			May 16, 2017 Jun. (02, 2017	
	Satoko	D1 1	Apr. 05, 2015 - Apr.	25, 2015	0.10 1/1/
	NEGORO	Phase I	Jun. 21, 2015 - Jul. 1	1, 2015	0.10 M/M
XX 1 ·			Dec. 01, 2015 - Dec.	21, 2015	
Website	Motohiro	D1 0	Apr. 21, 2016 - May	11, 2016	0.15 14/14
	YAMAUCHI	Phase 2	Jun. 05, 2016 - Jul. 0	14, 2016 3.20 M/M	0.15 M/M
			Oct. 29, 2016 - Nov.	21, 2016	
	<sri lanka=""></sri>	Phase 1	Apr. 05, 2015 - Apr.	19, 2015 0.50 M/M	-
Project	Rashid Uz	D1	Jun. 07, 2016 Jun. 2	25, 2016 1.00 M/M	
Coordinator/we	ZAMAN	Phase 2	Oct. 25, 2016 Nov.	12, 2016 (0.27MM)	-
atner	<japan></japan>				
Forecasting	Kumiko	Phase 2	-		2.60 M/M
Assistant	MURAKAMI				

*: Consultant self payment

(2) The JICA long term expert was dispatched during the project as indicated in Table 3.

Field	Name of Expert	Contract Phase	Dispatch Record
Chef Technical	Masahito	Phase 1	Sep. 22, 2014 - Sep. 19, 2016
Advisor	ISHIHARA	Phase 2	Sep. 20, 2016 - Sep. 17, 2014

Table 3: Dispatch of JICA Expert	(Long	Term Expert)
----------------------------------	-------	--------------

(2) The JICA short term experts were dispatched as shown in Table 4.

Training Course	Name	Position	Period (Number of trainees)	Goal
Theoretical Tropical Meteorology	Dr. Manabu Yamanaka	JAMSTEC	21 Nov. to 2 Dec. 2016 (14)	Acquiring knowledge on theoretical meteorology in the tropics
Meteorological Instrument Calibration 1	Mr. Sadanori ARAKAKI Mr. Satoshi HAGIYA	RIC-Tsukuba, JMA	13 to 20 Jan. 2017 (24)	Acquiring the technique to establish the instrument traceability
Operational Tropical Meteorology	Mr. Atsushi GOTO	Global Environment and Marine Department, JMA	23 to 27 Jan. 2017 (33)	Acquiring the operational technique to make analysis of tropical weather using JRA55 and iTacs
Upper-air Observation	Mr. Toshihiro ABO	Aerological Observatory, JMA	2 to 7 June 2017 (22)	Acquiring the latest technology of upper-air observation and discussing improvement of the current situation of DOM
Meteorological Instrument Calibration 2	Mr. Sadanori ARAKAKI Mr. Satoshi HAGIYA	RIC-Tsukuba, JMA	12 to 16 June 2017 (21)	Acquiring technology to complete the instrument traceability
Quantitative Precipitation Estimation (QPE)	Dr. Ahoro ADACHI	Meteorological Research Institute, JMA	24 to 26 July 2017 (18)	Learning fundamental and application of dual polarization weather radars and QFE technique using the radar data
Quantitative Precipitation Forecast (QPF)	Mr. Kazuhiko NAGATA	Forecast Department JMA	24 to 26 July 2017 (18)	Learning QPF technique necessary for producing information to make forecast of flooding and landslide disaster
Satellite Animation and	Mr. Junya FUKUDA	Forecast Department	21 to 26 Aug. 2017	Acquiring the skill to make weather analysis using

ſ	Interactive	Mr. Takumi	JMA	(15)	satellite and NWP data
	Diagnosis	MARUYAMA	Meteorological		obtained from the
	(SATAID)		Satellite Center		Himawari-cast Receiving
			JMA		Receiver with SATAID
					Program

(4) Counter parts of the project

27 staff members of the DOM were selected as counter parts of the project at the kick-off meeting held in September 2014. At the first JCC in October 2014, Mr. Chandrapara (Director General), Mr. Premalal (Director) and Mr. Jayasinghearachchi (Director) were assigned to the project direct, the project manager and the project assistant-manager in the project, respectively.

2-1-1 Expert Dispatch Schedule

	Phase Year					hase	Phase 1 2015						Phase 2 2016									2017						Pha	ise 1	Pha	ase 2	Тс	otal	
					M	fear Ionth	9 10	014	2 1	2 3	4 5	6 7	8	9 1	0 11	12 1	2 3	4 5	6 7	8	9 10	11 1	12 1	2 3	4 5	6	7	89	Man-	Month	Man-	Month	Man-I	Month
	No.	Field	Name	Company	Rank											_											_		Sri Lanka	Japan	Sri Lanka	Japan	Sri Lanka	Japan
	1	Leader / Weather	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	IMC	20	Driginal Plan	18			21		21				21		18		18		18	1	8	18		18		2.00	-	4.30	-	6.30	-
		Forecasting			-	Mobilized	18		19			23			2	1		21	30			22		1	7 8		7		2.00	-	4.20	-	6.20	-
	2	Weather Guidance	Nobutaka NOGUCHI	IMC	3	Driginal Plan	18			21		21	1			21		21		21		18	1	8	18		18		2.00	-	4.50	-	6.50	-
A c	-					Mobilized	18		19			23			2	1		21	21			21		31	8		10		2.00	-	4.43	-	6.43	-
t					0	Driginal Plan	18		21			21			2	∎	2	21		21		18		18			21		2.00	-	4.00	-	6.00	-
v i	з	Meteorological Observation	Toshihida ENDO	IMC	5	Mobilized	18		22			20			2	1		21	18			24		31					2.00	-	4.07	-	6.07	-
y	Ū	Technology			4 0	Driginal Plan																							0.00	-	0.00	-	0.00	-
i n					-	Mobilized																			I		11		0.00	-	0.40	-	0.40	-
0	4	Data Management /	Takapari EU III	1)4/4	0	Driginal Plan	18			21		21					1	2	1		2	1					18		2.00	-	2.70	-	4.70	-
r i	4	Information Technology	Takanan TUSh	3004	5	Mobilized	18		21	1		21							21			20		13 1					2.00	-	2.70	-	4.70	-
L	5	Weather Information	Soshi IWATA	110/4	3 0	Driginal Plan	18		21			21			2	1		18		1	8			18	1	8	15	5	2.00	-	3.60	-	5.60	-
a n v	Ū	Dissemination				Mobilized	18				21	21			1	8			24			26		15	I	18	7		2.00	-	3.60	-	5.60	-
a	6	Website	Satoko NEGORO Motohiro	IMC	4 0	Driginal Plan				21		2	21			21		21	2	1		18	8	18			15		1.40	-	3.80	-	5.20	-
	Ū		YAMAUCHI			Mobilized					21	21			2	1		21	30			24							1.40	-	3.20	-	4.60	-
	7	Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting	Rashid ZAMAN	ІМС	5	Driginal Plan						15							1	5					1	5			0.50	-	1.00	-	1.50	-
		Assistant				Mobilized					15								1 9		ļ								0.50	-	1.00	-	1.50	-
																						C	Drigina	l Plan Ma	n-Month	Total			11 00	_	23.90	-	35.80	-
																													11.30	-				
			[_ 1	1					1_					_						Mobilized	Total			_	11.90	-	23.60	-	35.50	-
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting	***	IMC	0	Driginal Plan			0 1				02		0								2	Mobilized	Total	-]	-	0.30	23.60	- 0.35	35.50 -	- 0.65
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting	***	IMC	2	Driginal Plan Mobilized			0 1 0 1	0		2	[] 2				02		Π	1			0 2 0 2	Mobilized	Total	02	[2	2	-	0.30	-	- 0.35 0.45	35.50 - -	- 0.65 0.75
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance	***	IMC	2 0 2 0 3	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan											0]				Mobilized	Total]	- - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45	23.60 - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60	35.50 - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05
A c	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance	***	IMC	2 0 2 0 3 0	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized												0 2 0 3 0 3]				Mobilized	Total				- - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45	23.60 - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60	35.50 - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05
A c t i v	1 2 3	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC	2 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 2 1 2 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3		0 1 0 1 0 2 0 2 0 2															Mobilizec	Total				- - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25	23.60 - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20	35.50	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45
A c t i v i t	1 2 3	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC		Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	D 3 2 1 D 2 1 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 3 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0 D 0																	Mobilized	Total				- - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.25	23.60 - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20	35.50 - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25
A c t i t y i	1 2 3 4	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA		Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 1 1 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 4																	Mobilized	Total 0 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1				11.90 - - - - - - - - -	0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10	23.60 - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15	35.50 - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25
A c t i v i t y i n	1 2 3 4	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA		Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 1 1 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 3																	Mobilized	Total				- - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15	35.50 - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10
Activity Jap	1 2 3 4 5	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA		Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 21 21 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2																	Mobilized						- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA		Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2											0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 1 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Mobilized</td><td>Total</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25</td><td>23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15</td><td>35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25</td></t<>						Mobilized	Total				11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC		Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Mobilized	0 3 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2											0 - 0 -											11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.25
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator /	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA	$ \begin{array}{c} $	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 10 21 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2																		Total				11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA IMC IMC	$ \begin{array}{c} $	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 1 1 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2																						11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.2	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	····	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC IMC	$ \begin{array}{c} $	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 1 1 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2																	Mobilized	Total	0 2 1 2 2 2 3 2 4 2 5 3 6 3 7 4 7 4 1 4 1 5			11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.1	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	····	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC	$ \begin{array}{c} $	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 0 1 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2											0 1 0 1					□ 2 □ 2 □ 2 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1 □ 1	Mobilized	Total	0 0 2			11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.1	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90 5.20	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35 6.65
A c t i v i t y i n J a p a n	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	*** *** *** *** *** *** *** *** *** *** ***	IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC IMC	2 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Driginal Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Mobilized Original Plan	0 3 1 1 2 1 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3																Image: Description of the sector of the s	Mobilized	Total				11.30 11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.00 1.45 1.45	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.85 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90 5.20	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35 6.65
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA IMC IMC Subr	2 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Driginal Plan Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized Mobilized Driginal Plan Mobilized	0 3 10 21 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0<				А М/S2		□2 □2 □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □ □					□ □ □ □					Image: Description of the second s	Mobilized	Total	0 2 1 1 2 1 3 1 4 1 5 1 6 1 7 1 7 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			11.30 11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10	23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.15 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90 5.20	35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35 6.65

:Activity in Japan

:Work Plan (Phase1) / Monitoring Sheet Ver.1 W/P B/R : Baseline Survey Report M/S2 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 2 F/R1 G/R2 M/S3 M/S4 : Project Completion Report (Phase1) : Work Plan (Phase2) : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 3 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 4 M/S5 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 5 F/R2 : Project Completion Report (Phase1)

JWA: Japan Weather Association

2-1-2 Flowchart



2-1-3 Work Schedule

	Phase I									Phase2																		
				2014									20	015						2016								
	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4		5 6		7	8	9 1	0	-
Baseline Survey: Capacity Assessment in Sri Lanka																									-		_	-
Understanding of the maintenance and management conditions of the meteorological observation equipment and the maintenance and management capability of the staff																												
Current situation of the observation data transmission between the AWS sites and the DOM headquarters	1																				Γ							
Understanding of the current condition of the GTS message switching system	1																											
Evaluation of staff capability concerning meteorological forecasting																												
Evaluation of staff capability concerning the dissemination of meteorological information (including educational activities) and communication			Ì		Ì		1														1							ī
technology	_																					_	_					
Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.																												_
To review the current situation on maintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved.														ļ														_
To procure the necessary instruments for calibration of meteorological equipment, and establish teams for proper maintenance and calibration.																												_
To establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	<long-< td=""><td>term exp</td><td>ert's acti</td><td>vity></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>_</td></long-<>	term exp	ert's acti	vity>																								_
To conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment	<short< td=""><td>term exp</td><td>ert's act</td><td>ivity></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td> </td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td></short<>	term exp	ert's act	ivity>																								-
To review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observation.																												
To review and revise inspection and repairing (parts replacing) user's guide(s) for AWS																												
To conduct trainings on the inspection and repairing of AWS																							-					
To review the upper air observation schedule.	<long-< td=""><td>term exp</td><td>ert's acti</td><td>vity></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></long-<>	term exp	ert's acti	vity>																								
Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.																												
To review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the						•																						
issues to be improved.																				_	_	_	_				_	_
To examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters.						<u> </u>																	_				_=	5
To review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved.																												_
To replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS.																					-	_	_					_
Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data																							_					_
To review the current situation on the weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.																							_					_
To conduct the training on the development of Short Range and Weekly (7 days ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance and verification.																							\perp					_
To produce Short Range and Weekly (7 days ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance at the selected stations.											—										-		-					_
To produce Weather Forecast Guidance of Sea Wind at the selected stations.																							<u>.</u>				_₹	_
To conduct the trainings on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)	<short< td=""><td>term exp</td><td>pert's acti</td><td>vity></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>_</td></short<>	term exp	pert's acti	vity>																								_
To review and improve the existing methods of seasonal precipitation forecast.											<u> </u>										-		<u> </u>				▁	
To conduct on-the-job training on improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of various data.											<u> </u>										-							
Warning criteria is elaborated																												
To review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved.	1																											
To examine methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy																												-
rainfall, strong winds and lightning.																					_	_	_					_
The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.																					-							_
To review the contents of current melcorological information, and identify the issues to be improved.																				-			_					_
To improve the contents of weather information.											_												-				— F	-
To review the timing of information dissemination to ships and fleet																					-	_	-				\rightarrow	_
To improve the contents of Website.																							<u> </u>					_
To prepare smartphone compatible Website																							-					1
To conduct the training on responses to the mass media																							-					4
To regularly update and maintain the products on the Website by the DOM.	_																				_		-					-
To provide the rainings on update of the contents																							—				_	
To prepare the update operation manual for the products on the web pages	1										_												-					_
To prepare educational material (disaster awareness materials) for the weather services.			ļ	ļ	ļ				ļ		-												—				_	
To conduct open classes																												
Annual seminar																												_
Training in Japan																												



2-2 **Provision of Equipment**

(1) The Equipment procured by the Consultant for the activities of each expert and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Installation Place	Procurement Date
	Phase 1						
1	Wireless Router	D-Link	DWR-113	For Internet Access (Forecasting Room)	1	DOM Head Office	October 04, 2014
2	Laminator (A3)	BIOSYSTEM	SOUL 330C	For the distribution of Weather Information Dissemination Products	1	DOM Head Office	January 15, 2015
3	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	2	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015
4	Laptop PC for Establishment of Website	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (17inch)	For the conduct of the Training for Website creation and maintenance	1	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015
5	Laptop PC for Conduct of Training on, Weather Guidance	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (15inch)	For the conduct of Training on Weather Guidance	7	DOM Head Office	January 17, 2015
6	Laptop PC for the Download of Observation Data	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (15inch)	For the distribution of Weather Information Dissemination Products	1	DOM Head Office	January 17, 2015
7	Monitor for Weather Briefing	SHARP, etc.	SHPLC60LE650, etc.	For the conduct of Weather Briefing	1	DOM Head Office	January 19, 2015

Table 5: List of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by Consultant Team)

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report

8	Additional Lightning Protection System	-	-	For the strengthening of the AWS Lightning Protection	3	Polonnarumwa, Aralaganwill and Ratnapura Observation Stations	January 30, 2015
9	Multifunction Machine (Printer/Photocopy)	CANON	IR2545	For the copy and printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	March 13, 2015
10	Website Template Program	JB TECH ENGINEERING	Joomla 3.4 Compatible	For the production of the Website	1	DOM Head Office	June 21, 2015
11	 Spare Parts for the AWS Data Logger Wind Direction and Speed Sensor Temperature Sensor Rain Gauge Pressure Sensor Hygrometer Cap for Humidity Transmitter 	MEISEI VAISALA MEISEI MEISEI VAISALA VAISALA VAISALA	113115-001 WMT-700 , MES-39457 MES-39459 PTB-330A HMT-333 DRW010281SP	For the maintenance of the AWS	2 4 1 1 1 1 10	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
12	Standard Meteorological Instrument (Electric Temperature Sensor)	CHINO	CAB-F201-2, R900-F25AD	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
13	Standard Meteorological Instrument (Electric Pressure Sensor)	VAISALA	PTB330TS, M170	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report

14	Portable Calibration System (Portable AWS)	VAISALA, DELAIRCO etc	PTB330A, DLM, etc	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
	Phase 2						
15	Laser Pointer	KOKUYO	ELP-G10	For Training and Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	December 1, 2015
16	Sound System for Open Class	YAMAHA, ELECTRO VOICE, etc.	Stagepass 400i, etc.	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	December 14, 2015
17	Projector with Screen for Open Class	EPSON, etc.	EB-W04, etc.	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	May 07, 2016
18	Cooler Box	LION STAR	22L	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 2, 2016
19	Extension Power Code	CABLE REEL	30m	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	July 4, 2016
20	Ice Shaving Machine	CHUBU CORPORATION	Hatsuyuki HA-110S	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
21	Thermometer Inspection Bath	THOMAS KAGAKU	Celsius 100L	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
22	Barometer Calibration Device	DAIICHI KAGAKU	112704878-004-1	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
	Spare Parts for the AWS						
	- Data Logger	MEISEI	113115-001		2		
	- Temperature Sensor	MEISEI	MES-39457		3		
	- Rain Gauge	OGASAWARA	RS-102N1		3		
	- Pressure Sensor	VAISALA	PTB-330A		3		
23	- Hygrometer	MEISEI	MES-39458	For the maintenance of	3	DOM Head Office	July 22,
	- Cap for Humidity	VAISALA	DRW010281SP	the AWS	10		2016

_	Transmitter						
	- Solar Radiation Sensor	EKO	MS402		3		
	- Surge Arrester for Power	MORINAGA	ALPK-VNJ2P		2		
	- Surge Arrester for LAN	SANKO	LAN-100IS		2		
	- GPS Antenna for Data Logger	POSITION	GA-08R (3M) BNC		2		
24	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	November 05, 2016
25	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	November 11, 2016
26	Hard Disk (4T)	Western Digital Corporation (WD)	MY PASSPORT	For the WRF Data Storage	1	DOM Head Office	April 06, 2017
27	Projector Stand	Shonzon Screen Works	Portable Tripod Projector	To set a projector at appropriate place promptly	1	DOM Head Office	May 29, 2017

(2) The Equipment procured by the Long-term Expert and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

Table 6: Lists of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by Long Term Expert)

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Installation Place	Procurement Date
1	Camera	Nikon	D3300 Camera with 18-55mm VR II Lens	For the recording of project activities	1	DOM Head Office	January 7, 2015

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report

2	Laptop computer	HP	Pavilion 15-P022tu Core i3-4030U Notebook	For the production of training documents	1	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015
3	Multi-function Printer	Canon	iC MF 8580 CDW Multi-function Machine	For the printing training documents	1	DOM Head Office	February 5, 2015
4	Projector	Epson	Epson Multi- Media Projector	For the projecting training materials	1	DOM Head Office	March 12, 2015
5	Vehicle	Toyota	Hilux 4WD Double Cab including canopy	For the of survey of regional offices of DOM	1	DOM Head Office	March 31, 2015
6	GPS Receiver	Garmin	GPS eTrex 30	For the survey of identifying latitudes and longitudes of meteorological instruments	1	DOM Head Office	October 15, 2015
7	Freezer	Candy	Chest Freezer	For the producing ice to make freezing point calibration of thermometers	1	DOM Head Office	June 21, 2015
8	Air conditioner	Panasonic	S24RKH%6938905 133	For the air conditioning of the training center of DOM	2	DOM Head Office	August 11, 2016
9	Air conditioner	Panasonic	S24RKH%6938905 133	For the air conditioning of the training center of DOM	2	DOM Head Office	December 12, 2016
10	Digital Barometer	Vaisala	PTB330TS & Indicator M170	For the sub-standard of pressure	1	DOM Head Office	March 17, 2017

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report

11	Printer	Canon	ImageCLASS LBP-8100n	For the printing weather charts to be connected with the GTS/MSS terminal	1	DOM Head Office	August 18, 2017
----	---------	-------	-------------------------	---	---	-----------------	-----------------

(3) The Equipment procured by JICA and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Installation Place	Procurement Date
1	GTS Message Switch System	ESS Weathertech Pty Ltd.	GTS Message Switch System	For the Exchange of Meteorological Information	1	DOM Head Office, Colombo International Airport and Mattala Rajapaksa International Airport	December 18, 2015
2	HimawariCast Reception System	Delairco Japan KK	HimawariCast Reception System	For receiving the Himawari-8 data	1	DOM Head Office and Colombo International Airport	August 16, 2017

Table7 : List of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by JICA)

2-3 List of the Project Documents

The documents submitted to the DOM and the JICA are listed in the following table.

Project Phase	Documents submitted to the DOM and the JICA	Submission
	Work Plan of Phase 1 (Japanese)	September, 2014
	Work Plan /Monitoring Sheet Ver.1	October, 2014
	Brief Note	December, 2014
Phase I	Baseline Report	December, 2014
	Monitoring Sheet Ver.2	April, 2015
	Final Report of Phase 1	August, 2015
	Work Plan of Phase 2 (Japanese)	October, 2015
	Monitoring Sheet Ver.3	April, 2016
DI O	Monitoring Sheet Ver.4	September, 2016
Phase 2	Monitoring Sheet Ver.5	March, 2017
	Brief Note (Final Version)	August, 2017
	Final Report of the Project	August, 2017

Table 8: List of the Project Documents

2-4 List of the Project Outputs

(1) The Project Outputs prepared by the Consultant Team under the Project are listed in the following table.

PDM Output	Project Output prepared the Consultant Team under the Project
 Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 	 All the required documents necessary for the procurement process including the technical specifications for the new instruments for the calibration of meteorological equipment. Construction of an additional lightning protection pole needed at three particular sites (Polonnaruwa, Aralagatonwila and Ratnapura) vulnerable to lightning strikes. Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System

Table 9: List of the	Project Output	s (Consultant Team)
	i iojool Oulpul	

	 Preventive Maintenance Record for Automatic Weather Observation System
	 Basic Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System
	 Spare Parts (Sensor) Replacement Procedure for Recovery of Automatic Weather Observation System
	 Observation Guidelines of Manual Observation by Observation Instrument
	 Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual
2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of	 All the required documents necessary for the procurement process including the technical specifications for new Global Telecommunication System/Message Switching System (GTS/MSS) equipment.
various kinds of meteorological data is	 Network Diagram of the before and after scenario on the change of the system network which utilized the IP-VPN
su englitened.	 Flowchart for the smooth transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system.
	 Excel Files for Weather Guidance Training
	 Lists of Predictors Group for Weather Guidance
	 Formula in Excel
	 Observation Data Circulation
	 Excel Database for WRF of DOM, Sri Lanka
	 Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the year.
3. Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.	Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the First Intern-Monsoon Season
	 Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Southwest Monsoon Season
	Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Northeast Monsoon Season

				Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Second Intern-Monsoon Season Weekly (144h-168h) Weather Forecast Guidance (Colombo and Ratnapura) for Precipitation with the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale of 0.5 degree mesh data Weekly (144h-168h) Weather Forecast Guidance (Colombo and Ratnapura) for Precipitation with the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale of 0.5 degree mesh data Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale Short Range (Puttalam and Pottuvil: 24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation (by 2040) with sea surface temperature observation data at 5 selected points in Pacific, Indian and Atlantic Oceans and rainfall observation data of Colombo for 36 years with the CFS (NOAA Climate
4.	Warning criteria elaborated.	is	•	Grid Point ValeExplanatory material of analysis procedures for Heavy Rain Advisory and WarningExplanatory material of analysis procedures for Strong Wind Advisory and WarningExplanatory material of analysis procedures for Lightning AdvisoryMaster file of DOM new warning bulletin (Color version)Master file of DOM new warning bulletin (Monochrome version)Analytical results of Heavy Rain Advisory and Warning Analytical results of Strong Wind AdvisoryAnalytical results of Lightning AdvisoryAnalytical ata of Heavy Rain Advisory and Warning Analytical data of Heavy Rain Advisory and Warning Analytical data of Strong Wind Advisory and Warning
5	The method	of	-	Analytical data of Lightning Advisory Visual flow chart of the current website flow chart
5.	dissemination	and		Visual flow chart of the future website flow chart

contents of		Story Plot of the animation
meteorological		Animated cartoon "Save Yourself" (EP1: Climate of Sri Lanka,
information are improved.		EP2: Thunderstorm and Lightning, EP3: Heavy Rain and
		Disaster, English/Sinhala/Tamil, MP4(HD) format)
		Laminated "Beaufort Scale on Land" (English/Sinhala/Tamil)
		Laminated "Beaufort Scale at Sea" (English/Sinhala/Tamil)
		DOM rubber mascot
		Text book for "Drawing Graphics by PowerPoint"
		Comprehension test conducted in Open Class
		(English/Sinhala/Tamil)
		Results of Open Classes
	•	Major Dissemination Activities
		Cloud Types for Observers in Sri Lanka

(2) The Project Outputs prepared by the Long-term Expert and the Short-term Experts under the Project are listed in the following table.

PDM Outputs	Project outputs prepared by the Long-term Expert and the short-term Experts
1. Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.	 DOM Instrument Calibration Improvement Plan DOM Guideline to the Meteorological Instrument Inspection DOM Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Inspection Review on the Upper-air Observation of the DOM by the Long-term Expert Report on the Short-term Expert Training "Upper-air Observation" Observation manual on the GPS Radiosonde iMS-100 by the Short-term Expert Documents in the Short-term Experts Training "Meteorological Instrument Calibration 1" Documents of the Short-term Experts Training "Meteorological Instrument Calibration 2" Documents of the C/P Training Program "Meteorological Instrument Calibration"

Table 10: List of the Project Outputs (the Long-term Expert and the Short-term Experts)
	 Lecture note of the lecture "Basic Meteorology" by the Long-term 		
	 Documents of the Short-term Expert Training "Theoretical Transical Mateorelogy" 		
3. Capacity of weather	Tropical Meteorology		
forecasting is improved using	Documents of the Short-term Expert Training "Operational		
obtained meteorological data.	I ropical Meteorology		
	Documents of the Short-term Expert Training "Quantitative		
	Precipitation Estimation: QPE"		
	Documents of the Short-term Expert Training "Quantitative		
	Precipitation Forecast: QPF"		
	 Report on the survey to select sites for installation of weather radars 		
	 Note on the Gongala radar site visit 		
	 Report on the Riverston radar proposed site visit (in Japanese) 		
	Issues in the medium-term master plan of weather services in Sri		
	Lanka		
	• Report on the current situation of the AWS data loggers and		
	proposed measure		
	• Report on the business trip of the survey on the current situation		
Others	of the DOM Manner Regional Office (in Japanese)		
(Advices and reports produced	• Report on the weather situation at the Koslanda landslide on		
by the Long-term Expert and	October 29, 2014		
submitted to the DOM)	 Report on the survey on the Kadowata tornado damage on 7 		
	January 2016		
	Report on the Weather Situation at the Rainfall Disasters due to Tropical Depression B-01 (Cyclone Roanu) in May 2016		
	 Report on the current situation of the drought in Sri Lanka 		
	Report on the weather summary on the heavy rainfall disaster on		
	25 May 2017		
	Weather Project News Letter Vol.2		
	 Documents on the Weather Disaster Seminar on 25 July 2017 		

2-5 Counterpart Trainings in Japan

(1) JICA C/P Training Programs arranged by the Consultant Team

<Name of the Counterpart Trainings>

First Training: Weather Forecasting & Weather Information Dissemination

Second Training: Weather Forecasting

<Participating Trainees>

4 personnel from the Operational Weather Forecasters of the Department of Meteorology (DOM), Sri Lanka.

< Training Contents and Schedule>

First Training

Course Period	February 29, 2016 to March 15, 2016 (16 days)	
Participants	1. Mr. JAYASEKERA Siri Ranjith (Director of Forecasting & Decision	
	Support)	
	2. Mr. KARUNANAYAKE Athula Kumara (Deputy Director, Training	
	Division)	
	3. Ms. JAYAKODY Preethika Madhavi (Meteorologist)	
	4. Mr. PEIRIS Thammahetti Mudalige Nandalal (Meteorologist)	
Training Venues	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya), Gifu University, Nippon	
	Television Network, Inc., and Life Safety Learning Center, Tokyo Fire	
	Department, Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi), JICA Tokyo	
	International Center (Hatagaya).	
Training Contents	1. Learning the principles of the local meteorological forecast model and sea	
	wave forecast model.	
	2. Understanding of the meteorology of turbulent flow in the surface	
	boundary layer.	
	3. Understanding of the heat budget of meteorological phenomena and of the	
	human body.	

Table 11: Summary of the First Training

4.	Understanding atmospheric pressure patterns and local meteorology as
	well as learning the classification method of atmospheric pressure
	patterns.
5.	Weather Information Dissemination

	Date	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	28 February (Sun)	Colombo → Chubu Centrair International Airport, Nagova	
2	29 February (Mon)	Orientation Briefing	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya)
3	01 March (Tue)	Local meteorological forecast model 1	Gifu University
4	02 March (Wed)	Local meteorological forecast model 1	Gifu University
5	03 March (Thu)	Sea wave forecast model	Gifu University
6	04 March (Fri)	Meteorology of surface boundary layer and turbulent flow	Gifu University
7	05 March (Sat)	Holiday (Excursion to heavy snowfall area: Shirakawago)	
8	06 March (Sun)	Holiday	
9	07 March (Mon)	Utilization of renewable energy (wind-power and solar power generation)	Gifu University
10	08 March (Tue)	Heat budget of meteorological phenomena and human body	Gifu University
11	09 March (Wed)	Local meteorology in Japan 1	Gifu University
12	10 March (Thu)	Local meteorology in Japan 2	Gifu University
13	11 March (Fri)	Classification of pressure pattern and regional meteorology (work study)	Gifu University
14	12 March (Sat)	Gifu →Tokyo	
15	13 March	Holiday	

Table 12: First Training Schedule

	(Sun)		
16	14 March (Mon)	Disaster experience learning center such as heavy rain and earthquake.	Life Safety Learning Center, Tokyo Fire Department (Oshiage)
		Weather information provision service by a commercial private broadcasting station	Nippon Television Network, Co. (Shinbashi)
17	15 March (Tue)	Courtesy call	Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi)
		JICA Evaluation Meeting	JICA Tokyo International Center (Hatagaya)
18	16 March (Wed)	Narita \rightarrow Colombo	

Second Training

Table 15. Summary of the Second Training		
Course Period	March 9, 2017 to March 23, 2017 (15 days)	
Participants	1. Ms. WARNASOORIYA Anusha Rashanthi Patabedi (Deputy Director)	
	2. Mr. RATHUGAMAGE Malith Prasanna Fernando (Meteorologist)	
	3. Mr. PREMATHILAKE Jayasinghe Sepalage D. S. (Meteorologist)	
	4. Mr. KUMARA Athdath Waduge Susantha Janaka (Meteorologist)	
Training Venues	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya), Gifu University in Japan,	
	Tsukuba University in Japan, Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi),	
	JICA Tokyo International Center (Hatagaya)	
Training Contents	1. Learning the WRF (Weather Research and Forecasting) model and WRF	
	Data Assimilation System (WRFDA)	
	2. Practice on the operation and tuning of the WRF model and WRFDA	

Table 13: Summary of the Second Training

Table 14: Second Training Schedule

Date		Training Contents	Training Venues
1	07 March (Tue)	$Colombo \rightarrow$	
2	08 March (Wed)	\rightarrow Chubu Centrair International Airport, Nagoya	

3	9 March (Thu)	JICA Orientation Briefing	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya)
4	10 March (Fri)	Installation and Operation check of Linux and WRF	Gifu University
5	11 March (Sat)	Holiday	
6	12 March (Sun)	Holiday	
7	13 March (Mon)	Set up and Practical Run of WRF	Gifu University
8	14 March (Tue)	Sea Wave Forecast Model	Gifu University
9	15 March (Wed)	Drawing and Analyzing Output from WRF Model	Gifu University
10	16 March (Thu)	Local Climate Change in South East Asia Gifu → Takayama	Gifu University
11	17 March (Fri)	Highland Meteorological Observation and Data Acquisition Takayama → Gifu	Gifu University Takayama Observation Station
12	18 March (Sat)	Gifu → Tokyo →Tsukuba	
13	19 March (Sun)	Holiday	
14	20 March (Mon)	Understanding the WRFDA	Tsukuba University
15	21 March (Tue)	Set up and Practical Run of the WRFDA	Tsukuba University
16	22 March (Wed)	Evaluation of the WRFDA Practical Run and Tune-up Method	Tsukuba University
17	23 March (Thu)	Tsukuba → Tokyo Courtesy call	Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi)
		JICA Evaluation Meeting	JICA Tokyo International Center (Hatagaya)
18	24 March (Fri)	Narita \rightarrow Colombo	

(2) JICA C/P Training Programs arranged by the JICA HQs and the Long-term Expert

<Name of the Counterpart Training>

The 1st Program: Meteorological Instrument Calibration

The 2nd Program: Meteorological Observation

<Participating Trainees>

The 1st program: Staff in charge of meteorological instruments and electronics engineering of the DOM

The 2nd Program: Staff in charge of meteorological observations of the DOM

< Training Contents and Schedule>

The 1st training Program

Four staff of the DOM instrument division and the electronic division were trained in RIC-Tsukuba of JMA during two weeks in February 2016 in order to obtain the technique of meteorological instrument calibration as an unit of the activities 1.3 in the project "Establish the traceability of meteorological instrument" (Photo 2-1). Coupled with the short-term expert training courses in DOM, 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration 1' and 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration 2', the staff of the instrument division of DOM have obtained the full technique to make calibration of pressure and temperature instruments by themselves, and have started the new instrument calibration scheme in DOM.

The contents of the 1st training are summarized in the following Table.

Meteorological Instrument Calibration		
	Training Period February 8, 2016 to February 19, 2016 (12 days)	
	Tariaina	Meteorological Instrument Center, JMA (RIC-Tsukuba)
	Venues	Head Quarters, JMA
Outline of the		Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
training	Participants	Ms. WEERAPPERUMAGE DONA Liliyan Malani
		(Meteorological Officer in charge, Instrument Division)
		Mr. METTASINGHE Napagoda Achchillage

Table 15: Summary of the 1st C/P	Training Program
----------------------------------	-------------------------

	(Meteorological Officer Class, Instrument Division)
	■ Mr. PRIYADHARSENA Wannakuwattawaduge Prasanna
	Kelum
	(Electronic Engineering, Electronic Engineering Division)
	Mr. HATHTHOTUWA GAMAGE Prasanna Ranga Kumara
	(Telecommunication & Radar Technical Officer, Electronic
	Engineering Division)
Training	1. Learning the techniques of meteorological instrument calibration
purposes	2. Acquiring information on meteorological observations

	Date 2016	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	7 February (Sun)	Colombo→Narita International Airport	
2	8 February (Mon)	JICA Briefing and orientation Training Orientation	JICA Tuskuba Int. Center RIC-Tsukuba
3	9 February (Tue)	Instrument calibration work Calibration of humidity, rainfall and wind measurement instrument	RIC-Tsukuba
4	10 February (Wed)	Calibration of thermometers and barometers Site visit to the radiosonde observation	RIC-Tsukuba
5	11 February (Thu)	Holiday	
6	12 February (Fri)	Visit to the surface observation site Lecture on meteorological observations Visit to the forecast and observation operation rooms	Head Quarters, JMA Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
7	13 February (Sat)	Cultural visit to Tokyo	RIC-Tsukuba
8	14 February (Sun)	Cultural visit to Kamakura	RIC-Tsukuba
9	15 February (Mon)	Calibration of thermometer at the freezing point Testing of phygrometers using the Assmann phygrometer	RIC-Tsukuba
10	16 February (Tue)	Calibration of thermometer at the thermal bath	RIC-Tsukuba
11	17 February	Calibration of barometers	RIC-Tsukuba

Table 16: Schedule of the 1st Training

	(Wed)		
12	18 February (Thu)	Practice on calibrations of barometers and thermometers	RIC-Tsukuba
13	19 February (Fri)	Production of calibration manual of barometers and thermometers Evaluating the training and awarding certificates	RIC-Tsukuba JICA Tsukuba Int. Center
14	20 February (Sat)	Narita International Airport→Colombo	

The 2nd training Program

This program was designed for the DOM staff to learn the latest knowledge on meteorological observations for planning the modernization of DOM weather services. The number of the trainees was increased from the originally planned 4 people to 8 people so that staff at various levels such as from a deputy director to heads of the regional offices of DOM could discuss the modernization. The training program was implemented by the staff of JMA and a meteorological instrument manufacturer, and a professor of Kyoto University specialized in meteorological observations during two weeks in February 2017. At the end of the training, all the trainees discussed problems and issues in promoting the modernization of the meteorological observations in the future DOM, and compiled a proposal as the final report, and submitted it to the Director General of DOM after their return to Sri Lanka.

The contents of the 1st training are summarized in Table 17.

Meteorological Observations				
	Training Period	February 13, 2017 to February 24, 2016 (12 days)		
	Training Venues	JICA Tokyo International Center		
		Head Quarters, JMA		
		Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA		
		Aerological Observatory, JMA		
Oradi'n a fithe		Meteorological Instrument Center, JMA (RIC-Tsukuba)		
Outline of the		Kumagaya Local Meteorological Observatory		
training		Meisei Isesaki Factory		
	Participants	■ Mr. A. G. M. M. Wimalasooriya		
		(Deputy Director in charge of meteorological instruments)		
		■ Mr. P. A. A. Priyantha		
		(Meteorologist, Computer Division)		

Table 17: Summary of the 2nd C/P Training Program

		■ Ms. K. G. P. S. Wijerathne
		(Meteorological Officer, Radar Division)
		Ms. G. R. L. Palihapitiya
		(Meteorological Officer, National Meteorological Centre)
		Mr. D. M. Podibanda
		(Meteorological Officer, Kurunegala Regional Office)
Ms. M. B. Iranganie		■ Ms. M. B. Iranganie
		(Meteorological Officer, Puttalam Regional Office)
Ms. T. D. Malani		Ms. T. D. Malani
		(Communication Officer, Communication Divison)
		■ Mr. W. A. T. K. Palitha de Silva
		(Telecommunication & Radar Technical Officer, Electronic
		Divison)
Training Acquiring knowledges on the latest technology of meteorologica		vledges on the latest technology of meteorological observations in
purposes	order to make p	an of the modernization of meteorological observation of the DOM

	Date 2017	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	12 February (Sun)	Colombo→Narita International Airport	
2	13 February (Mon)	JICA Briefing and orientation Training Orientation	JICA Tokyo Int. Center
3	14 February (Tue)	Meteorology for surface observation Manual surface observation	
4	15 February (Wed)	Automated surface observation	
5	16 February (Thu)	Operation of automated surface observation Data quality check	
6	17 February (Fri)	Visit to the surface observation site Lecture on remote-sensing observations Visit to the observation operation rooms	Head Quarters, JMA Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
7	18 February (Sat)	Cultural visit to Kamakura	
8	19 February (Sun)	Tokyo→Kumagaya	
9	20 February (Mon)	Services of regional meteorological observatories of JMA	Kumagaya Local Meteorological Observatory, JMA

Table 18: Schedule of the 2nd Training

		Manufacturing of meteorological instruments	Meisei Isesaki Factory	
	21 February	Lecture on the JMA meteorological satellite		
10	(Tue)	Site visit of the Doppler Radar for Aviation	Head Quarters, JMA	
10		Weather	Haneda International Airport	
		Haneda→Tsukuba		
	22 February	Upper-air observation		
11	(Wed)	Meteorological instrument calibration	Aerological Observatory	
		Tsukuba→Tokyo	RIC-1sukuba	
	23 February	Analysis on the curent situations of the		
10	(Thu)	meteorological observation in Sri Lanka		
12		Discussion on the modernization of the	JICA Tokyo Int. Center	
		meteorological observation in Sri Lanka		
	24 February	Planning of the modernization of the		
12	(Fri)	meteorological observation in Sri Lanka		
13		Evaluating the training and awarding	JICA Tokyo Int. Center	
		certificates		
1.4	25 February	Navita International Airmant a Calamba		
14	(Sat)	Narita International Airport→Colombo		

The photos of the trainers and trainees in the 1st and 2nd C/P training Programs are shown in Photo 2-1.



Photo 2-1 The trainees, trainers and training conductors of the JICA C/P training program 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration (left)' and 'Meteorological Observations (right)'.

2-6 Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)

■1st Revision (October 14, 2014)

The revision of certain items to make the descriptions more concrete were proposed and approved at the Joint Coordinating Committee (JCC) conducted on October 14, 2014 at the Ministry of Disaster Management.

The original PDM and 1st revised PDM (revised parts: blue color) are attached hereunder.

PROJECT DESIGN MATRIX (PDM) [Original]

Narrative summary	Objectively Verifiable Indicators	Means of Verification	Important
			Assumption
Overall Goal: Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Number of the civil work projects for disaster mitigation that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM 	 Annual reports from Disaster Management Centre (DMC), Irrigation Department, National Building Research Organization, Department of Fisheries and other relevant organizations Interview with the above organizations Weather forecast disseminated through mass media 	
Project Purpose: More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Traceability of meteorology instruments (Availability of national standards/frequency of inspection) Number of missing observation data Accuracy of rainfall forecast in the selected stations. Number of selected station where weekly forecast is enabled in trial basis. 	 Annual administration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Progress reports of the Project Work reports of the short-term experts Work reports of the consultant team Website of DOM 	The government's policy to prioritize the disaster mitigation and reinforce relevant organizations including DOM is continued without significant changes.
 Outputs: 1. Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 3. Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data. 4. Warning criteria is elaborated. 	 1.1 Revision of the inspection and repairing (parts replacing) manual for AWS is completed during the Project. 1.2 Training on inspection and repairing of AWS is conducted for XX% of the relevant DOM staff. 2.1 Data from AWS are obtained and 	 Annual administration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Progress reports of the Project Work reports of the short-term experts Work reports of the consultant team Website of DOM 	Necessary budgets for maintaining meteorological equipment are allocated to DOM in 2015 and 2016.

5. The method of dissemination and contents of	made available to a full extent in	- The draft maintenance manual of	
meteorological information are improved.	DOM.	meteorological equipment	
	2.2 Binary data via. GTS are obtained	- Training records on maintenance of	
	and made available to a full extent in	meteorological equipment	
	DOM during the Project.	- AWS data transmission records	
		- Training records on the short range	
	3.1 At least XX persons in DOM obtain	forecast	
	ability to use the weather guidance.	- Training records on the weekly range	
	3.2 At least XX persons in DOM obtain	forecast	
	ability to forecast short range sea	- Draft warning criteria	
	surface wind.	- Educational material for weather	
	4.1 Number of areas where newly	services	
	designed warning criteria that can		
	meet the past disaster records are		
	prepared.		
	5.1 Number of developed educational		
	material for weather services.		
	5.2 Monthly access number of the		
	DOM Website is increased by		
	XX% or more.		
Activities	Inpu	uts	Pre-conditions

1.1 Review the current situation on maintenance and	Japanese side	Sri Lanka side	The appropriate
calibration of meteorological equipment and identify	Long-term expert:	Administration:	counterpart personnel
the issues to be improved.			to participate in a
1.2 Procure the necessary instruments for calibration of	Chief Adviser / Expert of Weather	Project Director, Project Manager	series of training
meteorological equipment, and establish team(s) for	Services		provided by the
proper maintenance and calibration.		Counterpart personnel:	Project are secured.
1.3 Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	Short-term experts:		
1.4 Conduct training on calibration of conventional and		C/P personnel from the relevant	
AWS equipment.	- Expert of Meteorological	divisions under DOM	
1.5 Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure	Observation		
for manual and AWS observations.	- Expert of Satellite Data Analysis	Facilities and Equipment:	
1.6 Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts	- Expert of Meteorological		
replacing) user's guide for AWS.	Observation Technology	- Office space for the long-term	
1.7 Conduct training on inspection and repairing of AWS.	- Expert of Weather Forecasting /	experts and other experts at the	
1.8 Review the upper air observation schedule.	Weather Guidance Method	DOM headquarters	
2.1 Review the current situation on transmitting and	- Expert of Data Management /	- Office furniture, facilities and	
receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the	Information Technology	equipment	
headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be	- Expert of Weather Information		
improved.	Dissemination	Budgetary Arrangement by DOM:	
2.2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting	- Expert of Website	Administration and local operation	
and receiving between AWS sites and the	- Project Coordinator / Weather	costs	
headquarters.	Forecasting Assistant		
2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and			
identify the issues to be improved.	Machinery and Equipment:		
2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS	- Desktop or Laptop Computers		
3.1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting	- Desktop Computer for WIS		
and identify the issues to be improved.	- Display for Briefing of Weather		
3.2 Conduct training on development of weather guidance	Forecasting		
products for short range (36 hrs.) and weekly weather	- Laptop Computer with data reader		
forecast including their forecast verification	to download data from AWS		
techniques.	logger		

3.3 Prepare weather guidance products for short range an	d - Multifunction machine (Printer /
weekly at the selected stations.	Photocopy)
3.4 Conduct training for short range sea surface win	d - GTS/Message Switching System
forecast utilizing satellite data.	- Travelling Calibration System
3.5 Conduct training on Satellite Animation an	d (temperature and pressure sensors)
Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).	- Second Standard Instruments
3.6 Review and evaluate the seasonal weather forecastin	g (electric temperature and pressure
methods.	sensors)
3.7 Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of	f - Spare parts for AWSs including
weather forecasting operation through integration of	f
various data.	
4.1 Review the current situation on warnings, and identify	
the areas to be improved.	
4.2 Examine methods for the improvement of criteria	
through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of	
Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfal	,
strong winds and occurrence of lightning.	
5.1 Review the contents of current meteorological	
information, and identify the issues to be improved.	
5.2 Improve the contents of meteorological information.	
5.3 Review the timing of information dissemination to	
ships and fleet.	
5.4 Improve the contents of website of the headquarters.	
5.5 Prepare smartphone compatible website.	
5.6 Prepare educational material (ex. website, CDs, leafle	t
and publications) for weather services.	

Narrative summary	Objectively Verifiable Indicators Means of Verification	Important
		Assumption
Overall Goal: Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Number of the civil work projects for disaster mitigation that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM. Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from Annual reports from Disaster Management Centre (DMC), Irrigation Department, National Building Research Organization, Department of Fisheries and other relevant organizations Interview with the above organizations Weather forecast disseminated through mass media 	
Project Purpose: More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.	DOM.1Traceability of meteorology instruments (Availability of national standards/frequency of inspection)- Annual administration reports of DOM2Number of missing observation data- Record of the JCC meeting3Accuracy of rainfall forecast in the selected stations Progress reports of the Project4Number of selected station where weekly forecast is enabled in trial basis Work reports of the consultant team-Work reports of DOM	The government's policy to prioritize the disaster mitigation and reinforce relevant organizations including DOM is continued without significant changes.
 Outputs: 1. Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 	 1.1 Revision of the inspection and repairing (parts replacing) manual for AWS is completed during the Project. 1.2 Training on inspection and repairing - Annual administration reports of DOM - Record of the JCC meetings - Progress reports of the Project - Work reports of the short-term 	Necessary budgets for maintaining meteorological equipment are allocated to DOM in

PROJECT DESIGN MATRIX (PDM) [Revised-1]

3. Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using	of AWS is conducted for 70% of the	experts	2015 and 2016.
obtained meteorological data.	relevant DOM staff.	- Work reports of the consultant team	
4. Warning criteria is elaborated.	2.1 Data from AWS are obtained and	- Website of DOM	
5. The method of dissemination and contents of	made available to a full extent in	- The draft maintenance manual of	
meteorological information are improved.	DOM.	meteorological equipment	
	2.2 Binary data via. GTS are obtained	- Training records on maintenance of	
	and made available to a full extent in	meteorological equipment	
	DOM during the Project.	- AWS data transmission records	
	3.1 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain	- Training records on the weather	
	ability to produce the short range and	guidance (up to 36 hours ahead and	
	weekly weather forecast guidance.	168 hours ahead)	
	3.2 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain	- Draft warning criteria	
	ability to produce the weather	- Educational material for weather	
	forecast guidance of sea wind.	services	
	4.1 Number of areas where newly		
	designed warning criteria that can		
	meet the past disaster records are		
	prepared.		
	5.1 Number of developed educational		
	material for weather services.		
	5.2 Monthly access number of the DOM		
	Website is increased by 30% or		
	more.		
Activities	Іпри	ıts	Pre-conditions
1.1 Review the current situation on maintenance and	(Japanese side)	(Sri Lanka side)	The appropriate
calibration of meteorological equipment and identify	Long-term expert:	Administration:	counterpart personnel
the issues to be improved.	Chief Adviser / Expert of Weather	Project Director, Project Manager	to participate in a
1.2 Procure the necessary instruments for calibration of	Services		series of training
meteorological equipment, and establish team(s) for		Counterpart personnel:	provided by the
proper maintenance and calibration.	Short-term experts:	C/P personnel from the relevant	Project are secured.
1.3 Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	- Expert of Meteorological Observation	divisions under DOM	

1.4 Conduct training on calibration of conventional and	- Expert of Satellite Data Analysis		
AWS equipment.		Facilities and Equipment	
1.5 Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure	Experts dispatched from the consultant:		
for manual and AWS observations.	- Leader / Expert of Weather	- Office space for the long-term	
1.6 Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts	Forecasting	experts and other experts at the	
replacing) user's guide for AWS.	- Expert Weather Guidance	DOM headquarters	
1.7 Conduct training on inspection and repairing of AWS.	- Expert of Meteorological Observation	- Office furniture, facilities and	
1.8 Review the upper air observation schedule.	Technology	equipment	
2.1 Review the current situation on transmitting and	- Expert of Data Management /		
receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the	Information Technology	Budgetary Arrangement by DOM	
headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be	- Expert of Weather Information	Administration and local operation	
improved.	Dissemination	costs	
2.2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting	- Expert of Website		
and receiving between AWS sites and the	- Project Coordinator / Weather		
headquarters.	Forecasting Assistant		
2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and			
identify the issues to be improved.	Machinery and Equipment:		
2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS	- Laptop PC for the training of weather		
3.1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting	guidance method		
and identify the issues to be improved.	- Laptop PC for downloading data from		
3.2 Conduct the training on the development of short	AWS logger		
range (every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours	- Display for Weather Briefing		
ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecast	- Multifunction machine (Printer /		
guidance and verification.	Photocopy)		
3.3 Produce short range (every 12 hours precipitation up to	- Printer		
36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather	- Portable Calibration System (Portable		
forecast guidance at the selected stations.	AWS)(temperature, atmospheric		
3.4 Produce weather forecast guidance of sea wind at the	pressure, humidity, wind direction and		
selected stations.	wind speed)		
3.5 Conduct training on Satellite Animation and	- Standard Meteorological Instrument		
Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).	(electric temperature and pressure		

3.6 Verify and improve the existing methods of seasonal	sensor)
forecast.	- Spare parts for AWS
3.7 Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of	- Laminating machine
weather forecasting operation through integration of	- Laptop PC for the training of editing a
various data.	website
4.1 Review the current situation on warnings, and identify	- Software for editing a website
the areas to be improved.	- Additional lightning protection system
4.2 Examine methods for the improvement of criteria	- Public Address System for Open Class
through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of	- Projector for Open Class
Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfall,	- Spare bulb for Projector
strong winds and lightning strike.	- Extension power cable for Open
5.1 Review the contents of current meteorological	Class-
information and identify the issues to be improved.	- GTS/Message Switching System
5.2 Improve the contents of meteorological information.	(including installation, adjustment, and
5.3 Review the timing of information dissemination to	initial operation instruction)
ships and fleet.	
5.4 Improve the contents of website.	
5.5 Prepare smartphone compatible website.	
5.6 Prepare educational materials (disaster awareness	
materials) for the weather services.	

3. Actual Activities done under the Project and Outputs

Fundamental Policy on the Project Activities

In order to effectively implement the project, all the activities were conducted in accordance with the following policies.



Figure 6: Flowchart of Fundamental Policy

[Policy 1: Consideration of the Organizational and Human Capacity of the DOM]

• To give due consideration to the organizational size of the DOM

A lot of tasks have to be performed with a limited number of staff members available in each of the DOM divisions. Accordingly, the Consultant Team made the activity schedule of the Project considering the task details, working hours (shift working) and monsoon seasons when the meteorological services get busy. The development of human resources is a key element in establishing the framework to continuously carry out the tasks with a limited number of the DOM staff. The Consultant Team also intended to promote the transfer of basic technical skills to the staff and engineers of agencies aside from the DOM.

To transfer practical skills

The transfer of the skills in the Project was in accordance with the weather phenomena and characteristics of the disasters in Ski Lanka, capacity of the DOM, technical level, current observation/forecasting system, disaster prevention system, current situation of the outside users and so on. The practical and basic skills to enable the DOM staff to perform the tasks in the course of or after the Project will mainly be transferred so that the effect of the Project will be continuously brought about even after the termination of the Project. Specifically, the establishment of reasonable observation and quality control systems based on the current meteorological observation policy and methodology and creating the meteorological forecasting and warning using the forecasting technology which can be relatively easily understood and done by the DOM staff with their current level of technical capability while making maximum

use of the existing data, will be performed..

[Policy 2: Strengthening of Collaboration with the Related Organizations]

In order to mitigate the damages caused by natural disasters in Sri Lanka, it is important that the DOM accurately grasps weather conditions through the conduct of meteorological observations and that disaster management agencies provide their services through comprehensive inter-agency collaboration. As it is clear from the organization chart shown below, government agencies responsible for disaster prevention can easily communicate with each other as they are structurally assembled under the Ministry of Disaster Management (MDM) including the DOM. Since the DOM takes the role of providing highly accurate forecasts and warnings and transmitting them to other agencies and organizations in a prompt manner, the information received from the DOM acts as a trigger for the initial responses to be taken by the disaster-related agencies. In the Project, technical transfer of the necessary technical skills to the DOM will be performed so that the collaboration between the DOM and other disaster-related agencies will be strengthened and that the DOM will be able to promote the Sri Lankan people's understanding of the meteorological information provided.

[Policy 3: Promotion of the Utilization of Meteorological Services]



Figure 7: Organization Structure of Ministry of Disaster

The DOM takes on the responsibility of providing accurate and timely meteorological information that meets the users' needs and the policy of this Project is to transfer the technology necessary to achieve the aforementioned task. It is believed that once the users obtain a sufficient level of meteorological knowledge, it will enable them to effectively and efficiently use the meteorological information in a practical sense.

In Sri Lanka, although the importance of meteorological information is deeply recognized, it is a reality that the utilization of this meteorological information in a timely and efficient manner

Source: Ministry of Disaster Management, Sri Lanka (HP)

is difficult. In the Project, brochures (e.g., Beaufort scale with illustrations) and animated cartoons to promote the understanding of meteorological information by students and educators specifically were created for the activities, such as open classes, concerning the dissemination of meteorological information to be held mainly in the area often stricken by torrential rains and at elementary and junior high schools in Colombo.

[Policy 4: Effective Utilization of the Equipment Procured under Japan's Grant Aid]

Utilization of all the equipment procured under the Japan's Grant Aid in the Project was one of the policies for the Project Activities. All the equipment is being handled, maintained and managed by the staff of the department. In addition, the tasks which require electronic technology, such as the operation and maintenance of the upper-air observation equipment and the aviation weather information receiving system are being carried out at the Electronic Maintenance Division. Accordingly, the staff at those divisions has common and technical knowledge of the operation and maintenance of the data communication equipment. The DOM dispatches its engineers to 38 observation stations twice a year to perform cleaning, inspection and preventive maintenance of the Automatic Weather Observation System (AWS) procured under Japan's Grant Aid. The engineers inspect the sensors, data logger and photovoltaic power source of the AWS and check the earth resistance. In order to stably operate the procured equipment on a long-term basis, the routine tasks in place, such as the inspections and troubleshooting steps were set up.

[Policy 5: Efficient Coordination for the Smooth Implementation of the Project]

The DOM needs to incorporate the maintenance and operation cost of the Project into its annual budgetary request which is submitted to the Ministry of Finance and Planning (MOFP) of Sri Lanka in addition to the budget allocation needed for the smooth implementation of the Project and the tax exemption application procedure for the procured equipment. It is necessary to prepare the budgetary request for each year of the Project period by the end of August of every year. Along with the DOM, the estimation of the required annual budget after the commencement of the Project was prepared and provided. The Sri Lankan fiscal year starts on January 1 and ends on December 31. The procedures for applying for the budget for the following year are as follows.

 At the end of August: Submission of the budgetary request to the Ministry of Finance and Planning (MOFP)

 \downarrow

MOFP: budgetary discussion/content confirmation

↓

- MOFP: Submission of all the budgetary requests to the Parliament
- December: Approval of the annual budget for the following year by the Government of Sri Lanka

In addition, in order for the equipment of the Project to be procured and installed in a prompt and efficient manner, the Consultant team proactively provided the required assistance to the DOM. Output 1: Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.

Activities described in the PDM are as below.

- 1.1 Review the current situation on maintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved.
- 1.2 Procure the necessary instruments for calibration of meteorological equipment, and establish team(s) for proper maintenance and calibration.
- 1.3 Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.
- 1.4 Conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment.
- 1.5 Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observations.
- 1.6 Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts replacing) user's guide for AWS.
- 1.7 Conduct training on inspection and repairing of AWS.
- 1.8 Review the upper air observation schedule.

Actual activities for Output 1 are described below.

<Review the current situation on the maintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study conducted, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
- The instruments used for calibration of weather observation instruments were getting outdated.
- The DOM did not have the equipment to be used for the calibration of weather observation instruments.
- The standard instruments used for the calibration of meteorological observation instruments were not calibrated with international standard instruments for a long time.
- There are no guidelines and manuals for the calibration of meteorological instruments.



- The manuals for maintenance were not revised for a long time since the original document
- of the manuals for meteorological instruments were prepared in PDF format only and the revision based on the current situation cannot be done smoothly.
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to JICA and the DOM.



<Procurement of the necessary instruments for the calibration of meteorological equipment>

- All the required documents necessary for the procurement process including the technical specifications for the new instruments for the calibration of meteorological equipment were prepared.
- Procurement of all the planned equipment and standard instruments necessary for the calibration has been completed.
- Observation accuracy of the procured instruments was to be secured as follows.
- Electric Thermometer: Calibration Certificate of the Laboratory certified by ISO/IEC17025
- Electric Barometer: JMA Certificate
- Portable Automatic Weather Station: JMA Certificate

<Establishment of a team responsible for proper maintenance and calibration>

The team responsible for proper maintenance and calibration was established by the staff of the "Conventional Instrument and Observation Management Division" and "Electric Engineering Division."

<Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments>

(Activity of the Long Term Expert)

<Conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment>

(Activity of the Short Term Expert)

The action process of this activity is shown in Figure 8. The consultant experts made the procurement of the standard instruments and the instrument calibration devices for two periods

and conducted trainings for handling of the instruments. As the results, the preparation of the equipment was completed in July 2016. At the same time, in February 2016, the JICA C/P program for meteorological instrument calibration was conducted at RIC-Tsukuba of JMA, and four DOM staff members from the DOM instrument division and the DOM electronics division acquired the latest instrument calibration techniques.

After July 2016 when the procurement of the instrument calibration equipment was finished, the DOM instrument maintenance and calibration team learned the operation of the new equipment. Meanwhile, until then, the instrument calibration had been done in one of the corners of the office of the DOM instrument division and it was inefficient in terms of space. Through the discussion with C/P, a new instrument calibration laboratory room was designed, and an instrument calibration laboratory was constructed in January 2017 with the expenses borne by both JICA and DOM and with the participation of personnel of DOM (Photo 3-1).

In January 2017, two short-term experts visited from RIC-Tsukuba of JMA and conducted the training for 6 days in the new instrument calibration laboratory (Photo 3-1). 5 staff from the DOM instrument division, 4 staff from DOM's related divisions, 5 from the DOM regional offices learned the theory, techniques and operation of instrument calibration. The reason why the staff from the DOM regional offices were participated in the training course is to ensure the sustainability of the project by taking into account the future personnel transfers in the DOM.



Figure 8: Processes up to the Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments

Subsequently, the maintenance and calibration team conducted instrument calibration and sent the result of the calibration to the short-term experts of RIC-Tsukuba. Comments from the experts have contributed to improving the calibration scheme by the DOM staff.

In June 2017, the same two short-term experts from RIC-Tsukuba again gave instrument calibration training for 5 days to 21 DOM staff (7 staff of the instrument division, 4 from related divisions of DOM, 11 from the regional offices).



Photo 3-1 The instrument calibration laboratory, its opening ceremony and the short-term expert training on the meteorological instrument calibration at the laboratory

Through the series of training, the traceability of the instrument has been established with respect to pressure and temperature which was the initial target of the project. The new instrument calibration service was started in the DOM instrument division concerning pressure and temperature. The route of the traceability of barometers is illustrated in Figure 9.



Figure 9: Route of the Traceability of Barometers in DOM

On the other hand, concerning humidity and wind speed, standard instruments and calibration devices were not installed in this project. In the series of the trainings in the project, comparison methods between operational instruments at the DOM regional offices and the DOM sub-standard instruments (portable AWS) procured in the project were introduced. The full traceability for humidity and wind speed instruments, however, has not been established.

<Preparation of "Calibration and Maintenance Manual for Meteorological Instruments" and "Inspection Guideline for Meteorological Instruments">

Generally, it is essential to prepare documents such as guidelines and manuals for surface weather observation and instrument calibration in national meteorological organization, but the DOM has not had systematically compiled documents on them. For this reason, based on the cooperation of long-term experts and consultant teams, training materials prepared by short-term experts, etc. are also incorporated and draft of the "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Calibration", "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Maintenance" and "Guideline to Meteorological Instrument Calibration" were prepared. By these, we aimed at standardization of



ground weather observation and inspection method, and improved quality concerning general ground weather observation including traceability of instruments. The contents of the prepared "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Calibration" and "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Maintenance" are as follows.

- Prepared "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Maintenance"
 - 1) Laboratory/traveling Calibration Manual for Mercury Barometers
 - 2) Laboratory Calibration Manual for Electric Barometers
 - 3) Laboratory Calibration Manual for Glass Thermometers
 - 4) Laboratory Calibration Manual for AWS Electric Thermometers
 - 5) Traveling Calibration Manual for AWS Electric Barometers
 - Traveling Calibration Manual for Glass Thermometers and AWS Electric Thermometers using a Thermos Flask
 - 7) Setting Manual for Index Correction of AWS Electric Barometers
 - 8) Calibration Sheet

- Prepared "Manuals for the Maintenance of Meteorological Instruments"
 - Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System
 - 2) Preventive Maintenance Record for Automatic Weather Observation System
 - Basic Trouble Shooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System
 - Spare Parts (Sensor) Replacement Procedure for Recovery of Automatic Weather Observation System
 - 5) Explanatory note for Meteorological Instruments

Trainings on the calibration of AWS and Synop observation Station were conducted on "Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual"



Based on the results and lessons learned about the training on calibration and maintenance of AWS and Synop

observation stations, draft of the "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Calibration", "Manuals for Meteorological Instrument Maintenance" and "Guideline to Meteorological Instrument Calibration" were revised.

<Monitoring the state of the calibration and maintenance in accordance with the manuals and guidelines created>

- After training "Meteorological Instrument Calibration 2" by the short-term experts in January 2017, 110 glass temperature thermometers, two mercury barometers, and two electric barometers were calibrated by the DOM staff. At the same time, comparative tests of the operational barometers/thermometers with the portable AWS barometer/thermometer were conducted by DOM staff at 5 DOM Regional Offices. These test results were sent to RIC-Tsukuba, and the short-term experts who had visited Sri Lanka in January 2017 provided DOM with comments on the results. As a result, it was confirmed that the DOM staff in this project had acquired the instrument calibration technique on pressure and temperature.
- Comparative observation based on the prepared "Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual" has already been conducted at 8 existing observation stations and the

remaining 14 observation stations are scheduled to be conducted within 2017, as confirmed.

Cleaning inspections based on the prepared "Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System" have been conducted at all observation stations and the implementation rate was 95%

<Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observations>

The contents of the existing standard operating procedure of meteorological instruments and automatic weather observation system have been reviewed and revised as necessary after analyzing the problems.

<Review and revise the user's guide for the inspection and repair (sensor parts replacement) of the automatic weather observation system>

- All manuals to be revised in the project were newly prepared in Microsoft Word Format (doc. format) which can be easily updated since the format of the electronic data of all the existing manuals was "pdf".
- As a result of the discussions with the DOM, the user's guide for the inspection and repair (sensor parts replacement) of the AWS were reviewed and revised mainly by improving the following items.
- Visualization by inserting photos and figures;
- Correction by model change of wind direction/speed sensor;
- Descriptions of inspection items (grounding resistance measurement etc.) added after the handover of the Automatic Weather Observation System (AWOS) procured under Japan's grant aid; and,
- Selection and editing of the most important parts from the existing manufacturer's manuals.



In accordance with the following procedures, the review and revision of the "Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System" and "Preventive Maintenance Record for Automatic Weather Observation System" were implemented.

- 1) Implementation of inspection on trial basis with the DOM using existing manual
- 2) Identification of the points to be revised from the existing manuals
- 3) Implementation of the experimental re-inspection using the revised manual
- 4) Implementation of re-verification of the revised content and proofreading

In accordance with the following procedures, the review and revision of the "Basic Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System" and "Spare Parts (Sensor) Replacement Procedure for Recovery" were implemented.

- 1) Preparation of simulated fault condition using real equipment.
- 2) Validation of inspection procedure using existing operation and maintenance manual
- 3) Identification of the points to be revised from the existing operation and maintenance manuals
- 4) Implementation of re-verification of the revised content and proofreading

Since the existing operation and maintenance manuals (prepared by the equipment manufacturer) of the automatic weather observation system had considerable thickness and is composed of several volumes, it was difficult to figure out the required section/s needed and peruse it carefully. Therefore, it was not used frequently in daily maintenance. Only the important page is selected as an outline, a photograph or a diagram is newly inserted so that it is easy to understand, and "Basic Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System" and "Spare Parts (Sensor) Replacement Procedure for Recovery" were reedited.



<Construction of additional lightning protection poles>

Since three observation stations, Ratnapura, Polonnaruwa and Aralagatonwila, had frequent problems due to lightning strikes in the Automated Weather Observation System and communication system that was established through the Grant Aid from Japan, the installation of the following additional lightning protection facilities were implemented in collaboration with DOM Electric Engineering Division Staff through practical training in this project.

- ♦ Lightning Rod: 15m height
- ♦ Connection between lightning rod and earth rod: Copper flat bar
- ♦ Earth resistance value: 5Ω or less
- ♦ Grounding Type: "Common Earth" with additional earth rod and existing earth rod interconnected



Additional earth rod and existing earth rod interconnected

"Common Earth (Equipotential Bonding)" has the advantages described below

<In case "Common Earth" is not adopted>

When lightning strikes the lightning rod, if each earth is disowned in the figure on the right, a potential difference occurs between the earths. Due to this potential difference, an electric current flows to the equipment connected to another earth, and the equipment is damaged.

<In case "Common Earth" is adopted>

When the earth electrodes are connected to each other, lightning strikes the lightning rod, a potential difference does not occur between the respective earths. Therefore, the lightning current does not flow to other equipment, and damage to the equipment can be prevented.



Figure 10: Advantages of Common Earth

	Before installation of Additional Lightning Protection (November 2009 – February 2015)	After installation of Additional Lightning Protection (February 2015 – June 2017)
Frequency of damage caused by lightning at Ratnapura, Polonnaruwa and Aralagatonwila	9 times	None

Table 19: Number of Failures of the Equipment due to Lightning





<Review the upper air observation schedule> (Activity of the Long Term Expert)

DOM is implementing upper-air observations on pressure, temperature, humidity, wind speed and wind direction by using the GPS radiosonde iMS-100 manufactured by Meisei Electric Company of Japan and a data processing PC, which was introduced by the WMO Voluntary Cooperation Program in 2009. The observation is operated at the DOM head office in Colombo (Figure 11) at 11:30 AM local time (06:00 UTC) at three times per week (Monday, Wednesday and Friday). Two DOM observers and one helper are engaged in the radiosonde observation (Figure 11).

Pilot balloon observations are being made for measuring lower to middle levels winds by the way that observers manually track a rising-up smaller balloon using a theodolite. Four DOM

observation sites at Mannar, Trincomalee, Hambantota and the DOM Head office in Colombo are implementing pilot balloon observations (Figure 11). The observations are made three times per day at 05:30, 11:30 and 17:30 in local time (00, 06, 12 UTC). The pilot balloon observations in Colombo at 11:30 on Mondays, Wednesdays and Fridays are currently not being implemented, so as not to overlap with radiosonde observations. Two observers and one helper at each observation station are engaged in the pilot-balloon observation.

The observation data of the radiosonde and pilot balloons are sent to the GTS of WOM immediately after the observations in order to exchange the data among national meteorological organizations in the world.





The long-term expert surveyed the current situation of the radiosonde observation in Colombo, and also visited Mannar in September and Trincomalee in March 2017 to survey the pilot balloon observations. On the basis of these surveys, he submitted DOM the report recommending the implementation of daily radiosonde observation.

The daily radiosonde observation, however, has not been started yet due to shortage of fund and personnel in DOM. It was also found that the safety at the time of filling up hydrogen into a balloon in DOM was not sufficient.



Photo 3-2 launching of a radiosonde, data processing and Pilot balloon launching/observation.

A short-term expert of JMA was invited to DOM for more detailed survey on the situation of the current upper-air observation in DOM in June 2017 (Photo 3-3). The training on the latest

upper-air observation systems was also conducted. 22 staff members of DOM (2 of the DOM Radar Division, 14 from the relevant DOM divisions and 6 from the DOM regional offices) were participated in the training and the results of the discussions on improvement of the current upper-air observation of DOM were summarized as the report, which was submitted to the Direct General of DOM.



Photo 3-3 The short-term expert training "Upper-air Observation".

The outlines of the report are as follows,

- The schedule of the radiosonde observations of DOM: three times per week, should be shifted to daily observation. Until the daily observation throughout a year is established, daily operation should be made during two inter-monsoon seasons, when the risk of heavy rainfall is higher than in the Monsoon seasons,
- It is reasonable that the existing pilot-balloon observations are continued in order to monitor the mesoscale circulation over Sri Lanka. Installation of a wind profile network system should be discussed in a mid-term or long-term action plan of DOM,
- The hydrogen gas generator at the DOM Head Office was installed in 1974, and has sometimes made trouble. It should be replaced to a new one as soon as possible.

- A color printer is required to make prints of figures of observation results. A color printer will be supplied from JICA by the end of July 2017,
- The figures of Emagram, Tephygram and relating observation results should be automatically saved in the Meisei analysis computer. The short-term expert will ask Meisei Co. the way to save the figures automatically in the analysis program,
- A buoyancy weight is required to fill hydrogen gas into balloons more easily and more safely. A 1000-gr buoyancy weight was provided from the short-term expert.
- More detailed training on radiosonde-observation should be given to more senior officers in DOM.

More detailed guide-line and manuals on the upper-air observation should be prepared. The observation manual for iMS-100 was prepared in JMA and was provided to DOM from JMA.

<Trainings for "Output 1">

(1) Trainings conducted by the Consultant Team

Records of trainings on the Output 1 are summarized in the following table.

Date	Time	Venue	Attendee(s)	Conductor	Contents
January 23, 2015	9:00-10:30 14:30-16:30	Electronics Engineer's Office	4	T. Endo	 Installation Method of Lightning Protection System
January 28, 2015	12:00-20:00	Polonnaruwa Station	4	T. Endo	 Installation Work of Lightning Protection System
January 29, 2015	07:00-17:00	Aralaganwila Station	4	T. Endo	 Installation Work of Lightning Protection System
July 09, 2015	10:00-12:00	Instrument Division	2	T. Endo	 Operation & Maintenance of Standard Instruments
July 10, 2015	11:00-12:30, 14:00-15:30	Instrument Division	3	T. Endo	 Operation & Maintenance of Standard Instruments & Portable AWS
December 4, 2015	10:30-11:30	Instrument Division	5	T. Endo	 Calibration Method and Training Schedule
December 8, 2015	10:30-13:30	Instrument Division	4	T. Endo	 Installation and Observation of Portable AWS
December 10, 2015	14:30-16:00	Instrument Division	4	T. Endo	 Installation and Observation of Portable AWS
December 14, 2015	14:30-16:00	Instrument Division	6	T. Endo	Data Download from

T - I - I -	00. T		NA - !	- · · ·	O = 1 ² 1 ² − − 4 ² − −	 A - 4	I .			—	
I anie	יחי	rainina	Waintenance	ana	Calibration	VIATAArAIAA	າເດລເ	Uncerv	ation	FUIN	nment
Iapic	Z U. I	rannı.	mannenance	and	Calibration		noar		auon	Luui	
						<u> </u>	,				
					Portable AWS						
-------------------	----------------------------	--	----	----------------------	---						
December 16, 2015	9:00-16:00	Instrument Division	6	T. Endo	 Field Observation by Portable AWS 						
December 17, 2015	10:00-12:00 13:30-15:00	Instrument Division	6	T. Endo	 Comparisons of Observation Data 						
April 28, 2016	10:00-11:00	Instrument Division	4	T. Endo	 Discussion about the outline of weather observation guideline 						
May 2, 2016	10:00-11:30	Electronics Engineer's Office	2	T. Endo	 Practice & Review of Cleaning/Maintenance Procedure 						
May 2, 2016	13:30-14:30	Instrument Division	3	T. Endo	 Discussion about the outline of weather observation guideline 						
May 3, 2016	13:30-14:30	Instrument Division	3	T. Endo	 Discussion about contents of weather observation guideline 						
May 6, 2016	10:00-16:00	Instrument Division & Observation Division	12	T. Endo	 Additional Training on the calibration method 						
May 7, 2016	9:00-12:30	Instrument Division & Observation Division	10	T. Endo	 Additional Training on the calibration method 						
July 12, 2016	15:00-16:00	Electronics Engineer's Office	2	T. Endo	 Discussion about Cleaning/Maintenance Manual 						
July 13, 2016	14:30-15:30	Instrument Division & Observation Division	3	T. Endo	 Implementation of Observation Data Comparison 						
March 31, 2017	11:00-12:30	Conference Room, Observation Field	23	Y. Uchida T. Endo	 Cleaning/Maintenance for Automatic Weather Station 						

(2) Trainings conducted by the short-term experts and the JICA C/P training Programs

"Meteorological instrument calibration 1" and "Meteorological instrument calibration 2" were implemented by short-term experts. "Meteorological instrument calibration" and "Meteorological observations" were conducted as the JICA C/P training Programs.

<Remarks on "Output 1">

As a summary of the Output 1, the following table shows the items the DOM is able to implement under the Project and the items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

Table 21: Remarks on "Output 1"

Output 1: Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.

Items the DOM is able to implement under the Project

- To establish the traceability of observation instrument through the implementation of higher accurate calibration using new standard instrument, calibration equipment, prepared guidelines and manuals, and newly prepared instrument inspection room
- To steadily implement the tasks regarding the automatic weather observation system and the manual observation, and smoothly conduct the training on these tasks, by using the revised guidelines/manuals for easy and comprehensive understanding.

These guidelines/manuals were bound, and distributed to relevant departments of the DOM including the local weather observation stations.

- To update the revised guidelines/manual any time as necessary, since the data of revised guidelines/manuals is stored in an updatable format (Microsoft, word format)
- To take effective countermeasures against lightning in observation stations which are vulnerable to lightning strikes, since it was demonstrated how to reduce the damage caused by lightning strike by adding the common earth type lightning rod.

Items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project

- To ensure observation accuracy continuously through the periodic calibration of the maintained meteorological observation instruments at an internationally accredited test center such as RIC -Tsukuba.
- To establish traceability for the AWS hygrometer and rain gauge, since the standard instrument and calibration equipment are not installed now.
- To periodically conduct training for staff in charge of maintenance of the automatic weather observation system and manual observation, and confirm procedures and points in order to reduce mistakes.
- To occasionally reflect the lessons learned by each staff in daily work to the revised guidelines/manuals in order to maintain and manage the automated weather observation system more smoothly and accurately.
- To conduct daily upper air observation by securing budget and personnel from the viewpoint of improving accuracy of weather forecast and international cooperation

 Output 2: Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.

Activities described in the PDM are as below.

- 2.1 Review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be improved.
- 2.2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters.
- 2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved.
- 2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS.

Actual activities for Output 2 are described below.

<Review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be improved>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
- Operation of the existing VSAT satellite data communication system is unstable, and it is frequently discontinued.
- VSAT satellite data communication system manufactured by Gilat Satellite Networks Ltd. of Israel.
- Since the communication satellite (INSAT3E) currently in use has already passed its service life of 10 years, it needs to be replaced within the next few years as its communication performance has deteriorated.
- For migration of the communication satellite with a new one, technical supports from the Gilat agent in India is indispensable and the cost (communication satellite replacement assisting cost) was estimated to be about 10.3 million yen (100,000 USD including one-year support)
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.

<Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters>

The following items concerning the backup of the existing VSAT system for transmitting the observation data between the Automatic Weather Observation System and the DOM Head Office were examined. As a result, it was decided to adopt IP-VPN as the backup of the existing VSAT system.

- Confirmation of available communication methods for observation data transmission of the existing Automatic Weather Observation System
- 2) Confirmation of service area, fee, failure rate etc. of various communication services from the communication service providers in Sri Lanka
- 3) Implementation of transmission/reception experiment of observation data

IP-VPN has the advantages described below

Since an IP-VPN has some advantages such as "definition of routing path, quick fault detection and switching alternative path" as indicated in the following figure, an IP-VPN also gives subscribers stable and fast data communication. Although the data communication speed of the IP-VPN depends upon the number of users and frequency of use, the network

is speed hardly significantly affected by usage of other the subscribers since an IP-VPN is only utilized by certain subscribers of the closed network of telecommunications carriers using Internet Protocol. Furthermore, it is possible to decrease the threat of cyber attacks due to the utilization of an IP-VPN.



Figure 12: Definition of Routing Path and Quick Fault Detection & Switching Alternative Path

A system network configuration diagram before and after the change to the system network using IP-VPN is attached hereunder.

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report



Figure 13: System Network Configuration Diagram

The required technical specifications for selecting an IP-VPN service provider and a procedure flow chart for transitioning from the VSAT system to IP-VPN attached below were prepared.



Figure 14: Operation Flow Chart for the Transition from VSAT to IP-VPN

<Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
- Procurement of spare parts was difficult since the support period by the hardware (PC) manufacturer was already expired.
- The exiting GTS/MSS did not support the BUFR format, which is the international meteorological code newly designated by the World Meteorological Organization (WMO), and recommended by the member countries.
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.

<Replacement of the existing GTS Message Switch System>

Technical Specifications of a new GTS Message Switch System necessary for the procurement

procedures were prepared and the following equipment was procured by JICA. Equipment installation work and training completed on 18th December 2015.

- ♦ GTS Message Switch System
- ♦ Serial port Terminal Server
- ♦ Data Visualization Terminal
- ♦ Data Input Terminal
- ♦ Firewall Unit
- ♦ Compact Uninterruptible Power Supply

Project for the Improvement of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka Final Report



Before



Figure 15: Replacement of the existing GTS Message Switch System

Training on the operation and maintenance of GTS Message Switch System by the equipment supplier engineers was implemented.





- First Training
 Schedule: December 10 December 18, 2015
 Training Content: Operation and Maintenance of GTS Message Switch System
- ♦ Second Training

Schedule: May 02 – May 06, 2017

Training Content: Training on Operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch (Visual Weather, Moving Weather module of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch) and Access of WAFS (World Area Forecast System) data via the Secure SADIS FTP, BUFR Data Transmission

<Trainings for "Output 2">

Records of the trainings on the Output 2 are summarized in the following table.

Date	Time	Venue	Attendee(s)	Conductor	Contents
January 21, 2015	9:30-12:00	Server Room	2	T. Endo	 Trial System for AWS IP-VPN Connection
January 23, 2015	10:30-12:00	Electronics Engineer's Room	2	T. Endo	 Technical Specification of GTS/MSS

Table 22: Training: Data Transmitting and Receiving Capacity

July 09, 2015	15:00-16:00	Server Room	2	T. Endo	 Stability Test of IP-VPN Connection
July 13, 2016	13:30-14:30	Electronics Engineer's Office	2	T. Endo	 Discussion about Tender Document for new communication system of AWS
May 02, 2017	9:00-16:00	Conference Room	22	T. Endo Supplier's Engineer	 Standard Operation and Setting method on the software module for GTS/MSS

<Remarks on "Output 2">

As a summary of the Output 2, the following table shows the items the DOM is able to implement under the Project and the items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

Table 23: Remarks on "Output 2"

Output 2: Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.

Items the DOM is able to implement under the Project

 To establish the stable real-time data transmission/reception of AWS observation data using IP-VPN in only about 10% data missing rate.

(From January 2016 it became impossible to use the VSAT communication satellite, so it was not possible to receive observation data in real time from all the automatic weather observation systems except Colombo)

 To receive meteorological data of the BUFR format recommended by the WMO to the member countries and utilize for weather forecasting

Items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project

- To connect the IP-VPN line between the DOM head office and all the automatic weather observation systems as soon as possible and to start receiving real-time observation data from the automatic weather observation system.
- To record all troubles about GTS / MSS even if it is trivial content and utilize the record in the future trouble shooting

 Output 3: Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.

Activities described in the PDM are as below.

- 3.1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.
- 3.2 Conduct the training on the development of short range (every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecast guidance and verification.
- 3.3 Produce short range (every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecast guidance at the selected stations.
- 3.4 Produce weather forecast guidance of sea wind at the selected stations.
- 3.5 Conduct training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).
- 3.6 Verify and improve the existing methods of seasonal forecast.
- 3.7 Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of various data.

Actual activities for Output 3 are described below.

<Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
- Acquisition of the Grid Point Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka (DOM WRF) at the National Weather Center was impossible.
- The DOM had no experience for production of Weather Forecast Guidance.
- Weather forecasts of the DOM were qualitative (not quantitative).
- Meteorological Satellite Images of Chinese Fengyun (FY) and Communication, Ocean and Meteorological Satellite (COMS) of Korea were directly received for forecasting (Japanese Meteorological Satellite, Himawari could not be received).
- The Grid Point Value of the Numerical Weather Prediction (NWP) of Japan Meteorological Agency (JMA) was not received for forecasting.

- Number of the DOM personal who can operate Linux system was a few.
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.

<Training for Weather Forecast Guidance>



- In order to produce Weather Forecast Guidance and conduct the required trainings, the following technical specification of the equipment and software were obtained under the Project.
- Processor of the PC: Intel Core i7 or later
- Software required for the implementation of the Project:
- Excel 2010 or later
- Linux (CentOS6.5, Ubuntu 14.04.1)
- gcc, gfortran, wgrib2
- Virtual Machine (VMware Player, VMware Tools)
- for the creation of the required environment for the production of Weather Forecast Guidance and the required trainings, the following support activities such as the installation

of the software in the PCs for Weather Forecast Guidance procured under the Project were made.

- Configuration of Excel for Regression Analysis
- Selection of Excel Option and Add-In
- Setting of Analysis Tool
- Selection of Data Tab on the toolbar of Excel.
- Click on Data Analysis to display the Regression Analysis tool.
- Download and save Linux (CentOS6.5) which is used for the development of program.
- Installation of the Virtual Machine (VMware Player) in Windows in order to use Linux.
- Virtual Machine (VMware Player)
- Download, installation and setup of VMware-player-6.0.1-1379776.exe (CPU: 2GHz or more, Memory: 2GB or more, Capacity of Hard disk: 100GB or more).
- Installation and setup of the VMware Player (By executing the VMware Player's file, an installation wizard opens. Following the instructions of the wizard, set up the VMware player)
- Set-up of Linux (CentOS6.5 or Ubuntu 14.04.1 LTS 64 bits Desktop) and VMware Tools in the Virtual Machine on Windows.
 - Selection of "Production of New Virtual Machine" in the VMware Player.
- To set the DVD which contains the file CentOS6.5 and to install the CentOS6.5 in a PC with Internet connection.
- The software "VMware Tools" is automatically installed when connected to the Internet. In case there is no Internet connection, un-pack the packed file of VMware Tools and install the un-packed file.
- ✤ Installation of the wgrib2 file in order to decode files in grib2 format.
- Installation of Fortran to create the program for the Regression Analysis in Linux
- Installation of Perl in Linux (# yum install perl)

<Production of Weather Forecast Guidance>

In order to product Weather Forecast Guidance, the methods indicated in the following table were adopted.

Weather Forecast	Production of Regression	Production of Weather	Method
Guidance	Equation	Forecast Guidance	Wiethou
Short Range and Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance	Grid Point Value of Numerical Weather Prediction & Observation Data	Grid Point Value of Numerical Weather Prediction substituted into the Regression Equation	MOS: Model Output Statistics
Seasonal Forecast Guidance	Grid Point Value of Reanalysis Data of Sea Surface Temperature & Observation Data	Grid Point Value of Numerical Weather Prediction (Sea Surface Temperature) substituted into the Regression Equation	PPM: Prefect Prognosis Method

Table 24: Methods for Production of Weather Forecast Guidance

<Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for precipitation was produced.

 Comparison between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy

Comparison of "Multiple Correlation Coefficient" and "Intercept" between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale (GPV) for the Data Accuracy with observation on data of the existing automatic weather observation systems (AWS) was implemented. In order to conduct the comparison indicated above, the following predictors of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale (GPV) were used.

- Wind Velocity: 850hPa and 200hPa
- Wind Shear: 500-600hPa, 400-700hPa, 400-600hPa, 300-850hPa, 300-700hPa, 300-600hPa, 300-500hPa, 300-400hPa and 200-600hPa
- Relative Humidity: 900hPa, 500hPa and 400hPa
- Precipitation: Surface

The results are as shown in the table below. According to the result, the Grid Point Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka (DOM WRF) was used for the Weather Forecast Guidance.

Table 25: Comparison of "Correlation Coefficient" and "Intercept" between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy

and of e (new an encoder e jotenn) for the Bala / total acj					
	GPV of the Regional NWP	GPV of GFS (NOAA			
	Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka	Global Forecast System)			
Multiple Correlation Coefficient	0.839	0.763			
Intercept	9.966	10.979			

- (2) Grid Point Distance of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale: 10km
- (3) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC and 12UTC
- Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:00 and 18:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)





- (4) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Colombo and Ratnapura
- (5) As a result of analysis and examination, it was clarified that accuracy of Weather Forecast Guidance was improved by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons. For this reason, it was decided to carry out the Weather Forecast Guidance separately for each Monsoon Season shown in the right figure without setting the Weather Forecast Guidance to be one throughout the year.

Multiple Correlation Coefficient of the Weather Forecast Guidance to be one throughout

the year is as follows.

Table 26: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (one throughout the year)

	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
One throughout the year	0.45	0.41	0.36

Table 27: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (one throughout the year)

	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
One throughout the year	0.44	0.37	0.35

- (6) The predictors that give the highest Multiple Correlation Coefficient were extracted by the developed program. Details of the predictors used for the Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation are shown in Annex 9.
- (7) Confirmation of the accuracy of the Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons

In order to confirm the accuracy of the Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation, Multiple Correlation Coefficient and Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) by dividing into 4



Monsoon Seasons were calculated. The results are as shown in the tables below.

Table 28: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hoursahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.52	0.59	0.52
1st Inter Monsoon	0.57	0.62	0.42
South-West Monsoon	0.90	0.43	0.54
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.66	0.69	0.62

Table 29: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Mongoon Songon	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.50	0.45	0.45
1st Inter Monsoon	0.58	0.64	0.53
South-West Monsoon	0.64	0.55	0.49
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.55	0.54	0.57

Table 30: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)

	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
Monsoon Season	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
North-East Monsoon	8.5mm	2.6mm	8.8mm
1st Inter Monsoon	10.4mm	4.9mm	11.6mm
South-West Monsoon	4.5mm	6.3mm	3.9mm
2nd Inter Monsoon	8.0mm	7.5mm	8.3mm

Table 31: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Mangaan Saagan	12hours Precipitation	24hours Precipitation	36hours Precipitation
	Forecast	Forecast	Forecast
North-East Monsoon	8.3mm	9.0mm	5.8mm
1st Inter Monsoon	8.6mm	9.1mm	9.0mm
South-West Monsoon	6.1mm	10.6mm	7.2mm
2nd Inter Monsoon	7.9mm	11.3mm	7.8mm

In order to evaluate the accuracy of the data calculated by the Weather Forecast Guidance, the following comparisons among data of the Observation, the DOM WRF and the Weather Forecast Guidance with several real events more than 50mm/24h were conducted. The results of comparisons are indicated in the tables attached hereunder.

Table 32: Comparisons among Data of the Observation, the DOM WRF and the Weather Forecast Guidance

North East Monsoon

Event	Observation (mm/day)	DOM WRF (mm/day)	Weather Forecast Guidance (mm/24h)
10 Jan.2012	78.5	0	13.6
9 Jan 2013	52.0	35.8	31.0

1st Inter Monsoon

Event	Observation (mm/day)	DOM WRF (mm/day)	Weather Forecast Guidance (mm/24h)
10 Apr.2012	62.0	7.3	16.7
12 Apr.2012	62.0	9.3	22.7
15 Apr.2012	63.5	0.0	29.7
10 Apr 2013	54.5	5.1	14.9

South West Monsoon

Event	Observation (mm/day)	DOM WRF (mm/day)	Weather Forecast Guidance (mm/24h)
7 May 2013	125.5	73.7	125.5

2nd Inter Monsoon

Event	Observation (mm/day)	DOM WRF (mm/day)	Weather Forecast Guidance (mm/24h)
17 Oct.2011	55.0	4.0	8.7
1 Nov 2012	58.0	91.8	49.0

(8) Operation using the semi-automated Linux program for Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was started.

As a result of verifying the forecast value by the short-term weather forecast guidance for Colombo rainfall (24 hours) between April 4, 2017 and July 18, 2017, the root mean square error between the forecast value and the observation value was 13.1 mm.

<Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance for precipitation was produced.

- (1) Grid Point Distance of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale: 10km
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC
- Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
- (3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Puttalam and Pottuvil
- (4) As a result of analysis and examination, it was clarified that the accuracy of Weather Forecast Guidance was improved by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons. For this reason, it was decided to carry out the Weather Forecast Guidance separately for each Monsoon Season.
- (5) The predictors that give the highest Multiple Correlation Coefficient were extracted by the developed program. Details of the predictors used for the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance are shown in Annex 9.



(6) Confirmation of the accuracy of the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance In order to confirm the accuracy of the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance, Multiple Correlation Coefficient and Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons were calculated. The results are as shown in the tables below.

Table 33: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea
Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Puttalam (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.64	0.56
1st Inter Monsoon	0.70	0.63
South-West Monsoon	0.73	0.72
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.68	0.65

Table 34: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) SeaWind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pottuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.75	0.70
1st Inter Monsoon	0.74	0.67
South-West Monsoon	0.65	0.69
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.69	0.74

Table 35: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Puttalam (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.6m/s	0.6m/s
1st Inter Monsoon	0.5m/s	0.6m/s
South-West Monsoon	0.4m/s	0.4m/s
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.7m/s	0.7m/s

Table 36: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pottuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.5m/s	0.5m/s
1st Inter Monsoon	0.7m/s	0.7m/s
South-West Monsoon	1.3m/s	0.9m/s
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.8m/s	0.7m/s

<Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was produced.

- Grid Point Distance of the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point value: 0.5 degree
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC
- Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
- (3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Colombo and Ratnapura
- (4) As a result of analysis and examination, it was clarified that the accuracy of Weather Forecast Guidance was improved by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons. For this reason, it was decided to carry out the Weather Forecast Guidance separately for each Monsoon Season.
- (5) The predictors that give the highest Multiple Correlation Coefficient were extracted by the developed program. Details of the predictors used for the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation are shown in Annex 9.
- (6) Confirmation of the accuracy of the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation



In order to confirm the accuracy of the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast

Guidance for Precipitation, Multiple Correlation Coefficient and Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons were calculated. The results are as shown in the tables below.

Table 37: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forec	ast
Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	

Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.44
1st Inter Monsoon	0.32
South-West Monsoon	0.353
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.33

Table 38: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather ForecastGuidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.40
1st Inter Monsoon	0.44
South-West Monsoon	0.46
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.26

Table 39: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) WeatherForecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	9.9mm
1st Inter Monsoon	14.0mm
South-West Monsoon	*
2nd Inter Monsoon	*

X RMSE figure shall be calculated after the project completion as the relevant data is currently not available yet as of this time.

Table 40: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast		
North-East Monsoon	8.6mm		
1st Inter Monsoon	11.3mm		
South-West Monsoon	*		
2nd Inter Monsoon	*		

X RMSE figure shall be calculated after the project completion as the relevant data is currently not available yet as of this time.

<Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was produced.

- Grid Point Distance of the CFS (NOAA Climate Forecast System) Grid Point value: 0.5 degree
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC
- Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
- (3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Colombo and Ratnapura
- (4) The predictors used for the Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation

Sea Surface Temperature (SST) up to 9 months ahead of the NOAA Climate Forecasting System at 5 points indicated on the map below.





Figure 18: 5 points of Sea Surface Temperature (SST) up to 9 months ahead of the NOAA Climate Forecasting System (5) Annual variation of Monthly Mean Accumulated Rainfall at Colombo and Monthly Mean Sea Surface Temperatures (SST) at 5 Points in the World

January



February





March

April





June





August



89



September

October





November

December



<Conduct training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)>

The "SATAID training" was aiming for the forecaster and meteorologists of DOM to acquire the skill to make analysis of the tropical weather using satellite and numerical weather prediction data which are provided from the HimawariCast receiver and the JMA GSM data. In advance of the "SATAID training", the "lecture on the basic meteorology" by the long-term expert and the "theoretical/operation tropical meteorology trainings" by the short-term experts were conducted (Photo 3-4). It was ensured that the forecasters and meteorologists who attended these lecture and trainings have acquired the skill from the results of the tests and inquiries after the lecture and trainings.



Photo 3-4 Participants in "Lecture on basic meteorology", "Training on theoretical tropical meteorology" and "Training on operational tropical meteorology" (from left to right).

<Monitoring of Weather Forecasts>

- Discussions with the DOM on the preparation and issuance of Weather Forecasts were conducted.
- Contents of the weather briefings of the DOM were improved with various kinds of data from Overseas, meteorological satellite data of Himawari (a Japanese meteorological satellite), products of the DOM WRF.

<Trainings for "Output 3">

(1) Trainings conducted by the Consultant Team

Records of the trainings on the Output 3 are summarized in the following table.

Date	Time	Venue	Attendee(s)	Conductor	Contents
January 19, 2015	14:00-16:00	Conference Room	11	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi T. Endo	 PCs Configuration Weekly 168h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance
January 20, 2015	16:30-18:30	Forecasting Centre	1	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 Weekly 168h Rain Weather Guidance
January 21, 2015	09:00-10:30	Conference Room	5	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 Weather Forecast Guidance Introduction & Basic Knowledge, Feature of WRF (NWP Model)
January 23, 2015	09:00-10:45	Conference Room	9	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance
January 27, 2015	14:00-16:00	Conference Room	8	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance
January 29, 2015	09:30-11:00	Conference Room	7	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Guidance (Point to Point & Point to Mesh: approx.60km) Weekly 168h Rain Weather Guidance
January 29, 2015	14:00-15:30	Forecasting Centre	2	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance
January 30, 2015	09:30-11:00	Conference Room	7	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 Required Procedures for Weather Forecast Guidance Sea Wind Weather Guidance
July 02, 2015	10:30-12:00	Conference Room	5	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon, South-West Monsoon)
July 07, 2015	09:30-11:30	Conference Room	5	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon, South-West Monsoon)
July 10, 2015	10:45-11:15	Conference Room	6	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi	 12, 24 and 36h Rain Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon,

Table 41: Training: Weather Guidance

					South-West Monsoon) for the routine work
May 04, 2016	09:00-12:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	8	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi M. Yamauchi	 Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance by PPM (Prefect Prognosis Method)
May 04, 2016	13:30-16:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	8	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi M. Yamauchi	 Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance by PPM (Prefect Prognosis Method)
November 16, 2016	08:30-10:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	6	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi M. Yamauchi	 Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon, South-West Monsoon)
November 17, 2016	08:30-10:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	4	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi M. Yamauchi	 Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon, South-West Monsoon)
November 17, 2016	08:30-10:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	4	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi M. Yamauchi	 Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance (1st Inter Monsoon, 2nd Inter Monsoon, North-East Monsoon, South-West Monsoon)
March 16, 2017	14:00-15:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	2	N. Noguchi T. Endo	 PCs Configuration (Installation & Initial Settings of Linux OS on Virtual Machine)
March 17, 2017	14:30-15:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	2	N. Noguchi T. Endo	 PCs Configuration (Installation & Initial Settings of Linux OS on Virtual Machine)
March 22, 2017	14:00-15:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	4	N. Noguchi T. Endo	 Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance (Download and import procedure of GFS data)
March 28, 2017	14:00-15:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	5	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi T. Endo	 Weekly Weather Forecast Guidance (Download and import procedure of GFS data)
March 29, 2017	14:00-15:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	5	Y. Uchida N. Noguchi T. Endo	 Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance (Download and import procedure of GFS data)

					Installation and Operation of
					Semi-automatic Linux
April 28, 2017 1	14:00-15:00	National00MeteorologicalCenter (NMC)	2	Y. Uchida	Program for Short Range
				N. Noguchi	(Colombo: every 12 and 24
				T. Endo	hours precipitation) Weather
					Forecast Guidance with the
					WRF Grid Point Vale

- (2) Trainings conducted by the long-term expert and short-term experts
- Lecture on basic meteorology

Since universities in Sri Lanka have no meteorological class, it is difficult for DOM staff to obtain the knowledge of meteorology. Based on the request from the DOM, the long-term expert started the weekly lecture on basic meteorology for 24 forecasters and meteorologists of DOM in January 2015 and finished it in August 2016. The participants in the lecture have obtained the basics of meteorology of the level from the undergraduate to the first grade of graduate.

- Training on theoretical tropical meteorology
 The short-term expert of JAMSTEC implemented the training on the latest theories concerning the tropical meteorology.
- Training on operational tropical meteorology
 The short-term expert of JMA implemented the training on the operational skill of the tropical meteorology using JRA-55 reanalysis data and its analysis tool "iTacs".
- Training on SATAID

The training was conducted as described in <Training of the Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)>

Training on "QPE" and "QPF"

In the project seminar "Next Generation Weather Services for Rainfall Disaster Mitigation in Sri Lanka" on 25 July 2017, two short-term experts made presentation on the theories and technologies necessary for disseminating weather information against disasters induced by heavy rainfall. In DOM, they also conducted trainings with



Photo 3-5 Trainings of "QPE" and "QPF"

the same contents as the seminar for forecasters and meteorologists of DOM. The trainees

have understood the importance of on-line QPE and QPF at flooding or landslide events.

(3) Voluntary lectures by the Japanese Researcher (Arranged by the Long-term Expert)

The DOM staff have little opportunity to touch with latest meteorology. Four voluntary lectures were held by Japanese meteorological researchers, who visited Sri Lanka, so that the DOM staff could learn latest meteorology (Photo 3-6). Table 41 shows the list of the lectures.

Lecture	Name	Position	Date
Digital Climate Rainfall Map	Prof. Akiyo YATAGAI	Nagoya University	16 Jan. 2017
Characteristics of Rainfall in the Tropics	Prof. Taichi HAYASHI	Kyoto University	23 July 2015
Short course of Cloud Physics	Prof. Yasushi FUJIYOSHI	Hokkaido University	7 Dec. 2015
GPS Meteorology	Prof. Toshihito TSUDA	Kyoto University	26 Feb. 2017

Table 42 Voluntary lectures by Japanese meteorological researcher



Photo 3-6 Voluntary lectures by Prof. Yatagai, Prof. Hayashi, Prof. Fujiyoshi and Prof. Tsuda.

<Remarks on "Output 3" >

As a summary of the Output 3, the following table shows the items the DOM is able to implement under the Project and the items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

Table 43: Remarks on "Output 3"

Output 3: Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.

Items the DOM is able to implement under the Project

- To make forecast guidance based on MOS (Model Output Statistics) method for short-range forecast and weekly forecast using forecast values and corresponding observation values.
- To calculate short-range precipitation forecast guidance quasi-automatically for improving efficiency of short-range precipitation forecasting work.
- To make regression equation for the quantitative seasonal forecast by the PPM (Perfect Prognosis Method) method, using the monthly average sea surface temperature in the tropical 5 points (western part of Indian Sea, Colombo, Sumatra, west of Peru, central part of Atlantic Ocean) and the monthly precipitation in Colombo.
- To make Excel program for reducing numerous meteorological elements picked up initially to the appropriate numbers of meteorological elements for stability of prediction by regression equation.
- To download the grid point value data file of the global model with grib2 compressed file format and to unpack the grib2 compressed file using Linux wgrib2 software.
- To make a regression equation for the short-range forecast of precipitation using characteristics that precipitation depends on the season in Sri Lanka such as regression equations for northeast monsoon, first inter-monsoon, southwest monsoon, and second inter-monsoon. To improve the accuracy of short-term forecast using the seasonal division comparing with seasonal division and without seasonal division.
- To implement weekly precipitation forecasts at Colombo and Ratnapura divided seasonally by MOS method.

• To use RMSE (Root Mean Square Error) as a verification of accuracy for quantitative forecast.

Items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project

To continuously review the most suitable weather forecast guidance for Sri Lanka After implementing the weather forecast guidance under this project, the grid point values of the improved numerical forecasting model below are available and, in the future, it is expected that the lattice point values of a more accurate numerical weather forecast models will be made public. Therefore, instead of the 0.5 degree grid point value of the currently used NOAA GFS (Global Forecast System), the grid point values of the newly available numerical prediction model are used as the initial condition and boundary condition of the WRF model and it was compared with the forecast results of the weather forecast guidance prepared in this project.

<Grid point values for newly available short-range forecast and weekly forecast> GSM: Japan (JMA) wide area model, lattice spacing: 0.25 degree, data assimilated GFS: Wide region model of the USA (NOAA), lattice spacing: 0.25 degree, data assimilated IFS: EC (ECMWF) wide area model, two types with lattice spacing of 8 km, data assimilated

• To continuously verify the forecast accuracy of the WRF model through the comparison of the weather forecast guidances that directly uses the grid point values of the newly available numerical
weather forecast model without using the WRF model and the weather forecast guidance using the DOM WRF model.

- To prepare the program to automatically acquire data and build a large capacity data storage system to store the acquired data since the labor and the amount of data are enormous. In order to develop the accuracy of the weather forecast guidance to a higher level, it is necessary to continuously acquire and store grid point values (forecast values) to be used from the meteorological organizations of each country for as long as possible (at least 2 years).
- To develop a program to accurately select optimal meteorological elements (predictors) from several meteorological elements of the numerical forecast model in order to shorten the time required for the development of a new weather forecast guidance and to improve the accuracy of rainfall guidance.
- To change from the multiple regression weather forecast guidance to the Kalman filter weather forecast guidance which can reflect error between observation data and forecasting data quickly after the conduct of the comparative studies of weather forecast guidance using various numerical weather forecasting models and the determination of the optimal numerical forecasting model & predictor for weather forecast in Sri Lanka.
- To improve skills related to the operation of computer programs using Linux in order to maintain various automatic programs necessary for weather forecast guidance operation.
- To increase the number of surface weather stations with the AWS to improve the accuracy of forecast and accuracy evaluation of the forecast.

Output 4: Warning criteria is elaborated.

Activities described in the PDM are as below.

- 4.1 Review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved.
- 4.2 Examine methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfall, strong winds and lightning strike.3.1Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.

Actual activities for Output 4 are described below.

<Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
- Current issuance of advisory/warning is universally applied all over the country using the same criteria.
- The advisory/warning signs are not comprehensible for the public.
- The advisory/warning bulletin is mainly stated as textual information and difficult.
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.

<Preparation of New advisory/warning criteria of heavy rain/strong wind and advisory criteria for lightning>

- Collection of weather observation data and disaster events has been conducted.
- Introduction of JMA advisory and warning has been made.
- Existing advisory/warning criteria of heavy rain and strong wind have been verified using weather observation data and disaster information.
- Revised advisory/warning criteria for heavy rainfall have been set at each climatic/geographical zone.
 - (1) Approach 1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/rain gauge rainfall data. (Using disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest

AWS/rain gauge)

Data used for the analysis:

- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at thirty-eight (38) SYNOP and AWS stations.
- Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at about three hundred (300) stations.
- Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toll due to flood, landslide and cyclone):
 462 events.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Extract disaster events due to flood: $462 \rightarrow 199$ events.
- Extract disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS/rain gauge: $199 \rightarrow 114$ events.
- Extract maximum daily rainfall observed by the AWS/rain gauge during the 5 days prior to the occurrence of each disaster.
- Classify the AWS/rain gauge stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone
- Sort the extracted AWS/rain gauge daily rainfall data in descending order for the two climate zones.
- Assume the 40th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the 50th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Dry Zone:	Advisory > 70mm/24h + 50mm/6h	
	Warning > 100mm/24h	
Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:	Advisory > 100mm/24h + 50mm/6h	In
	Warning > 120mm/24h	

00mm/24h + 50mm/6h 120mm/24h saster records and AWS/rain gauge

Dry Zone

(2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/rain gauge rainfall data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWS/rain gauge) Data used for the analysis:

- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at thirty-eight (38) SYNOP and AWS stations.
- Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at about three hundred (300) stations.
- Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toll due to flood, landslide and cyclone):
 462 events.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Extract disaster events due to flood: $462 \rightarrow 199$ events.
- Extract maximum daily rainfall observed by the AWS/rain gauge during the 5 days prior to the occurrence of each disaster.
- Classify the AWS/rain gauge stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone
- Sort the extracted AWS/rain gauge daily rainfall data in descending order for the two climate zones.
- Assume the 40th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the 50th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Dry Zone:

Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:

Warning > 100mm/24h Advisory > 90mm/24h + 50mm/6h Warning > 120mm/24h

Advisory > 70mm/24h + 50mm/6h



(3) Approach 3: Statistical analysis using AWS/rain gauge rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the area-averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criteria for heavy rain warning/advisory.)

Data used for the analysis:

- Before the operation of the AWS:
- Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at selected twenty (20) SYNOP stations.

- After the operation of the AWS:
- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP stations.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Sort all the daily rainfall data during the period in scope of the analysis in descending order for each SYNOP station.
- Extract the 95th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station.
- Extract the 99th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station.
- In case daily rainfall data is missing (-999) or daily rainfall is below 0.1mm/24h, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Classify the SYNOP stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone.
- Assume the area-averaged 95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the area-averaged 99th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis:Criteria for Dry Zone:Advisory > 55mm/24h
Warning > 100mm/24hCriteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:Advisory > 45mm/24h
Warning > 85mm/24h

(4) Approach 4: Statistical analysis using AWS/rain gauge rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the area-averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criteria for heavy rain warning/advisory.)

Data used for the analysis:

- Before the operation of the AWS:
- Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at selected twenty (20) SYNOP stations.
- After the operation of the AWS:

AWS rainfall data (hourly) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP stations.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Sort all the daily rainfall data during the period in scope of the analysis in descending order for each SYNOP station. (Same as Method 1 of Approach No. 3)
- Extract the 95th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station.
- Extract the 99th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station.
 * In case daily rainfall data is missing (-999) or daily rainfall is below 0.1mm/24h, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Classify the SYNOP stations into two geographical areas: Mountain area and Plain area.
- Assume the area-averaged 95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the area-averaged 99th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criteria for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Mountain Area:

Criteria for Plain Area:

Advisory > 35mm/24h Warning > 65mm/24h Advisory > 50mm/24h Warning > 100mm/24h



Prospective Warning Cilleria (Heavy Rain)

Climatic Zone	Approach No.1 Criteria (Disaster Event Analysis)	proach No.1 Approach No.2 Approach No.3 Approach Criteria Criteria Criteria Criteria saster Event (Disaster Event (Statistical (Statistic Analysis) Analysis) Analysis) Analysi		roach No.2 Approach No.3 Criteria Criteria aster Event (Statistical malysis) Analysis)		Geographical Area
Wet Zone + Intermediate	Advisory R > 50mm/6h & R > 100mm/24h	Advisory R > 50mm/6h & R > 90mm/24h		Advisory R > 45mm/24h	Advisory R > 35mm/24h	Mountain
Zone	Warning R > 120mm/24h	Wa R > 120	orning Omm/24h	Warning R > 85mm/24h	Warning R > 65mm/24h	Area
Dry Zone	Advisory R > 50mm/6h & R > 70mm/24h	Advisory R > 50mm/6h & R > 80mm/24h		Advisory R > 55mm/24h	Advisory R > 50mm/24h	Plain
	Warning R > 100mm/24h	Wa R > 90	arning mm/24h	Warning R>100mm/24h	Warning R > 100mm/24h	Area
Cry Zone				Existing Criteria		Plain Area
Infermediate Zone	Whole Co	untry	R > 50	Mountain Area		

Figure 19: Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Heavy Rain])

Revised advisory/warning criteria for strong wind have been set.

(1) Approach 1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Using disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS)

Data used for the analysis:

- AWS wind speed data (hourly, average/gust wind speed) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP stations.
- Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toll, destroyed and damaged houses due to strong wind): 703 events.
- Period in scope of the analysis: January 2009 to December 2014

Method:

- Extract disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the AWS: $703 \rightarrow 144$ events.
- Extract maximum average/gust wind speed data observed by the AWS 48 hours prior to

the occurrence of each disaster.

- Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (144 data) in descending order.
- Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.
- Assume 95th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Advisory: Average Wind Speed > 20km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 45km/h Criteria for Warning: Average Wind Speed > 40km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 70km/h

(2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWS)

Data used for the analysis:

- Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (144 data) in descending order.
- Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 2009 to December 2014

Method:

- Use all the disaster events on record even if the distance from the nearest AWS exceeds 10km: 703 events.
- Extract maximum average/gust wind speed observed by the AWS 48 hours prior to the occurrence of each disaster.
- Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (703 data) in descending order.
- Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.

Assume 95th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Advisory: Average Wind Speed > 15km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 40km/h Criteria for Warning: Average Wind Speed > 35km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 75km/h (3) Approach 3: Statistical analysis using AWS wind speed data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the hourly wind speed data in descending order for each AWS station. Assume the averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning/advisory.)

Data used for the analysis:

 AWS wind speed data (hourly, average/gust wind speed) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP stations.

Period in scope of the analysis:

January 2009 to December 2014

Method:

- Sort all the AWS wind speed data during the period in scope of the analysis in descending order for each AWS station. (24-hr x 365-day x 6-year data)
- Extract 95th percentile of the wind speed data for each AWS station.
- Extract 99th percentile of the wind speed data for each AWS station.
 - * In case AWS wind speed data is missing (-999) or below 1m/s, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Assume the nationwide average of the 95th percentiles as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.

Assume the nationwide average of the 99th percentiles as possible criteria for strong wind warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Advisory: Average Wind Speed > 20km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 35km/h Criteria for Warning: Average Wind Speed > 25km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 45km/h

Prospective Warning Gilteria (Strong Wind)

	Existing Criteria	Approach No.1 Criteria (Disaster Event Analysis)	Approach No.2 Criteria (Disaster Event Analysis)	Approach No.3 Criteria (Statistical Analysis)
Åverage	Advisory	Advisory	Advisory	Advisory
	W > 30km/h	W > 20km/h	R > 15km/h	W > 20km/h
	(Beaufort Scale: 5)	(Beaufort Scale: 4)	(Beaufort Scale: 3)	(Beaufort Scale: 4)
Wind Speed	Warning	Warning	Warning	Warning
	W > 50km/h	W > 40km/h	R > 35km/h	W > 25km/h
	(Beaufort Scale: 6)	(Beaufort Scale: 6)	(Beaufort Scale: 5)	<mark>(Beaufort Scale: 4)</mark>
Gusting	Advisory	Advisory	Advisory	Advisory
	W > 60km/h	W > 45km/h	R > 40km/h	W > 35km/h
	(Beaufort Scale: 7)	(Beaufort Scale: 6)	(Beaufort Scale: 6)	(Beaufort Scale: 5)
Wind Speed	Warning	Warning	Warning	Warning
	W > 70km/h	W > 70km/h	R > 75km/h	W > 45km/h
	(Beaufort Scale: 8)	(Beaufort Scale: 8)	(Beaufort Scale: 9)	(Beaufort Scale: 6)

Figure 20: Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Strong Wind])

New advisory criteria for lightning have been set.

 Approach 1: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data at SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSI) calculated from GFS. (Assume the averaged CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory at Dry Zone, Wet + Intermediate Zone and entire country.)

Indicators used:

CAPE and SSI*

*SSI: Showalter stability index

 $\mathbf{SSI} = \mathbf{T}_{500} \text{ - } \mathbf{T}_{\mathrm{L}}$

 T_{500} : the temperature (°C) at 500 hPa

 T_L : the temperature (°C) of a parcel lifted from 850 to 500 mb, dry-adiabatically to saturation and moist-adiabatically above that.

*By using the correspondence table (TL_table.xlsx) about temperature (T850) and humidity (RH850) at 850hPa and TL at 500hPa, adequateness of SSI was also confirmed.

(References)

Rough indication of atmospheric instability	CAPE	SSI
Stable	< 0	> 0
Weak instability (Chance of thunderstorm)	0~1000	0~-3
Moderate instability (Chance of severe	$1000\sim 2500$	-3 ~ -6
thunderstorm)		
Strong instability (Chance of severe thunderstorm)	$2500\sim3500$	-6 ~ -9
Extreme instability (Chance of severe thunderstorm)	> 3500	< -9

Source: Japan Meteorological Agency

Data used for the analysis:

- CAPE extracted from the GFS* (lifted from the ground)
- SSI derived from the GFS* (calculated by using T850, T500 and RH850)

*GFS: 0.5 degree grid, 6 hourly initial value, Re-analyzed data

(https://www.ncdc.noaa.gov/data-access/model-data/model-datasets/global-forcast-system-gfs)

- Lightning observation data from the ROB at the selected twenty (20) SYNOP stations

Period in Scope of the Analysis:

January 2015 to December 2016

Method:

- Select the nearest GFS GPV grids to represent each selected SYNOP station.
- Extract CAPEs and calculate SSIs from the GFS GPV at the time of lightning observation or at the closest time before lightning observation for each SYNOP station.
- Calculate the average of the above extracted CAPEs and calculated SSIs for each SYNOP station.
- Classify the SYNOP stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone.
- Assume the area-averaged CAPE and SSI for the two climate zones and whole country as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Dry Zone: Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone: Criteria for Whole Country: CAPE > 1300, SSI < -0.8 CAPE > 1000, SSI < -1.0 CAPE > 1200, SSI < -0.9



(2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data at SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSI) calculated from GFS. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all CAPE and SSI data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the averaged 99th percentiles of the CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

-The reason for using 99th percentile of CAPE and SSI-

If 100th percentile (largest value) is used, lightning advisory might be hardly issued. As the first stage for operating new lightning advisory, 99th percentile (generally representing extreme value) was adopted.

It is necessary for DOM to accumulate lightning events for a few years and to verify most suitable percentile in the future. (e.g. 95th percentile would be better than 99th.)

Indicators used:

CAPE and SSI

- Data used for the analysis:
- CAPE extracted from the GFS (lifted from the ground)
- SSI derived from the GFS (calculated by using T850, T500 and RH850 extracted from the GFS)

Period in Scope of the Analysis:

January 2015 to December 2016

Method:

- Select the nearest GFS GPV grids to represent each selected SYNOP station.
- Sort all the 6 hourly CAPEs and SSIs in descending order for each SYNOP station.
- Extract the 99th percentile of the CAPE and SSI for each SYNOP station.
- * In case CAPE or SSI data are missing (-9999) in the GFS GPV, those data are not

included in the statistical analysis.

 Assume the area-averaged CAPE and SSI for the two climate zones and whole country as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Dry Zone: Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone: Criteria for Whole Country: CAPE > 2500, SSI < -3.5 CAPE > 2000, SSI < -3.5 CAPE > 2300, SSI < -3.5



Prospective Advisory Criteria (Lightning)

Climatic Zone	Approach No.1 Criteria (Lightning Event Analysis)	Approach No.2 Criteria (Statistical Analysis)
Wet Zone + Intermediate Zone	Advisory CAPE > 1000 & SSI < -1.0	Advisory CAPE > 2000 & SSI < -3.5
Dry Zone	Advisory CAPE > 1300 & SSI < -0.8	Advisory CAPE > 2500 & SSI < -3.5
Whole Country	Advisory CAPE > 1200 & SSI < -0.9	Advisory CAPE > 2300 & SSI < -3.5

Figure 21: Output (Prospective Warning Criteria [Lightning])

Internal operation of revised warning criteria of heavy rain and strong wind have been conducted in the period of rainy season (1st inter-monsoon season, 2017).

Procedure of verification :

Every 3 hourly rainfall data observed at the synoptic stations have been used for verifying Heavy Rainfall Warning/Advisory. Every hourly wind data observed at Colombo station have been used for verifying Strong Wind Warning/Advisory.

Criteria of Heavy Rainfall and Strong Wind Warning/Advisory have been verified when Severe Weather Warning/Advisory was issued.



Figure 22: Flow Chart of Validation

Validation result for prospective W/A criteria of heavy rainfall :

Weather advisory for heavy rainfall was issued at 18th May, 2017 13:00.

 \rightarrow Criteria of approaches 3 and 4 satisfied the conditions for issuing advisory at 14:30.



Figure 23: Validation Result for Prospective W/A Criteria of Heavy Rainfall

Validation result for prospective W/A criteria of strong wind :

Weather advisory for strong wind was issued at 18th May, 2017 13:00.

 \rightarrow Criteria of approach 2 satisfied the conditions for issuing advisory at 15:00.



Figure 24: Validation Result for Prospective W/A Criteria of Strong Wind

The advisory/warning signs (Heavy Rain, Lightning, Strong Wind, Cyclone & Tsunami) have been improved in compliance with the universal design and which are comprehensible for anyone.



Figure 25: Output (Advisory/Warning Signs)

The advisory/warning bulletins have been improved from TEXT product to VISUAL product. Map information of advisory/warning issued area has been added in the 2nd page.

W 17-14	Colour:- Ambe	r		WEATH	ER ADVISORY FOR STR	ONG WINDS, FAIRLY	HEAVY
-	-	WEATHER ADVISORY FOR ST	RONG	Issued Time	13:00 18 May 2017	Valid Hours	36hrs
10.	100	WINDS, FAIRLY HEAVY RAINF	ALLS	Valid Till	01:00 20 May 2017		
		NEXT 36 HOURS.	DOR	District map of	f issuing Warning/Advisory		
-		(Jasued at1300hrs on 18th May 2017 b) Warning Centre of the Departmen Meteorology)	y Early it of		-		-
ne to the activ thundershow entral provinc	e cloudiness in the ters will occur in es and in the south-	outh-west of Sri Lanka, fairly heavy the Western, Sabaraganawwa, South western and southern tex areas.	showers ern and		55		•
a areas off the a areas off Southeastern crease up to f	e roasts extending fi the coastextendin sea areas) can be 00-70kmphat three.	om Puttalam to Trincomalee via Man g. from MataratoPotuvil via Ham very rough at times as the wind spe	inar and ibantora ted may	0	Hadame]	2	
ther sea areas kmpb at time	can be fairly rough s.	at times as the wind speed can increa	ur up in		Venanjue 7		
avel and fishin	rg communities are	requested to be eigilant in this regards		V	9	4	
20 8003	ವಾರ್ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ ಕ್ರಮ	දී සහ රට මුහුදු පුදේහම්මිශිද කාලද චිංච්දනය,	9	E.	5	Tat	-
0 444 36461 010/046 D(0) 04	01.2017-05-00-01802 (110-01-07-06-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-07-	<u>) in 11009-140 19555 2055 ai.</u> De Des adie 150 ener 2007 iuw	retaine)	12	10	Bantana	-
ilinitriisede Gegen Distagnations	islabilitisjunaridby (QDBs:Caldwarea)	,ಪುರತ್ನದಿರವಾದವು ಕರ್ಶದನ್ನು ಎ ಗ್ರೀಟಾಗಿರುವು ಕ್ರಮಕ್ಕೆ ಎರ್ರಿಜೆ ಟಾರ್ ಎಂಬು	జరంజ్రావి. గజనర్గణ్		Rotteragente atalato	MA	
1800,00800	neg meneration	6 .			Kanity		
ජනාලම මට Sem පොකුටිල් ද .කි.ම.60-70 දා	ອີນໃນເວລີ ແດ່ນະ ໝັບເຊັບລີກວິທີທີ່ຈານ: ດັບເປເນີບໍ່ແ ນາທີ່ຊ່ານວດ	ຊົນສະບັດປີ (ສັບ) ສະບະນະມີບິບຍາ ສະເມົາກໍ)ນີ້ຫຍູ້ອີຊີ ອະຊີກນິດສູດຈະດີ ອອນ ພຣີມີຊີອະຊີກນີ້ບໍ່ສາມັນດີສະດັບນີ້ ທ່ານ.	Dafe Brid Duk DOsc		negative Koren Herrera Electron	Gentaria	
මා කිසිම කරේක කිසිම කරේක වි මාසම කරේක වි	De gest sous bi Sul De sa se. suident so sour	121 DD 112,10, 8, 50 49 66 6100 D2DD 4 D9421 D9438041 D21 +041 93(61 40.	ofay aper-		NorthAlfa Willingtown	S	7
h.Deraulan					Mon (1
BAN DESING TO	niy Alessaretogier). I ne Br(42 (Departmen	t of àlaisanology)			Oann Malars		/

Figure 26: Improved Advisory/Warning Bulletin

<Monitoring of Operation utilizing new advisory/warning criteria>

Operation utilizing new advisory/warning criteria for heavy rainfall and strong wind and new advisory criteria for lightning has been monitored and lessons learned for feedback to next activities are shown as below.

- New advisory/warning criteria for heavy rainfall and strong wind are now operated by the DOM and these criteria will be verified and revised by them after accumulating weather observation data and disaster events for about 5 years.
- Regarding lightning advisory, 99th percentile value (generally representing extreme value) for CAPE and SSI was adopted as the first stage for operating new lightning advisory. It is necessary for the DOM to accumulate lightning events for a few years and to verify most suitable percentile in the future. (e.g. 95th percentile would be better than 99th.)
- The information of disaster events recorded by the DMC is not described in detail (e.g. location and occurrence time), therefore it is necessary for the DOM to advise the DMC that it should be recorded accurately and precisely.
- New weather radar is under construction in Sri Lanka. If precise precipitation data is obtained after operating new radar, the current advisory criteria of lightning would be improved with more guaranteed accuracy.
- Conducting the same activity in other regions, it is necessary to obtain long-term weather observation data and detail disaster information. Moreover, it is desirable to improve warning sign and bulletin for easy understanding for the public.

<Trainings for "Output 4">

Records of the trainings on the Output 4 are summarized in the following table.

			j Elaberater	•	
Date	Time	Venue	Attendee(s)	Conductor	Contents
January 27,	11:00-11:45	Conference Room	6	T. Fujii	Current Situation of
2015				Y. Uchida	Warning Criteria
January 29,	11.00 11.40	Conforma Room	Q	T. Fujii	■ Introduction of JMA
2015	11.00-11.40	Conference Room	0	Y. Uchida	Advisory and Warning
January 29,	12.20 14.00	Forecasting	1	T Estili	Current Situation of
2015	15:50-14:00	Centre	1	1. rujii	Warning Criteria

Table 44: Training: Warning Elaboration

February 5, 2015	13:00-13:30	Conference Room	18	T. Fujii	 Collection of weather observation data and major disaster events
July 2, 2015	09:30-10:30	Conference Room	6	T. Fujii Y. Uchida	 Elaboration of heavy rainfall warning Suggestion of new warning sign
July 10, 2015	09:45-10:45	Conference Room	6	T. Fujii Y. Uchida	 Verification of strong wind warning Suggestion of new warning bulletin
June 29, 2016	09:00-10:00	Forecasting Centre	10	T. Fujii Y. Uchida	 Discussion about heavy rainfall warning/advisory criteria Verification of strong wind warning/advisory Consideration of lightning advisory Discussion about new warning sign
July 7, 2016	08:45-09:30	Forecasting Centre	7	T. Fujii	 Discussion about heavy rainfall warning/advisory criteria Introduction of lightning advisory and lightning forecast in Japan
July 11, 2016	13:35-14:05	Forecasting Centre	7	T. Fujii	 Discussion about heavy rainfall warning/advisory criteria
March 27, 2017	13:30-14:30	Forecasting Centre	5	T. Fujii Y. Uchida	 Discussion about heavy rainfall warning/advisory criteria Discussion about strong wind warning/advisory criteria Discussion about lightning advisory criteria
May 25, 2017	14:00-15:00	Forecasting Centre	5	T. Fujii S. Iwata	 Internal operation and validation for prospective warning/advisory criteria

Ī			Improvement	of	the
			warning bulletin		
			Future challenge	s after	r the
			project		

<Remarks on "Output 4">

As a summary of the Output 4, the following table shows the items the DOM is able to implement under the Project and the items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

Table 45: Remarks on "Output 4"

Output 4: Warning criteria is elaborated.

Items the DOM is able to implement under the Project

- To set advisory/warning criteria of heavy rainfall for each climatic/geographical zone.
- To set advisory/warning criteria of strong wind by using observed wind data and the past wind disaster events recorded by the DMC.
- To set advisory criteria of lightning by using CAPE and SSI.
- To verify the newly developed advisory/warning criteria of heavy rain and strong wind using weather observation data and disaster events data recorded by the DMC.
- To issue the newly visualized advisory/warning bulletin using the newly developed advisory/warning signs in compliance with universal design.

Items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

- New advisory/warning criteria for heavy rainfall and strong wind are now operated by the DOM. On the other hand, advisory/warning criteria should be revised periodically. Therefore, these criteria will be verified and revised by them after accumulating weather observation data and disaster events for about 5 years.
- Regarding lightning advisory, 99th percentile value (generally representing extreme value) for CAPE and SSI was adopted as the first stage for operating new lightning advisory. Because advisory criteria have been set with 2-year data, it is necessary for the DOM to accumulate lightning events for a few years and to verify most suitable percentile in the future. (e.g. 95th percentile would be better than 99th.)
- The information of disaster events recorded by the DMC is not described in detail (e.g. location and occurrence time), therefore it is necessary for the DOM to advise the DMC that it should be recorded accurately and precisely.
- Advisory criteria for lightning have been set with lightning observed data (There are no detail information of location) at the synoptic stations. Therefore, if precise precipitation data is obtained after operating new radar in Sri Lanka, the current advisory criteria of lightning would be improved with more guaranteed accuracy.
- Conducting the same activity in other regions, it is necessary to obtain long-term weather observation data and detail disaster information for setting advisory/warning criteria with guaranteed accuracy. Moreover, it is desirable to improve warning sign and bulletin for easy understanding for the public.

Output 5: The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.

Activities described in the PDM are as below.

- 5.1 Review the contents of current meteorological information and identify the issues to be improved.
- 5.2 Improve the contents of meteorological information.
- 5.3 Review the timing of information dissemination to ships and fleet.
- 5.4 Improve the contents of website.
- 5.5 Prepare smartphone compatible website.
- 5.6 Prepare educational materials (disaster awareness materials) for the weather services.

Actual activities for Output 5 are described below.

<Identification of the Contents of Meteorological Information and the Current Issues>

- Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified.
 - Most of the weather information was written in text form lacking visual representation.
 - Weather information visualized by graph etc. was small.
 - The existing DOM website was displayed with mixed English, Sinhala, and Tamil languages.
 - The existing DOM website was incompatible with various internet terminals (PC, smart phone, tablet, etc.).
 - Templates could not be changed on the existing DOM website.
 - There was no information on weather educational materials.
- Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.

<Review the timing of information dissemination>

- Discussions on timing of issuance of meteorological Information for ships and fleet were held.
- After the discussions with the DOM, it was decided to post meteorological Information for

ships and fleet on the new DOM website.

 Meteorological Information for ships and fleet for timely provision to the users was posted on the new DOM website.

<Development of a new DOM website compatible with various Internet Terminals>

In order to overcome the issues clarified in the Baseline Survey, a new DOM website that can be compatible with various Internet terminals (PC, smart phone, tablet etc.) and which can be easily updated, and which satisfies each item listed below was developed under the Project.

- Reduction of character information
- Warning alert placed on top page
- Click button to important information displayed on top page
- Provision of visualized information with graphs etc.
- Display in English, Sinhala, Tamil
- Easy weather information upload
- Posting commentary on simple weather by image
- Posting weather satellite images
- Enabling the publication of meteorological radar images at the time the meteorological radar observation network is completed
- Posting information for educational materials (disaster awareness materials)

In addition, the basic policies of designing a new DOM website are as follows.

- As the design goal of a new DOM website, Keep It Simple (KIS) was adopted.
- Setting up a reasonable blank space (white space) between lines, letters, elements, etc., and made it a website that reduces the burden of reading by the user was considered.
- A website that effectively utilized visual communication (layout (format, composition, grid), typography (type selection, character handling), color and texture, animation etc.) was made.
- As soon as a user sees the page, he/she makes it a structure and design that can understand the contents and functions of the page.

- A clear link to move to another page was made.
- Images were easier to see than text, making bold more prominent than plain text.

The specific activities for the development of the new DOM website are described below

- Brainstorming was conducted to consider the best way to develop a new DOM website.
- Preparation of a new template for the DOM new DOM website was completed.
- After discussions with the DOM, the page layout and design of the new DOM website was confirmed.
- Consultation with the Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka (ICT), which operates and maintains all the Websites of the government organizations of Sri Lanka, Joomla 3.4 which is the most suitable CMS (Content Management System) was adopted for realizing compatibility with various Internet terminals (PC, smart phone, tablet, etc.) and easy update.
- In order to develop a new DOM website that adopted Joomla 3.4, the selected local contractor was ordered.
- The DOM applied for updating of a new DOM Website to ICTA.
- The ICTA reviewed the technical regulations and updated the existing website of the new DOM website.
- Confirmation of that the new template has appropriate compatibility was made by a smartphone.
- Improvement/optimization for the Contents created by the DOM on the new DOM website to be appropriately displayed on various internet terminals (Windows, Mac OS, iPhone, iPad, Android, etc.) was carried out.
- An external site "Save Yourself" that can display and download animated cartoons on various Internet terminals was established.
- A link banner was placed on the front page of the new DOM website to access the animated cartoon site named "Save Yourself".
- Japanese meteorological satellite (Himawari 8) was posted on the new DOM website and a meteorological radar image was located on the new DOM website.

The images of the top page of the existing and new DOM websites are attached below.



Figure 27: Existing and New DOM Websites

According to the submission of an application by the DOM for updating a new website to the ICTA (Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka), the technical review by the ICTA was carried out.

Since the renewal was approved through technical review by the ICTA, the existing DOM website was replaced with a new website on November 25, 2016.

The operation test and adjustment were conducted between November 25 and December 31, 2016, and January 01, 2017 was set as the date of launch of the new DOM website.

The results of the investigation on the number of accesses of the new DOM website are as follows.

- ♦ Average Number of Accesses per day during Baseline Survey: 2,000
- ☆ Target of Average Daily Access of the new DOM website (Indicator of PDM Output: 30% up): 2,600
- Average Daily Access of the new DOM website between January and July 2017: 2,692 (34.6% up)

As a result, the Indicator of PDM Output which is "access number increased by 30% or more" was satisfied.

Month		Total Monthly Access			Days	Average number of Accesses/d		
January 2017		:	63,355	/	31	=	2,044	
February 2017		:	49,379	/	28	=	1,764	
March 2017		:	53,052	/	31	=	1,711	
April 2017		:	47,386	/	30	=	1,580	
May 2017		:	193,882	/	31	=	6,254	
June 2017		:	88,156	/	30	=	2,939	
July 2017		:	75,398	/	31	=	2,432	
,	Total	:	570,608	/	212	=	2,692	

Table 46: Number of Accesses of New DOM Website



Figure 28: Status of the Number of new DOM

<Educational materials for weather information dissemination: Animated cartoon for awareness program on disaster risk reduction and DOM mascot>

Production of 3 episodes of disaster awareness cartoons (EP1: Climate of Sri Lanka, EP2: Thunderstorm and Lightning and EP3: Heavy Rain and Disaster) in English, Sinhala and Tamil have been completed (voice of 5 characters in the cartoons

by DOM personnel) was completed in accordance the Flow of Animation Production attached right side.



Writing story plot \downarrow Character design \downarrow Writing script \downarrow Production of storyboard \downarrow Production of animation \downarrow Voice audition \downarrow Voice recording \downarrow Background music & sound effect \downarrow Final output

Flow of Animation Production

Figure 29: Storyboard of Disaster Awareness Cartoons

Voice providers for the five animation characters in each language, English, Sinhalese or Tamil, were selected from among DOM staff through a voice audition and voice recording was implemented.





bort FA (unsex) (unny -oblivious of his surroundings proud and sometimes acting arrogant always wants to play than to learn anything always fall in accidents because he fails to listen often asks silly questions



VIDU(male) Elegant but friendly -Intelligent and good teacher Saves ball and bat from danger -Works in DOM -Measures rain and other weather condition KANDULA (male) KANDULA (male) Friendly and charming Lives in a cave Uses body paintings to explain weather info Uses advanced barometer to determine weather-

changes



PULLI (female) Calm and intelligent Can be quiet but swift in movement Lives on a tree Uses body prints to explain

Figure 31: 5 Characters of Disaster Awareness Animation

Production of the DOM mascot for the students who joined the Open Class made of rubber which is cadmium and formaldehyde free material was completed.



<A link banner for accessing the animated cartoon site named "Save Yourself">

A link banner was placed on the front page of the new DOM Website to access the animated cartoon site named "Save Yourself"



Figure 32: A Link Banner to Access the Animated Cartoon Site

<Open Class>

Open classes using animated cartoon consisting of the three episodes for awareness program on disaster risk reduction were implemented fourteen (14) times in Colombo, Kalutara and Nuwara Eliya districts. Comprehension tests were conducted for 2,922 students/participants just before/after showing the animated cartoon for awareness program on disaster risk reduction to understand their understanding. Implementation of open classes was confirmed to be effective, considering that average score of comprehension test just before/after showing the animated cartoon is fifty two (52) and eighty (80) respectively.

No	Date & Time	Venue	Name of	Shown Version of	Number	Grade	Number of Students/	Aver Sco	rage ore
110.	Date & Thite	Venue	School	the Cartoon	Sessions	Grade	Participants	Pre Test	Post Test
1	March 08, 2017 14:00-15:00	DOM Auditorium	Siridhamma College, Galle	Sinhala	1	8	209	52	81
2	March 10, 2017 10:00-11:00	Ananda Girl's College, Colombo	Ananda Girl's College, Colombo	Sinhala	1	8	217	60	92
3	March 30, 2017 09:00-10:30	National Youth Corps, Walapana, Nuwara Eliya	National Youth Corps, Walapana, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	1	A-D	123	55	91
4	March 30, 2017 11:30-13:00	Nandarama College, Nuwara Eliya	Nandarama College, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	1	6-11	121	47	74
5	March 31, 2017 09:00-10:30	T.B.M. Herath Secondary College, Nuwara Eliya	T.B.M. Herath Secondary College, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	1	6-11	306	46	77
6	March 31, 2017 12:00-13:30	Kalagamwatta Navodya School, C.S, Nuwara Eliya	Kalagamwatta Navodya School, C.S, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	1	6-12	246	43	68
7	March 31, 2017	Community Centre,	(For general public)	Sinhala	1	_	75	_	—

Table 47: Records of Open Clas	s
--------------------------------	---

	15:30-17:30	Kandayaya,							
		Nuwara Eliya.	1						
		Princess of	Princess of						
0	April 26, 2017	Wales girls	Wales girls	ales girls		0.0			
8	10:00-11:30	school.	school.	Sinhala	1	8-9	440	62	89
		Colombo	Colombo						
	Mav 19, 2017	Walagedara Navova School,	Walagedara Navoya					68	93
9	10:45-12:10	Mathugama,	School,	Sinhala	1	9-11	258		
		Kalutara	Mathugama, Kalutara						
	22 22 2017	Holy Trinity	Holy Trinity					51	80
10	May 23, 2017	Central College, Nuwara Eliya	Central	Tamil	1	8-13	487		
	09:40-11:10		College,						
	l	Maskeliya	Nuwara Enya						
	May 23, 2017 15:25-16:35	Plantation							71
		P L C. Troup	"Barathy Maha			6, 8-13			
		Estate	Vithvalavan.				51	47	
11		Dispensary &	Talawakelle,	Tamil	1				
		Maternity Ward,	Nuwara Eliya						
	1	Talawakelle,							
		Nuwara Eliya	I						
		Talawakelle Tea	(For tea						
12	2 May 23, 2017	Estate P.L.C.	plantation	Tamil	1		()		_
12	17:15-18:00	Holyrood Estate	workers and	1 amii	1		04		
	ļ!	Training Centre	their children)"						
	May 24, 2017	St. Xiver's	(For tea					37	60
13	101ay 24, 2017 00.20-11.00	College,	plantation	Tamil	1	6-13	255		
	09.20-11.00	Nuwara Eliya	workers)						
	May 24, 2017	St. Xiver's	St. Xiver's			1-11	70	_	_
14	11.20, 12.20	College,	College,	Sinhala	1				
	11.20-12.20	Nuwara Eliya	Nuwara Eliya						
		ļ	Total				2.922	52	80

<Educational materials for weather information dissemination: Beaufort Wind Scale>

Laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale on Land and at Sea in three languages, English, Sinhalese and Tamil, were made. The laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale were distributed to visitors to the DOM such as school teachers, government officials, military personnel in charge of meteorological services, staff of overseas weather-related organizations and others.



<Cloud Types for Observers in Sri Lanka>

According to the WMO regulations, cloud types are to be reported instead of individual cloud shapes in exchanging meteorological data. So far, DOM observers have referenced cloud photos taken mainly in mid-latitude by WMO or NOAA. For this reason, the Consultant Team had attempted to make and complete the DOM original "Cloud Types for Observers" in which the required 27 cloud photos are all taken in Sri Lanka. Unfortunately, the 4 of the 27 pictures indicated in red frames on the right figure could not be taken in Sri Lanka within the Project period. Therefore alternative 4 pictures taken in other countries are temporarily used. This is to request the DOM to take the remaining 4 types of the cloud pictures and replace the current pictures with them for the completion of the DOM original "Cloud Types for Observers"



Figure 33: Cloud Types for Observers in Sri Lanka

<Trainings for "Output 5">

Record of the trainings on the Output 5 are summarized in the following table.

Date	Time	Venue	Attendee(s)	Conductor	Contents
April 7, 2015	10:30-11:00	Project Office	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Planning of Animation Development
April 7, 2015	11:00-12:00	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	1	S. Negoro	 Understanding current work process of Joomla
April 8, 2015	15:45-16:15	Project Office	1	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Preparation of Site Visit for Understanding Flood and Landslide Prone Area
April 9, 2015	08:30-18:30	Colombo~Kalutara	1	S. Iwata R. Zaman S. Negoro	 Site Visit for Understanding Flood and Landslide Situation (Kalutara District)
April 10, 2015	13:00-13:50	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	1	S. Negoro S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Discussion about the Design of Web Improvement
April 10, 2015	14:00-15:15	Conference Room	5	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Animation Development (Story Plot, Characters, etc.)
April 15, 2015	14:10-14:40	Mr.Premalal's Room	1	S. Iwata R. Zaman S. Negoro	 Animation Development (Story Plot, DOM Mascot, etc.)
April 15, 2015	15:30-16:00	Mr.Premalal's Room	1	S. Iwata S. Negoro	Understanding the Climate of Sri Lanka
April 17, 2015	8:30-9:00	Project Office	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman S. Negoro	 Understanding the Climate of Sri Lanka
April 21, 2015	10:30-12:00	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	7	S. Negoro S. Iwata	 Brainstorming of Website.
June 22, 2015	13:00-14:00	Data Processing	1	S. Negoro	Information exchange of

Table 48 [.]	Training.	Weather	Information	Dissemination
	rrannig.	Vicanici	mornation	Dissemination

		and Archival Division Room			the current progress of contents by using Joomla!
June 24, 2015	11:00-16:00	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	1	S. Negoro Y. Uchida	Information exchange of Joomla! Operation
June 26, 2015	09:30-10:00	Mr.Mahesh's Room	1	S. Iwata	 Preparation of Visit to Tank Systems in Polonnaruwa District for Understanding Climate of Dry Zone
June 30, 2015	15:00-15:30	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	1	S. Negoro	 Provision of Access Information for the Web Template (Draft) by Mobile Phone
July 2-3, 2015	-	Colombo~ Polonnaruwa	1	S. Iwata	 Discussion on Technical Information to be Used in the Animation Visit to Tank Systems in Polonnaruwa District for Understanding Climate of Dry Zone Visit to the DOM Regional Office for Understanding Disasters in Polonnaruwa District
July 6, 2015	14:30-15:30	Data Processing and Archival Division Room	2	S. Negoro	 Configuration of the Shared Server
July 9, 2015	10:00-11:00	Conference Room	12	S. Negoro Y. Uchida	 Discussion on the Website (Draft Template)and Contents Layout for the New Website
July 9, 2015	11:00-11:15	Conference Room	12	S. Iwata Y. Uchida	 Discussion on the DOM Mascot and the Other Four Characters to be Used in the Animation

July 6-10, 2015	30 min each	Project Office, Forecasting Centre	1	S. Iwata	 Discussion on Technical Information to be Used in the Animation
July 6-10, 2015	15 min each	Mr.Premalal's Room , Forecasting Centre	1	S. Iwata Y. Uchida	Discussion on the DOM Mascot
December 3, 2015	11:00-11:15	Project Office	1	S. Iwata	 Meeting on Work Plan of the Animation Development in This Month
December 9, 2015	10:00-10:15	National Meteorological Center	1	S. Iwata	 Meeting on DOM's Warning Color to be Used in EP3 of the Animation
December 14, 2015	14:30-15:00	National Meteorological Center	3	S. Iwata Y. Uchida	 Meeting on Selection of Five (5) Characters' Names of the Animation
December 15, 2015	16:30-17:00	National Meteorological Center	1	S. Iwata Y. Uchida	 Meeting on Final Selection of Five (5) Characters' Names of the Animation Meeting on Three (3) Storyboards for EP1 to EP3 of the Animation
December 16, 2015	14:00-14:30 15:00-15:30	Training and Aviation Division & Rainfall Division	3	S. Iwata	 Meeting on Three (3) Storyboards for EP1 to EP3 of the Animation
December 17, 2015	10:30-11:00	Training and Aviation Division & Rainfall Division	2	S. Iwata	 Meeting on Three (3) Storyboards for EP1 to EP3 of the Animation
December 17, 2015	16:00-16:30	Project Office	1	S. Iwata	 Meeting on Three (3) Storyboards for EP1 to EP3 of the Animation
June 10, 2016	09:50-16:40	DOM Studio	4	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)

June 13, 2016	09:40-16:00	DOM Studio	3	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, Enclich/Sinholo/Tamil)
June 14, 2016	09:45-15:50	DOM Studio	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 14, 2016	11:00-12:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	3	Y. Uchida M. Yamauchi	 Discussion on the Website Contents and Layout
June 16, 2016	09:45-12:30	DOM Studio	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 17, 2016	09:40-15:10	DOM Studio	3	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 17, 2016	10:30-12:00	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	9	Y. Uchida M. Yamauchi	 Discussion on the Website Contents and Layout
June 20, 2016	10:00-16:00	DOM Studio	3	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 21, 2016	10:05-16:10	DOM Studio	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 22, 2016	10:10-14:25	DOM Studio	2	S. Iwata R. Zaman	Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3,

					English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 23, 2016	09:30-12:00	DOM Studio	1	S. Iwata R. Zaman	 Acting and Voice Recording for the Animated Cartoon (EP1 to EP3, English/Sinhala/Tamil)
June 28, 2016	14:00-16:00	Conference Room	12	S. Iwata	 Drawing Graphics by PowerPoint
June 29, 2016	10:00-11:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	20	Y. Uchida M. Yamauchi	 Operation Training of New DOM Website
June 29, 2016	10:30-11:30	National Meteorological Center (NMC)	3	M. Yamauchi	 Operation Training of New DOM Website
June 30, 2016	14:00-15:30	Forecasting Centre	7	S. Iwata	 Drawing Graphics by PowerPoint
March 29, 2017	10:00-13:00	Computer Division	6	Y. Uchida T. Endo	 Operation Training of New DOM Website
May 30, 2017	15:00-16:00	Forecasting Centre	6	S. Iwata	 Drawing Graphics by PowerPoint

<Remarks on "Output 5" >

As a summary of the Output 5, the following table shows the items the DOM is able to implement under the Project and the items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project.

Table 49: Remarks on "Output 5"

Output 5: The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.
Items the DOM is able to implement under the Project

- To become possible to promote the website preparation work by themselves due to understanding the procedures and points, etc. to consider when preparing new websites
- To update daily forecasts, weather information, etc., and add, delete and correct of displayed contents, on the DOM website created using Joomla 3.4, the latest version of the content management system.
- To conduct Open Classes using the animated cartoon on disaster risk reduction.
- To expand implementation places for Open Class other than schools, such as training center for tea plantation workers, local clinic, etc.
- To secure staff within DOM who can provide their voice for animated cartoons as awareness material

and can give appropriate instructions to the voice providers.

• To draw simple graphics by using drawing functions of PowerPoint.

Items the DOM should solve/improve after completion of the Project

- To collect and analyze the opinions of website users and continue to improve the website as necessary
- To negotiate with ICTA and realize the remote access to DOM website for modification/updating in consideration of responding more quickly. At present, it is impossible to modify/update the DOM website from places other than the computer section of the DOM head office.
- To negotiate with ICTA and improve the response speed to access to the DOM website.
- To regularly conduct Open Classes at the DOM auditorium using the animated cartoons on disaster risk reduction.
- To conduct Open Classes at places having poor accessibility of educational services.
- To secure enough annual budget to conduct Open Classes.
- To take the remaining 4 types of cloud pictures and replace the current pictures with them for the completion of the DOM original "Cloud Types for Observers"
4. Records of the Trainings conducted in Sri Lanka under the Project

The records of the trainings conducted in Sri Lanka under the Project are indicated in the following table. The detailed records of the trainings are available in the foregoing.

		Number of	Total Number	Total Training
	PDM Outputs	Training	of Attendees	Hours
1.	Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved	20	110	61H30M
2.	Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.	5	30	13H00M
3.	Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.	22	116	35H15M
4.	Warning criteria is elaborated.	11	79	09H50M
5.	The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	44	155	88H35M
	Total	102	490	208H10M

Table 50: Records of the Trainings conducted in Sri Lanka under the Project

5. Issues, Ideas and Lessons Learned During Project Implementation

The challenges encountered during project implementation along with the efforts taken by the DOM and ourselves to solve the challenges and the lessons learned arising from such challenges and efforts towards the achievement of the Overall Goal of the Project are indicated in the table attached hereunder. The additional challenges to note and the recommendations for implementation of a similar project are also described. In addition, we express our appreciation to the DOM for their positive and constructive cooperation during the project implementation.

Table 51: Challenges, Efforts and the Lessons Learned from the Implementation of
the Project

Topics	Action Undertaken
	Flexible countermeasures created through close cooperation under the
Flexible	harmonious relationship between the DOM and the Consultant Team was a
Countermeasures	proactive response to the inaugurations of a new President and major government
during Project	officials according to the results of the presidential and general elections in 2015.
Implementation	This is in addition to the unfortunate long leave taken by the Director General of
	the DOM due to medical reasons during the Project Implementation.
Sustainability of the Project Activity	The project activities and its outputs are expected to be continued or utilized after the Project. Therefore, the Consultant Team tried to support its DOM counterparts to conduct the activity through their own initiative instead of the Consultant Team conducting the activity by themselves. The outputs of the Project will include official plans, guidelines, and systems in order to sustain the activity.
Allocation of the Required Budget	In a technical cooperation project, a recipient country is supposed to bear the funds necessary for the project and its smooth implementation. It is necessary to prepare the budgetary request which is submitted to the Ministry of Finance and Planning (MOFP) of Sri Lanka for each year of the Project period by the end of August of every year (the fiscal year is January 1 to December 31). Since the amount of budget required for the next year was clarified by the DOM and the Consultant Team together according to the submission period of the annual budget and the DOM has timely made the budgetary request to secure the necessary budget, fortunately, there is no significant problem in this regard. Through the Project, it is considered that the DOM counterparts understood well what JICA's technical cooperation project is.
	One of the best ways to formulate a new project is that the Japanese side
Challenges and	understands the needs of the counterparts and proposes the recommended
Recommendations	activities, and the counterparts make the request for a similar project officially
for the	based on the recommendation. In the case of this project, the needs of a recipient
Implementation of	country were understood and the contents of the activities, which could be
Similar Project	supported by Japan, were discussed by taking a long time for the preparatory
	survey. This will be the ideal example of the project formulation.

Issues, ideas and lessons learned of each Output of the PDM during Project Implementation are listed in the following table.

	Consultant Team	
	JICA Long Term Expert	
Table 52: Is	sues, Ideas and Lessons Learned Du	uring Project Implementation
Output of the PDM	Issues during Project Implementation	Recommended Solutions to the Issues Raised for the DOM
1. Capacity on the maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.	 At the beginning of the Project, JICA had a policy to partly reduce the procurement of the required equipment as indicated in the Record of Discussions (ROD) due to a lack in project budget. Nevertheless, the DOM requested JICA to procure all the required equipment as outlined in the Record of Discussions (ROD) for the smooth implementation of the Project. The DOM has not systematically prepared regulations, guidelines and manuals for the maintenance, inspection and calibration of the meteorological observation instruments. The DOM has been conducting a series of maintenance and inspection work using the original manuals and inspection record books provided by the manufacturer. Since the DOM has introduced measures against lightning strikes and bird damages, such manuals and record books need to be revised. However, as the manufacturer did not provide an electronic copy, it had been difficult to reflect and 	 After due reconsideration, JICA has decided to allocate the budget necessary for the procurement of all the required equipment in the Record of Discussions (ROD) and has procured all of them during Phases 1 and 2 of the Project. The guideline for the surface meteorological observations and maintenance manuals of meteorological instruments had been prepared by the consultant experts, and the guideline and manuals for instrument calibration by the long-term expert. As a result of the consultation with the Long Term Expert, the DOM has prepared the necessary regulations, guidelines and manuals for the maintenance, inspection and calibration of the meteorological observation instruments. The DOM revised the existing manuals and record books, matching the present situation and rewrote them using MS Word in doc format. The revision points made in the manuals and record books were reported in the annual "Officers-in-Charge Meeting" wherein the representative of each weather observation station participate in.

document these measures.	
4. The DOM did not have a Barometer Calibration Device needed to ensure the traceability of the barometer. The Thermometer Inspection Bath of the DOM did not have enough facilities so a zero point test was not conducted.	4. The DOM established the traceability of its meteorological instruments in regard to pressure and temperature since the additional procurement of the Barometer Calibration Device, Thermometer Inspection Bath and Ice Shaving Machine was done during Phase 2 of the Project.
5. The DOM did not have an instrument calibration laboratory and the calibration was made in of the office of the instrument division of DOM	In order to sustainable establish of the traceability of meteorological instruments, a new instrument calibration laboratory was designed, and was constructed by the expenses and personnel of the DOM and JICA.
6. Concerning the review of the upper-air observation schedule in DOM: the current situation of the radiosonde observation and the pilot-balloon observations in DOM were examined, and daily observation of radiosonde was recommended to DOM by the long-term expert.	After the recommendation by the long-term recommendation to the DOM, daily radiosonde observation has not been still started. It also found that the safety handling in filling a balloon with hydrogen gas was not enough. A short-term expert of upper-air observation was invited from JMA and implemented the second investigation
	of the upper-air observation of the DOM and conducted the training on upper-air observation for DOM staff. Through these investigations and training, the final report concerning the improvement of upper-air observation in the DOM was produced and provided to the DOM.

2.	Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.	 After the specialist consultant conducted a practical trial for changing the data communication method of the AWS from VSAT to IP-VPN, the DOM took about 1.5 years to contract an IP-VPN communication company. Throughout this period, the operation of AWS was stopped. It took much more time than the DOM expected to finish the customs procedure of the equipment on the occasion of updating the GTS/MSS. As a result, the schedules of equipment installation and trainings were delayed. The DOM requested the India Meteorological Department for the delivery of Binary Meteorological Data on the occasion of updating GTS/MSS but it has not yet been delivered. 	 We requested the DOM several times to conclude a contract for the provision of an IP-VPN as soon as possible and to resume the operation of the AWS. (The DOM completed the contract for an IP-VPN in May 2017 and restarted the operation of AWS in June 2017.) We did an adjustment of the equipment installation and training within our schedule. As the DOM requested practical training of receiving aviation weather data, we conducted additional practical training. The DOM was able to receive the Binary Meteorological Data after getting in contact with a staff from the India Meteorological Department who was in charge of the GTS based on the information of the Japan Meteorological Agency.
3.	Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.	1. Since weather forecasts in the National Meteorological Centre are implemented by 4 teams (a team is composed of 1 Forecaster, 3 Observation Officers, 3 Communication Officers and 1 Forecasting Assistant) following a 2 shifts/day schedule, some of the forecasting personnel who are not on duty were unable to attend trainings conducted on their day-off.	1. In case that some of the forecasting personnel attend trainings during their holidays, they are considered as working days (overtime). In addition, we have conducted trainings as per their requests for forecasting personnel who are not on duty to prevent technical level gaps.
4.	Warning criteria is elaborated.	1. With regard to the improvement of strong wind warning/advisory, disaster information (location and time) of strong wind recorded by the DMC were only rough estimates (only date information) and the existing wind observation network is still not enough to estimate real wind speed at the point	In order to conduct a more accurate analysis of weather warning, it is essential to document disaster events continuously and record detailed information such as the date of occurrence and location. On the other hand, the weather observation network (rainfall, wind and lightning) is

	of strong wind disaster. Therefore, it	desirable to be denser spatially.
	was difficult to analyze the relationship	
	between strong wind disaster and	With regard to lightning advisory,
	maximum wind speed.	besides the NWP product, observed
	2. As for the newly established	data from SATAID such as top cloud
	lightning advisory, the criteria were	temperature data also seems to be
	settled based on the NWP (GFS	available for issuing advisory.
	model) value whose resolution is	
	slightly sparse (50km grid) to describe	
	real atmospheric state. When operating	
	lightning advisory, we must take into	
	consideration the computation error of	
	the NWP.	
	1. There is a large difference in the	1. Under the supervision of rare DOM
	length of the recorded voice in English,	staff who are trilingual in English,
	Sinhala and Tamil even for the exact	Sinhala and Tamil, we modified the
	same dialogue while the mouth	scripts in order to squeeze or extend
	movement of the animation character	speaking time without compromising
	is exactly the same for the three	the key message and gave appropriate
	languages. Therefore, we faced the	instructions to the voice providers
	difficulty to adjust the speaking time to	selected from the DOM.
5. The method of	be same among the three languages.	
dissemination and	2. The DOM started to operate the	2. We requested the DOM to ask the
contents of	improved Website. The technical staff	ICTA for night-time troubleshooting
meteorological	of the Information and Communication	so that the DOM can issue a warning
information are	Technology Agency of Sri Lanka	(heavy rain, tsunami etc.) during
improved.	(ICTA, administrator of the operation	night-time without any failure. We
	of the website of all government	requested the DOM to provide a PC for
	organization including the DOM) do	the data input station in the Aviation
	not troubleshoot issues during	Meteorological Office.
	night-time. The staff cannot input	
	aviation weather information such as	
	METAR, etc. into the DOM Website	
	from the Aviation Meteorological	
	Office.	

6. Project Achievement

The Progress of the Project Achievements at the end of the Project is indicated in the following table.

Consultant Team

JICA Long/Short Term Expert

Project Purpose	Indicators	Achievements of Project Purpose
Weather	1. Traceability of	As originally planned, through the procurement of
information	meteorology instruments	standard instruments and calibration devices and the
disseminated	(Availability of national	implementations of training courses, the traceability of
from the DOM	standards/frequency of	pressure and temperature has been established during the
is well utilized	inspection)	project. Through the productions of "Guideline to
by the public		meteorological instrument calibration" and "Manuals for
and the disaster		meteorological instrument calibration", the procedures of
related		the calibration of pressure and temperature have been
organizations.		well defined and standardized. DOM has been starting
		the operation of the new instrument calibration.
	2. Number of missing	The missing rate of real-time observation data transfer
	observation data	from 36 observation stations (one place not installed and
		the other one is Colombo) was 100% since the VSAT
		communication satellite that the DOM was using stopped
		the service from January 2016. After completion of the
		transition from VSAT to IP-VPN system, it is foreseen
		that the missing rate of real-time observation data
		transfer will be less than 10%.
	3. Accuracy of rainfall	Preparations for the increase in the accuracy of rainfall
	forecast in the selected	forecast have been completed after the completion of
	stations.	rainfall forecast guidance 12, 24 and 36 hours ahead at 2
		points (Colombo and Ratnapura) using the Grid Point
		Value of DOM's numerical prediction model (WRF).
		Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range
		(Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast
		Guidance for Precipitation with the WRF Grid Point

Table 53: Project Achievement

		Vale has been operating for the increase in the accuracy
		of rainfall forecast of Colombo.
	4. Number of selected	Colombo and Ratnapura: Weekly forecasts guidance was
	station where weekly	conducted from January to July 2017 on a trial basis
	forecast is enabled in trial	using Model Output Statistics (MOS) with the GFS
	basis.	numerical prediction model of the NOAA.
Output	Indicators	Achievement of Output
1.	1-1	Revision of the following manuals for Automatic
Capacity on	Revision of the inspection	Weather Observation System have been completed.
maintenance and	and repairing (parts	1) Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including
calibration of	replacing) manual for AWS	Cleaning/Inspection Report
meteorological	is completed during the	2) Preventive Maintenance Record
observation	Project.	3) Basic Trouble Shooting and Inspection Procedure
equipment is	-	4) Spare Parts (Sensor) Replacement Procedure for
improved.		Recovery
	1-2	29 engineers, technical officer (81% of the total relevant
	Training on inspection and	DOM staff) and meteorological officer have participated
	repairing of AWS is	in the training sessions.
	conducted for 70% of the	
	relevant DOM staff.	
2.	2-1	The missing rate of real-time observation data transfer
Transmitting	Data from AWS are obtained	from 36 observation stations (one place not installed and
and receiving	and made available to a full	the other one is Colombo) was 100% since the VSAT
capacity of	extent in DOM.	communication satellite that the DOM was using stopped
various kinds of		the service from January 2016. After completion of the
meteorological		transition from VSAT to IP-VPN system, it is foreseen
data is		that the missing rate of real-time observation data
strengthened.		transfer will be less than 10%.
	2-2	
	Binary data via. GTS are	Binary data from the India Meteorological Department
	obtained and made available	have been obtained
	to a full extent in DOM	have been obtained.
	during the Project.	
3.	3-1	
Capacity of	At least 4 persons in DOM	15 Forecasters can produce the short range and weekly
weather	obtain ability to produce the	weather forecast guidance
forecasting is	short range and weekly	
improved using	weather forecast guidance.	
obtained	3-2	15 Forecasters can produce the weather forecast
meteorological	At least 4 persons in DOM	guidance of sea wind.

data. obtain ability to produce the	e
weather forecast guidance o	f
sea wind.	
4. 4-1	Warning/advisory criteria of heavy rain:
Warning criteria Number of areas where newly	2 climatic zones (Wet Zone and Intermediate Zone /
is elaborated. designed warning criteria that	t Dry Zone) and 2 geographical zones (Plain Area /
can meet the past disaste	r Mountain Area)
records are prepared.	Warning/advisory criteria of strong wind:
	1 area (whole country)
	Advisory criteria of lightning:
	2 climatic zones (Wet Zone and Intermediate Zone /
	Dry Zone)
5. 5-1	 DOM mascot for disaster awareness
The method of Number of developed	d Disaster Awareness Cartoons for Disaster Prevention
dissemination educational material fo	r Education
and contents of weather services.	1) Climate of Sri Lanka (English, Sinhala and Tamil)
meteorological	2) Thunderstorm and Lightning (English, Sinhala and
information are	Tamil)
improved.	3) Heavy Rain and Disaster (English, Sinhala and
	Tamil)
	 DOM Beaufort Scale
	1) Land (English, Sinhala and Tamil)
	2) Sea (English, Sinhala and Tamil)
	Total: 6 materials
5.2	
J-2 Monthly access number of th	The number of DOM website accesses per day have
DOM Website is increased by	increased by 34.6%. (Comparison of the beginning of the

7. Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal

<Recommendation from the Consultant Team>

The Overall Goal of the Project is for the "weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations". For that purpose, it is important to issue highly accurate weather forecasts and warnings to contribute to mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters, and as a result, it is necessary to improve the public trust with the DOM's weather information.



Figure 34: Issuance of Meteorological Forecasts & Warnings and Collaboration with Disaster Prevention related Organizations to be Strengthened

In order to alleviate damage from gusts, floods and landslides caused by heavy rain in Sri Lanka, it is important that the DOM grasps accurately the current weather conditions through observation and issues highly accurate weather forecasts and warnings. Furthermore, it is indispensable for each disaster prevention related organization to cooperate with each other and to fulfill their own services. In particular, the DOM has the role of the preparation of accurate forecasts/warnings and promptly disseminating them to each organization, and the information from the DOM is a trigger for the initial activity of each disaster prevention related organization. For that reason, further improvement of the weather forecasts/warnings of quantitatively (= issuance frequency) and qualitatively (= accuracy) is strongly required in order to further strengthen the DOM's meteorological observation system, reliably send observation data to the National Weather Center (NWC) in the DOM Head Office, analyze and process the information and reflect these observation data in the forecasts.

In order to further enhance the benefits of the Project, recommendations towards the achievement of the Overall Goal of the Project are as follows.

1) Manpower Development

- The development of more qualified technical personnel through continuous training and other related manpower development programs; and,
- The conduct of timely research to increase the level of understanding/knowledge about meteorological disasters.
- 2) Natural Disaster Prevention and Management
 - The creation of effective communication and collaboration with the various government agencies, NGOs, and international institutions for better coordination of natural disaster prevention and management;
 - The formulation of effective and consistent disaster prevention schemes through different stages from Weather Forecasting, Warning Announcement, Disaster Occurrence, Information Dissemination, all the way to Evacuation Stage;
 - Implement and ensure wider dissemination of knowledge and information on disaster-prevention activities to all sectors including government disaster management agencies, the private sector, and the population at risk;
 - Setting up of redundancies in the announcement of warnings and other information dissemination to ensure reaching out to the general populace;
 - Continuing education to the general public, especially the population at risk, through the Local Government Units (LGUs) in coordination with various related disaster management agencies on effective natural disaster prevention and management;
 - Further strengthening of a cooperative structure among the mass media (TV, radio, newspaper), the Prime Minister's Office, Ministry of Disaster Management, Ministry of Irrigation & Water Resources Management, Ministry of Transport, Ministry of Agriculture, Civil Aviation Authority, Ministry of Health & Indigenous Medicine, Ministry of Fisheries and Aquatic Resource Development, Ministry of Highways, Ports & Shipping, Department of Police, Fire Station, other government-affiliated organizations, Sri Lanka Red Crescent Society, etc.; and,
 - Furtherance of utilization of the meteorological information/data and forecasts/warnings by the mass media (TV, radio, newspaper), the Prime Minister's Office, Ministry of Disaster Management, Ministry of Irrigation & Water Resources Management, Ministry of Transport, Ministry of Agriculture, Civil Aviation Authority, Ministry of Health & Indigenous Medicine, Ministry of Fisheries and Aquatic Resource Development, Ministry of Highways, Ports & Shipping, Department of Police, Fire Station, other government-affiliated organizations, Sri Lanka Red Crescent Society, etc.

<Recommendation from the Long-term Expert>

- 1) Modernization of surface meteorology observation
 - The current parallel operation of the conventional manual observation and the automatic observation at the DOM regional offices have been a large burden regarding budget and human resources.
 - Transformation to automatic observation using the current AWS network should be planned.
 - Firstly, several test bed stations making automatic observation should be started to make the total plan of the transformation.
 - Training for the observers on full automatic observation using the AWS should be implemented in parallel.
 - After establishing the technology of automatic observation, the full automatic observation except visual observations will be started at the all sites.
- 2) Renovation of the organization of DOM
 - In accordance with the modernization of the surface meteorological observation and installation of the dual-polarization Doppler radar systems, the renovation of the organization of the DOM and re-education/relocation of human resources should be planned.
 - It should be discussed that the role of the regional offices of the DOM will be shifted from the traditional observation sites to the disseminating bases of weather information for the local citizen.
- 3) Capacity development
 - DOM has been making efforts to do capacity development through the inhouse training, the JICA group training and graduate programs in foreign countries. Such capacity developments should be continued taking account individual abilities of the DOM staff members. The Japan government should particularly support graduate programs in Japan.

- Research activities and inhouse seminars concerning meteorological analysis on weather disaster events should be made in order to enhance their knowledge on the latest meteorology.
- 4) Establishment of the system of rules
 - Acts covering the entire weather services of the DOM, rules, guidelines and manuals for all the missions of the DOM should be prepared in order to provide for and standardize the weather services of the DOM.

8. Recommendations for further contribution for mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM

Since more than 90% of the major disasters in Sri Lanka were caused by hazardous meteorological phenomena, meteorology has indeed become a matter of life or death in Sri Lanka. As such, the role of the DOM, the only meteorological organization in the country, is crucial and important. In order for the DOM to mitigate the damages generated by the disasters caused by hazardous meteorological phenomena, it is a priority issue to detect hazardous meteorological phenomena which may create massive damages and disseminate highly accurate forecasts/warnings to the public more appropriately and promptly before the risk of disasters further escalate.

Recommendations of each Output of PDM for further contribution for mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM are described in the following table.

Output of PDM	Recommendations
 Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 	 To continue the new instrument calibration scheme established in the project and ensure the traceability of the meteorological instruments concerning pressure and temperature through the constant calibration of the domestic meteorological instrument. To continue intimate communication and collaborative relationship with the overseas Regional Instrument Center of the WMO, particularly with RIC-Tsukuba Concerning instruments of humidity, wind and rainfall, to start the establishment of the traceability of instruments, by installing the standard instruments and calibration tools and receiving technical supports from the RIC-Tsukuba. To implement regular calibration of the DOM standard instruments with the RIC standard instruments in order to ensure the traceability of instruments. To install an internet line to the instrument division of the DOM and to contact the RIC-Tsukuba in order to continue to exchange information on the instrument traceability. To schedule daily radiosonde observation considering the budget and human resources of the DOM.

Table 54: Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal

2. T ca m st	Transmitting and receiving apacity of various kinds of neteorological data is trengthened.	•	To encourage and continue the maintenance of the observation fields (prevention of animal intrusion, etc.) and the environmental improvement of the observation rooms (installing an air conditioner). In order to enhance and guarantee the continuous operation of the automatic weather observation systems (AWS) and to ensure the technical training of the electrical engineering staff, the establishment of appropriate measures against system failure, scheduled replacement of parts and a fully documented maintenance system with proper document control is indispensable. To conduct technical training for new staff and periodic inspection by the manufacturing company for the stable operation of the GTS/Message Switching System (MSS).
3. C fc u m	Capacity of weather orecasting is improved sing obtained neteorological data.	•	Continuous recruitment of human resources for roles in forecast operation for the next generation. Simultaneously, the development of excellent weather forecasters need to be sustained by conducting forecast trainings within the DOM, encouraging staff to attend a training program abroad and supporting staff to earn Masters or Doctoral degrees. To conduct accurate evaluation of the Local Numerical Weather Prediction WRF model aimed at actual operation, to put the Weather Guidance using the data of the WRF model/the Global Numerical Weather Prediction Model to practical use. To accumulate the grid point values (GPV) after the calculation of the WRF model every day for the evaluation and the improvement of the model. Continuous improvement of overall forecasting works taking in the knowledge and data of meteorology. In order to understand real time local weather conditions across the country and utilize them for disaster prevention operations, it is imperative to transmit observation data of all the AWSs to the DOM Head Office without any delay for accurate evaluation of the Numerical Weather Prediction and Weather Guidance.

4. Warning criteria is elaborated.	 To create an updated, accurate and consistent database of meteorological disasters (disaster occurrence time, disaster location, damage situation, weather condition, weather information and transmission condition). To conduct further research to increase the level of understanding/knowledge about meteorological disasters and its mechanisms along with other related meteorological phenomena. To improve forecasting works relevant to meteorological disasters through the implementation of the above recommendations at the same time continually develop human resources capable of doing the verification and review of warning criteria.
5. The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	 In order to reduce natural disaster risk, it is important to improve the cooperation with organizations/agencies related to disaster management and mass media as the means for transmission of disaster information. To conduct continuous public awareness activities about disaster prevention. In order for the public to find weather information easier, it is necessary to improve the DOM's website continuously. To develop and recruit the human resources needed to implement the above recommendations. To continuously conduct Open Class both in Colombo city and in local regions. To continuously develop human resources within the DOM who can conduct Open Class. To exchange ideas and opinions on a regular basis with stakeholders on the method of dissemination and the contents of meteorological information through the Monsoon Forum conducted biannually by the DOM, and try to feed back the results into the DOM's activity and products for further improvements. To continuously inform availability of the renewed DOM website through the Monsoon Forum and Open Class. To produce "Weather Summary on Severe Weather Disaster (tentative title)" immediately after disaster occurrence (within one day after the disaster), and distribute it to the relevant organizations and be on the DOM website.

9. Comments of the Consultant Team Leader and Long-term Expert on the Strategic Direction of Further Cooperation with the DOM

<Consultant Team Leader>

In order for the weather information provided by the Department of Meteorology in Sri Lanka to contribute to the mitigation of damage caused by meteorological disasters, the provision of accurate and quantitative weather information is required.

Under this project, while preparing the short-term forecast guidance with the predicted values of the WRF Model of the DOM using the grid point values of the GFS published by the NOAA for the initial condition and boundary condition, and corresponding observation data, the training on the weather forecast guidance mechanism, preparation method and accuracy verification method have been conducted. Through these training, the understanding of the DOM on weather forecast guidance has deepened. However, in order to effectively use the forecast result based on the weather forecast guidance in the weather forecast issued by the DOM, it is necessary to further improve the accuracy of the DOM's WRF Model.

The WRF model is a meteorological mesoscale numerical weather forecast model developed mainly by the NOAA and the National Center for Atmospheric Research (NCAR) in 2006. Currently, 3-dimension data assimilation and 4-dimensional data assimilation have been developed. The forecasting range is several thousand kilometers. Not only is the main body of the forecast model released but also pre-processing, data assimilation and post-processing programs are available for free to use. As such, meteorological organizations and research institutes in many countries make use of it. Although the DOM is experimentally conducting WRF operation, however DOM have not achieved accurate forecast results by utilizing the various functions of WRF. This situation is almost similar in other meteorological organization in other developing countries. I recommend to improving accuracy of DOM's WRF Model by acquiring data assimilation function and program update methods, etc.

After the completion of this Technical Cooperation Project, the Project for the Establishment of a Doppler Weather Radar Network under the Japan's Grant Aid has been scheduled to commence from 2018. Further improvement in accuracy can be expected by incorporating the data observed by this weather radar into the WRF model. As a direction of future support, we believe that the implementation of cooperative projects shown in the table below, centering on improving the accuracy of the WRF model, is effective in improving DOM capacity and reducing damage caused by natural disasters.

Table CC. Curacted Ta	alamia al Calamanatian	to be no we do	
Table 55: Expected Tec	cnnical Cooperation	to be required	

Component	Activity
	Update the latest version of the WRF model
	• Update of WRF Model main program
	Update of WRF Model preprocessing system
	Introduction of WRF Model data assimilation system
	Improvement of WRF Model basic configuration
	• Improvement of grid distance (High resolution)
	Configuration of calculation time corresponding to grid distance
Improvemen	Expansion of calculation area
t of accuracy	Improvement of operation method of WRF Model
of WRF	Improvement of initial value
Model	Three-dimensional data assimilation of four kinds of data including AWS,
Widder	Meteorological Radar, Upper Air Observation and Meteorological Satellite Data
	Improvement of initial conditions and lateral boundary conditions
	Incorporation of grid point data with small grid distance (high resolution)
	Method of processing calculation results
	• Preparation of Numerical Forecast Map around Sri Lanka using analysis and display
	system of grid point data (GrADS)
	· Implementation of an automatic operation processing of various weather guidance
	using results of WRF Model
	Workshop on meteorological radar data (radar animation images) utilization and
	interpretation/commentary method for the mass media
Radar Data	Workshop on meteorological radar data (rain intensity and Doppler data) utilization and
Utilization	interpretation for the Civil Aviation
	Explanation of radar products
	Utilization technique of meteorological Doppler radar data for torrential rain monitoring
Graphical	Practical training on radar image improvement/modification (setting of rainfall catchment
Weather	areas adding symbols on Sri Lankan man indicated on radar images etc.)
Information	areas, adding symbols on 511 Lankan map indicated on radar images, etc.)
Weather	Short time (0.5-1 hours) forecast with the radar data of torrential rain and the existing
Forecast	automatic weather observation system data
Forecast	Practical training for forecast briefing with meteorological radar data

<Long-Term Expert>

On the way of implementing our project, problems and future issues in the current DOM

meteorological services, which should be solved, have been clarified. During three years of the project period, more than 400 people have been lost by floods and landslides in Sri Lanka. Considering these facts, we can have clear idea on what is the most important and the most needed in the DOM weather services. The largest issues in the current DOM weather services are the drastic improvement of rainfall observation and the real-time dissemination of more accurate rainfall information with higher horizontal resolution. It is required to establish a real-time rainfall monitoring system with the horizontal resolution less than the horizontal size of thunderstorms which induced heavy rainfall.

Fortunately, the weather radar system installed in Sri Lanka in 2020 by JICA are planned to have the state-of-the-art dual-polarization function. The new weather radars will be expected to provide much more accurate rainfall estimation than conventional weather radars have done, and will be capable to issue adequate rainfall information in real-time. Therefore, a next JICA technical cooperation project should be planned concerning operation/maintenance of the radar system and also utilization of radar observation data, in order to make completely new weather information against heavy rainfall disasters.

Meanwhile, we believe that in parallel with the technical improvement of weather services, the DOM should continue to concentrate their effort particularly on strengthening their administrative aspects: the planning of modernization of the meteorological observation, the renovation of the organization of the DOM, the enhancement of capacity development and the establishment of regal rules such as "Meteorological Services Acts", with cooperation of the Japanese Government.

Since dissemination of accurate rainfall information is the first step for the rainfall disaster management, the DOM should make quality assurance of rainfall data by conducting calibration of rain gauges operated relevant organizations, and should make the guidance to the usage of rainfall data for these organizations and public. The DOM also should make a development plan as a medium-term plan for rainfall disaster prevention products such as Soil water index", "Runoff index" and "Inundation index" using rainfall data with the technical cooperation from Japan Meteorological Agency. These efforts will lead the DOM to establish initiatives on the rainfall disaster management among the relevant organizations in Sri Lanka.

Finally I would like to extend sincerely thank to the Japan Meteorological Agency for great

support from them through the implementation of the project. Their support has been extending from the preparation survey of the project in January 2014 to the final training course on "SATAID" in August 2017. The activity of the establishment of the traceability of meteorological instruments particularly could not be completed if there were no help from JMA. Nine JMA staff visited Sri Lanka as the short-term experts training courses and gave the DOM staff technical trainings. In the two JICA C/P training programs conducted in Japan, many JMA staff were engaged in the arrangement and implementation of the programs. I again appreciate their spending effort and time devoted to us during their daily busy business in the JMA.

Meanwhile, I have an opinion that there have been some possibility to receive the following supports from the JMA: quality control of meteorological observation data in the Activity 1 of the project, the planning of the exchange of binary data through the new GTS/MSS in the Activity 2, implementation of the training courses on the latest numerical weather prediction and the latest forecast guidance technique in the activity 3, the advice to the subdivision of the regions to where weather warnings are issued in the Activity 4, and introducing the functions of the JMA website to the renovation of the DOM website in Activity 5.

The JMA is currently assigning the international cooperation with meteorological organizations of foreign countries as one of their important policies. Considering this situation, I hope that the JICA will promote the relationship with the JMA and will extend the area of technical cooperation projects with cooperation with JMA, such as administrative cooperation concerning renovation and strengthening of foreign meteorological organizations.

10. Records of the Joint Coordinating Committee and the Seminar

The Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs) held at the Office of the Ministry of Disaster Management are indicated in the following table.

Date	Participants	Venue	Relevant Items discussed
October 14, 2014	Ministry of Disaster Management: 3 DOM: 3 JICA Sri Lanka Office: 4 JICA Long Term Expert: 1 JICA Short Term Expert (Consultant): 4	Ministry of Disaster Management	 Explanation of the Work Plan of the Project Approval of the PDM revised by the Consultant Explation of the Activities to be made in the Phase 1 Equipment Procurement under the Project
November 18, 2016	Ministry of Disaster Management: 1 DOM: 2 JICA Sri Lanka Office: 3 JICA Long Term Expert: 1 JICA Short Term Expert (Consultant): 6	Ministry of Disaster Management	 Expiation of the project progress and the activities made by the DOM and the JICA Experts Introduction of the project outputs (Animated cartoon "Save Yourself", Beaufort Scale on Land/at Sea, etc.) Introduction of the renewed DOM website Issues to be hampered for smooth implementation of the Project
May 02, 2017	Ministry of Disaster Management: 1 DOM: 2 JICA Long Term Expert: 1 JICA Short Term Expert (Consultant): 3	Ministry of Disaster Management	 Report of the current progress of the Project Achievement Report of the current progress of the Project Purpose Introduction of draft of Recommendations Towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal
July 26, 2017	Ministry of Disaster Management: 1 DOM: 6 JICA Headquarters: 2 JICA Long Term Expert: 1 JICA Short Term Expert (Consultant): 4	Ministry of Disaster Management	 Report of the Project Achievement Report of the Project Purpose Introduction of Recommendations Towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal

Table 56.	Records	of the	loint	Coordinating	Committee
Table 50.	Recolus		JUIII	Coordinating	Commutee

Seminar (Arranged by the Long-term Expert)

The project seminar "Next Generation Weather Services focusing on Rainfall Disaster Mitigation in Sri Lanka" was held on 25 July 2017 (Photo 10-1). This seminar aimed at discussing the optimal scheme of the weather services in Sri Lanka for heavy rainfall disaster in accordance with the disaster risk reduction road map in Sri Lanka which was introduced in the JICA-MDM joint seminar in June 2017, and with the JICA Grant Aid Program "Project for the Establishment of a Doppler Weather Radar Network in Sri Lanka" for 2018-2020. The program of the seminar is described in Table 57.

People from the Ministry of Disaster Management of Sri Lanka (MDM) including the Disaster Management Center (DMC), the National Building Research Organization (NBRO), and the Ministry of Irrigation and other organizations were participated in the seminar. Two short-term experts from the JMA, the long-term experts staying at the MDM and the DOM presented the political and operational schemes for mitigating heavy rainfall disasters in Japan. At the end of the seminar, the JICA international cooperation specialist proposed a future plan of the DOM to intensify its function.



Photo 10-1 Seminar "Next Generation Weather Services focusing on Rainfall Disaster Mitigation in Sri Lanka".

Table	57	Program	on	the	Seminar	"Next	Generation	Weather	Services	focusing	on
		Rainfall D	isas	ster	Mitigation	in Sri	Lanka".				

Time	Session	Speaker/Facilitator
9:00 - 9:20	Participant registration	
9:20-9:30	Opening speech	Mr. S. Miyanawala (Secretary,
		MDM)

9:30 - 9:40	Weather services in disaster risk reduction of Sri Lanka and	Mr. Y. Inoue
	purpose of the seminar	(Acting Director of Disaster
		Risk Reduction Team 1, JICA)
9:40 - 9:55	Achievement of the Weather Project during this three years	Mr. S. Premalal
	and the target of this seminar	(Director General, DOM)
9:55 - 10:10	Weather services of DOM for heavy rainfall disaster	Ms. Anusha Warnasuriya
		(DOM)
10:10 - 10:30	Tea break	Mr. Y. Uchida and Mr. Iwata
	With Video show of the disaster prevention awareness video	(JICA Consultant Expert, DOM)
	for children "Save Yourself"	
10:30 - 10:50	Disaster management system in Japan focusing on flooding	Mr. T. Nagai
	and landslides	(JICA Long-term Expert,
		MDM)
10:50 - 11:10	History of the weather services for heavy rainfall disaster in	Dr. M. Ishihara
	JMA	(JICA Long-term Expert, DOM)
11:10 - 11:40	Necessity of Quantitative Precipitation Estimation (QPE) for	Dr. A. Adachi (Meteorological
	monitoring rainfall disaster using dual polarization Doppler	Research Institute, JMA)
	radars	
11:40 - 12:10	Importance of Quantitative Precipitation Forecast (QPF) using	Mr. K. Nagata
	observation networks and numerical models	(JMA HQs)
12:10 - 12:30	Comments on strengthening the relationship between DOM	Mr. S. Premalal(DOM)
	and relevant organizations to establish the next generation	
	rainfall disaster management in Sri Lanka	
12:30 - 13:00	Road map to the next generation weather services focusing on	Mr. K. Akatsu
	rainfall disaster mitigation in Sri Lanka	(Senior Advisor, JICA HQs)
13:00 - 13:10	Closing remarks	Mr. F. Tanaka
		(Chief Representative,
		JICA Sri Lanka Office)
13:10 -	Lunch	

MDM: Ministry of Disaster Management

DOM: Department of meteorology

NBRO: National Building Research Institute

JICA: Japan International Cooperation Agency

JMA: Japan Meteorological Agency

Annexes

FINAL REPORT

ON

THE PROJECT FOR IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Annexes

Table of Contents

- 1. Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)
- 2. Flowchart
- 3. Work Schedule
- 4. Expert Dispatch Schedule
- 5. Counterpart Trainings in Japan
- 6. Provision of Equipment
- 7. Minutes of Meeting for the Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)
- 8. Major Project Outputs
- 9. Predictors of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka (DOM WRF)
- 10. Pictures of the Project Activities
- 11. Project Brief Notes

Annex 1

Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)

Revision of the Project Design Matrix (PDM)

■1st Revision (October 14, 2014)

The revision of certain items to make the descriptions more concrete were proposed and approved at the Joint Coordinating Committee (JCC) conducted on October 14, 2014 at the Ministry of Disaster Management.

The original PDM and 1st revised PDM (revised parts: blue color) are attached hereunder.

PROJECT DESIGN MATRIX (PDM) [Original]

Narrative summary	Objectively Verifiable Indicators	Means of Verification	Important
			Assumption
Overall Goal: Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Number of the civil work projects for disaster mitigation that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM 	 Annual reports from Disaster Management Centre (DMC), Irrigation Department, National Building Research Organization, Department of Fisheries and other relevant organizations Interview with the above organizations Weather forecast disseminated through mass media 	
Project Purpose: More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Traceability of meteorology instruments (Availability of national standards/frequency of inspection) Number of missing observation data Accuracy of rainfall forecast in the selected stations. Number of selected station where weekly forecast is enabled in trial basis. 	 Annual administration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Progress reports of the Project Work reports of the short-term experts Work reports of the consultant team Website of DOM 	The government's policy to prioritize the disaster mitigation and reinforce relevant organizations including DOM is continued without significant changes.
 Outputs: 1. Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 3. Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data. 4. Warning criteria is elaborated. 	 1.1 Revision of the inspection and repairing (parts replacing) manual for AWS is completed during the Project. 1.2 Training on inspection and repairing of AWS is conducted for XX% of the relevant DOM staff. 2.1 Data from AWS are obtained and 	 Annual administration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Progress reports of the Project Work reports of the short-term experts Work reports of the consultant team Website of DOM 	Necessary budgets for maintaining meteorological equipment are allocated to DOM in 2015 and 2016.

5. The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	 made available to a full extent in DOM. 2.2 Binary data via. GTS are obtained and made available to a full extent in DOM during the Project. 3.1 At least XX persons in DOM obtain ability to use the weather guidance. 3.2 At least XX persons in DOM obtain ability to forecast short range sea surface wind. 	 The draft maintenance manual of meteorological equipment Training records on maintenance of meteorological equipment AWS data transmission records Training records on the short range forecast Training records on the weekly range forecast Draft warning criteria Educational material for weather 	
	 4.1 Number of areas where newly designed warning criteria that can meet the past disaster records are prepared. 5.1 Number of developed educational material for weather services. 5.2 Monthly access number of the DOM Website is increased by XX% or more. 	services	
Activities	Inp	uts	Pre-conditions
1.1 Review the current situation on maintenance and	Japanese side	Sri Lanka side	The appropriate
calibration of meteorological equipment and identify	Long-term expert:	Administration:	counterpart personnel
the issues to be improved.			to participate in a
1.2 Procure the necessary instruments for calibration of	Chief Adviser / Expert of Weather	Project Director, Project Manager	series of training
meteorological equipment, and establish team(s) for	Services	Counterment a mean all	provided by the
proper maintenance and calibration.	Shout town ownerter	Counterpart personnel:	Project are secured.
1.5 Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	Snort-term experts:	C/D mension and from the sectors of	
1.4 Conduct training on calibration of conventional and	Error and a CM at a male at a 1	C/P personnel from the relevant	
A w S equipment.	- Expert of Meteorological	divisions under DOM	
1.5 Keview and revise the Standard Operation Procedure	Observation		

for manual and AWS observations.

- 1.6 Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts replacing) user's guide for AWS.
- 1.7 Conduct training on inspection and repairing of AWS.
- 1.8 Review the upper air observation schedule.
- 2.1 Review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be improved.
- 2.2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters.
- 2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved.
- 2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS
- 3.1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.
- 3.2 Conduct training on development of weather guidance products for short range (36 hrs.) and weekly weather forecast including their forecast verification techniques.
- 3.3 Prepare weather guidance products for short range and weekly at the selected stations.
- 3.4 Conduct training for short range sea surface wind forecast utilizing satellite data.
- 3.5 Conduct training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).
- 3.6 Review and evaluate the seasonal weather forecasting methods.
- 3.7 Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of

- Expert of Satellite Data Analysis

- Expert of Meteorological Observation Technology
- Expert of Weather Forecasting / Weather Guidance Method
- Expert of Data Management / Information Technology
- Expert of Weather Information Dissemination
- Expert of Website
- Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant

Machinery and Equipment:

- Desktop or Laptop Computers
- Desktop Computer for WIS
- Display for Briefing of Weather Forecasting
- Laptop Computer with data reader to download data from AWS logger
- Multifunction machine (Printer / Photocopy)
- GTS/Message Switching System
- Travelling Calibration System (temperature and pressure sensors)
- Second Standard Instruments (electric temperature and pressure sensors)
- Spare parts for AWSs including

Facilities and Equipment:

- Office space for the long-term experts and other experts at the DOM headquarters
- Office furniture, facilities and equipment

Budgetary Arrangement by DOM: Administration and local operation costs

	various data.
4.1	Review the current situation on warnings, and identify
	the areas to be improved.
4.2	Examine methods for the improvement of criteria
	through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of
	Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfall,
	strong winds and occurrence of lightning.
5.1	Review the contents of current meteorological
	information, and identify the issues to be improved.
5.2	Improve the contents of meteorological information.
5.3	Review the timing of information dissemination to
	ships and fleet.
5.4	Improve the contents of website of the headquarters.
5.5	Prepare smartphone compatible website.
5.6	Prepare educational material (ex. website, CDs, leaflet
	and publications) for weather services.

PROJECT DESIGN MATRIX (PDM) [Revised-1]

Narrative summary	Objectively Verifiable IndicatorsMeans of Verification	Important
		Assumption
Overall Goal: Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Number of the civil work projects for disaster mitigation that fully or partly utilize the improved meteorological information from DOM. Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved Weather forecast disseminated through mass media Number of the community level early warning system, hazard maps or evacuation plans that fully or partly utilize the improved Weather forecast disseminated through mass media 	
Project Purpose: More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.	 Traceability of meteorology instruments (Availability of national standards/frequency of inspection) Number of missing observation data Accuracy of rainfall forecast in the selected stations. Number of selected station where weekly forecast is enabled in trial basis. Annual administration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Progress reports of the Project Work reports of the short-term experts Work reports of the consultant team 	The government's policy to prioritize the disaster mitigation and reinforce relevant organizations including DOM is continued without significant changes.
 Outputs: 1. Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 3. Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data. 4. Warning criteria is elaborated. 	 1.1 Revision of the inspection and repairing (parts replacing) manual for AWS is completed during the Project. 1.2 Training on inspection and repairing of AWS is conducted for 70% of the relevant DOM staff. 2.1 Data from AWS are obtained and Annual administration reports of DOM Annual administration reports of DOM AWS is completed during the relevant DOM staff. AWS are obtained and Website of DOM 	Necessary budgets for maintaining meteorological equipment are allocated to DOM in 2015 and 2016.

5. The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	 made available to a full extent in DOM. 2.2 Binary data via. GTS are obtained and made available to a full extent in DOM during the Project. 3.1 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain ability to produce the short range and weekly weather forecast guidance. 3.2 At least 4 persons in DOM obtain ability to produce the weather forecast guidance of sea wind. 4.1 Number of areas where newly designed warning criteria that can meet the past disaster records are prepared. 	 The draft maintenance manual of meteorological equipment Training records on maintenance of meteorological equipment AWS data transmission records Training records on the weather guidance (up to 36 hours ahead and 168 hours ahead) Draft warning criteria Educational material for weather services 	
	prepared.		
	material for weather services.		
	5.2 Monthly access number of the DOM		
	Website is increased by 30% or		
	more.		
Activities	Inpu	uts	Pre-conditions
1.1 Review the current situation on maintenance and	(Japanese side)	(Sri Lanka side)	The appropriate
calibration of meteorological equipment and identify	Long-term expert:	Administration:	counterpart personnel
the issues to be improved.	Chief Adviser / Expert of Weather	Project Director, Project Manager	to participate in a
1.2 Procure the necessary instruments for calibration of	Services		series of training
meteorological equipment, and establish team(s) for		Counterpart personnel:	provided by the
proper maintenance and calibration.	Short-term experts:	C/P personnel from the relevant	Project are secured.
1.3 Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	- Expert of Meteorological Observation	divisions under DOM	
1.4 Conduct training on calibration of conventional and	- Expert of Satellite Data Analysis		
AWS equipment.		Facilities and Equipment	
1.5 Keview and revise the Standard Operation Procedure	Experts dispatched from the consultant:		

for manual and AWS observations.	- Leader / Expert of Weather - Office space for the long-term
1.6 Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts	Forecasting experts and other experts at the
replacing) user's guide for AWS.	- Expert Weather Guidance DOM headquarters
1.7 Conduct training on inspection and repairing of AWS.	- Expert of Meteorological Observation - Office furniture, facilities and
1.8 Review the upper air observation schedule.	Technology equipment
2.1 Review the current situation on transmitting and	- Expert of Data Management /
receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the	Information Technology Budgetary Arrangement by DOM
headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be	- Expert of Weather Information Administration and local operation
improved.	Dissemination costs
2.2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting	- Expert of Website
and receiving between AWS sites and the	- Project Coordinator / Weather
headquarters.	Forecasting Assistant
2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and	
identify the issues to be improved.	Machinery and Equipment:
2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS	- Laptop PC for the training of weather
3.1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting	guidance method
and identify the issues to be improved.	- Laptop PC for downloading data from
3.2 Conduct the training on the development of short	AWS logger
range (every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours	- Display for Weather Briefing
ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecast	- Multifunction machine (Printer /
guidance and verification.	Photocopy)
3.3 Produce short range (every 12 hours precipitation up to	- Printer
36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather	- Portable Calibration System (Portable
forecast guidance at the selected stations.	AWS)(temperature, atmospheric
3.4 Produce weather forecast guidance of sea wind at the	pressure, humidity, wind direction and
selected stations.	wind speed)
3.5 Conduct training on Satellite Animation and	- Standard Meteorological Instrument
Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).	(electric temperature and pressure
3.6 Verify and improve the existing methods of seasonal	sensor)
forecast.	- Spare parts for AWS
3.7 Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of	- Laminating machine

W	veather forecasting operation through integration of	-	Laptop PC for the training of editing a
v	various data.		website
4.1 R	Review the current situation on warnings, and identify	-	Software for editing a website
tł	he areas to be improved.	-	Additional lightning protection system
4.2 E	Examine methods for the improvement of criteria	-	Public Address System for Open Class
tł	hrough discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of	-	Projector for Open Class
F	isheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfall,	-	Spare bulb for Projector
S	trong winds and lightning strike.	-	Extension power cable for Open
5.1 R	Review the contents of current meteorological		Class-
iı	nformation and identify the issues to be improved.	-	GTS/Message Switching System
5.2 II	mprove the contents of meteorological information.		(including installation, adjustment, and
5.3 R	Review the timing of information dissemination to		initial operation instruction)
s	hips and fleet.		
5.4 Ii	mprove the contents of website.		
5.5 P	repare smartphone compatible website.		
5.6 P	Prepare educational materials (disaster awareness		
n	naterials) for the weather services.		

Annex 2

Flowchart


Work Schedule

Image: Sector							Pł	nase1																		Phase2		_
Image: Proper state in the state into any state interestate into any state into any state into any state into					2014									20	015											201	16	_
		9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	11	12	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
	Baseline Survey: Capacity Assessment in Sri Lanka	Ť			1.2	<u> </u>	<u> </u>		· ·		Ť		-	~				<u> </u>				~		,				Г
	Understanding of the maintenance and management conditions of the meteorological observation equipment and the maintenance and management capability of the staff		-																									[
	Current situation of the observation data transmission between the AWS sites and the DOM headquarters																											
	Understanding of the current condition of the GTS message switching system																											
	Evaluation of staff capability concerning meteorological forecasting																											_
	Evaluation of staff capability concerning the dissemination of meteorological information (including educational activities) and communication technology		-																									Γ
	Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.																											Γ
	To review the current situation on maintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved.																											Γ
<form> And and any share showed and any share showed any sh</form>	To procure the necessary instruments for calibration of meteorological equipment, and establish teams for proper maintenance and calibration.		Ì																									Г
<form> Inductor Science optically is provided by our processing and springed by our product is provided by our product is product in a springed by our product is product in a springe</form>	To establish the traceability of meteorological instruments.	<lons< td=""><td>g-term er</td><td>xpert's act</td><td>ivity></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Γ</td></lons<>	g-term er	xpert's act	ivity>																							Γ
In or or or build and your build and you	To conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment	<short< td=""><td>rt-term e</td><td>xpert's ac</td><td>tivity></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></short<>	rt-term e	xpert's ac	tivity>		1																					
<form>In the problem of problem o</form>	To review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observation.				1												_											
	To review and revise inspection and repairing (parts replacing) user's guide(s) for AWS																											
	To conduct trainings on the inspection and repairing of AWS																											
	To review the upper air observation schedule.	<lons< td=""><td>z-term e</td><td>xpert's act</td><td>ivitv></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td></lons<>	z-term e	xpert's act	ivitv>			-														-						-
	Transmitting and receiving canacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.		5	1		-																					-	
	To review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the			_							<u> </u>																	
	issues to be improved.																											
	To examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters.																										•	
In any any any any any any any any any an	To review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved.																											Γ
	To replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS.																										Ť	Ē
	Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data																											
	To review the current situation on the weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.																											
In partice whether shows that the shows	To conduct the training on the development of Short Range and Weekly (7 days ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance and verification.																											
In possible water fores water for some of Saw Mut at an solution and interactive Diagonis (SATAID) Image: Saw Mut at an solution	To produce Short Range and Weekly (7 days ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance at the selected stations.																										The second se	
A conduct the training on Satellite Attaining on Satellit	To produce Weather Forecast Guidance of Sea Wind at the selected stations.																										The second se	
I o view and improve the existing methods of second precipitation forecast. I </td <td>To conduct the trainings on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)</td> <td><shor< td=""><td>t-term e</td><td>xpert's ac</td><td>tivity></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></shor<></td>	To conduct the trainings on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)	<shor< td=""><td>t-term e</td><td>xpert's ac</td><td>tivity></td><td></td><td>1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></shor<>	t-term e	xpert's ac	tivity>		1																					
I i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	To review and improve the existing methods of seasonal precipitation forecast.			-	-																							
Variag criteria is aborated	To conduct on-the-job training on improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of various data.																											
	Warning criteria is elaborated																					_						Γ
No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DDC, Dept of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy mained information. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DDC, Dept of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy mained information. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DDC, Dept of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy mained information. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion discussion to high same for the improvement. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion discussion to high same for the improvement. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion discussion discussion to high same for the improvement. No summe methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion discussin discussindiant discusi discussion discussin discussion discussi	To review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved.																											
In endod dissemination and contents of meteorological information, and identify the issues to be improved. Image: Content of Content information, and identify the issues to be improved. Image: Content of Content information, and identify the issues to be improved. Image: Content of Content information, and identify the issues to be improved. Image: Content of Content of Content information, and identify the issues to be improved. Image: Content of Content o	To examine methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of Fisheries, etc. and nake new criteria for heavy rainfall, strong winds and lightning.										•												•				Ť	F
I or vice whe contents of current meteological information, and identify the issues to be improved. I	The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.			1				1				ĺ	İ															
I in prove the contents of weather information dissemination to ships and fleet I <td< td=""><td>To review the contents of current meteorological information, and identify the issues to be improved.</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td></td<>	To review the contents of current meteorological information, and identify the issues to be improved.																											
I i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	To improve the contents of weather information.																											
I i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	To review the timing of information dissemination to ships and fleet										1																	
I o para smartphone compatible Wessite I o mass media	To improve the contents of Website.						1																					
I conduct the training on papers to the mass media I conduct the training on update on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Website by the DOM. I conduct the training on the Webs	To prepare smartphone compatible Website	_	1				1																					
I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the Website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gulary update and maintain the poddets on the website byte DOM. I or gu	To conduct the training on responses to the mass media			_																		_						E
To provide the rainings on update of the contents To proper the update operation manual for the products on the webpages To proper the update operation manual for the products on the webpages To proper ducational anterial (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational for the products on the webpages To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materials) for the weather services. To not proper ducational material (biaster awareness materi	To regularly update and maintain the products on the Website by the DOM.		1			-	1	1		<u> </u>	<u> </u>	1							<u> </u>							<u> </u>		
To preduction manual for the products on the weather services. Image: Constraint of the product on the weather services. Image: Constraint of the product on the weather services. Image: Constraint of the product on the weather services. Image: Constraint on the weather services. <td>To provide the rainings on update of the contents</td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td>-</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>1</td> <td></td> <td><u> </u></td> <td></td> <td></td>	To provide the rainings on update of the contents		1	-			1					1														<u> </u>		
To preductional metrial (disaster awareness materials) for the weather services. Image: Constraint of the weather services. Image: Constrainton of the weather services. Ima	To prepare the update operation manual for the products on the web pages		1	-			1					1														<u> </u>	\neg	Ē
To conduct open classes Annual seminar Image: Conduct open classes Image: Cond	To prepare educational material (disaster awareness materials) for the weather services.			-			1					-														<u> </u>		
Annual seminar Image: Control of the control of th	To conduct open classes	-	+	-		-	1	-																				Ē
Training in Japan	Annual seminar	1	-	-	+	-		-		-																<u> </u>	\rightarrow	
	Training in Japan		-		1	-	<u> </u>					1															\rightarrow	Г



Expert Dispatch Schedule

						Phase				Phas	e 1		0045							Pha	se 2		- 1						Ph	ase 1	Ph	ase 2	Тс	otal
						Year Month	2 9 10	2014	12 1	2	3 4	5	2015	9 '	10 11	12	1 2	3 4	201	6 7 8	9 1	10 11	12	1 2	3 4	2017 5 6	5 7	8 9	Man	Month	Man	Month	Man-	Month
	No.	Field	Name	Company	Rank				_		-										-	_			_			_	Sri Lanka	Japan	Sri Lanka	Japan	Sri Lanka	Japan
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	IMC	2	Original Plan	18			21			21			21		18		18		18		18	1	8	1	I 3	2.00	-	4.30	-	6.30	-
		l				Mobilized	18		1	9			23			21		21	30		_	22			17 8	1 3	7		2.00	-	4.20	-	6.20	-
	2	Weather Guidance	Nobutaka NOGUCHI	IMC	3	Original Plan	18			21			21			21		21		21	_	18		18		8	18	-	2.00	-	4.50	-	6.50	-
c t						Original Plan	18		1	9			23			21		21	21			21			31	3	10	-	2.00	-	4.43	-	6.00	-
i V i		Material Observation			3	Mobilized	18		21	•	-	2	21			21		21	I E	21	+	18	3	18			21	+	2.00	-	4.07	-	6.07	-
t y	3	Technology	Toshihide ENDO	IMC		Original Plan			2	2			20	T		21		2	1	5					31	/			0.00	-	0.00	-	0.00	-
i n					4	Mobilized																				I _1	11		0.00	-	0.40	-	0.40	-
•	4	Data Management /	Takanari El I.III	.IWA	3	Original Plan	18			21			21				21		21			21					18		2.00	-	2.70	-	4.70	-
r i	-	Information Technology			0	Mobilized	18			21			21						21	1		20		13	1 <mark> </mark>	1 4			2.00	-	2.70	-	4.70	-
L	5	Weather Information	Soshi IWATA	JWA	3	Original Plan	18		2	21			21			21		18			18			18		18		15	2.00	-	3.60	-	5.60	-
n k		Dissertingtion				Mobilized	18				21	1	21			18			24			26		1	5	18	7	-	2.00	-	3.60	-	5.60	-
а	6	Website	Satoko NEGORO Motohiro YAMAUCHI	IMC	4	Original Plan					21		21				21	21		21			18	_	18		1	5	1.40	-	3.80	-	5.20	-
		Project Coordinator /				Original Plan			-		21	1	21			21		21	30		+	24						+	0.50	-	1.00	-	1.50	-
	7	Weather Forecasting Assistant	Rashid ZAMAN	IMC	5	Mobilized					15	1	15						10	15		1				15			0.50	-	1.00	-	1.50	-
											15								19			<u> </u>	Origin										05.00	
																							Ungin	al Plan	Man-Mo	nth Tot	al		11.90	-	23.90	-	35.80	-
																							Ungin	al Plan Mobili	Van-Mo zed Tota	nth Tot II	al		11.90 11.90	-	23.90 23.60	-	35.80	-
	1	Leader / Weather	***	IMC	2	Original Plan			0						0									Mobili	Van-Mo zed Tota	nth Tot		D 2	11.90 11.90 -	- - 0.30	23.90 23.60 -	- - 0.35	35.80 35.50 -	- - 0.65
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting	***	IMC	2	Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 00 21																	Mobili	Man-Mo zed Tota	nth Tot II 1 2 2 2		0 2	11.90 11.90 - -	- - 0.30 0.30	23.90 23.60 - -	- 0.35 0.45	35.80 35.50 - -	- - 0.65 0.75
	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance	***	IMC	2	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan										03				0 3		0		Mobili	Van-Mo zed Tota				11.90 11.90 - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45	23.90 23.60 - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60	35.80 35.50 - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05
A c	1	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance	***	IMC	2	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized							02 02 03			03		0 2 0 2 0 3 3 3			0	0 1 1		Mobili	Van-Mo zed Tota	nth Tot II 2 2 0 2			11.90 11.90 - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45	23.90 23.60 - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60	35.80 35.50 - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05
A c t i v	1 2 3	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology	••••	IMC IMC	2 3	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan							0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0							0 3 0 3				Mobili 12	Van-Mo zed Tota				11.90 11.90 - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25	23.90 23.60 - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20	35.80 35.50 - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45
A c t i v i t	1 2 3	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC	2 3 3	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan	0 3 21 21 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3								0 1 0 1 0 2 0 2 0 2									Mobili	Van-Mo zed Tota	IL Total			11.90 11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45
A c t i v i t y i	1 2 3 4	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology	***	IMC IMC IMC JWA	2 3 3 3	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 2 1 2 1 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 2 0 2						2 2 3 3 3 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		0 1 0 1 0 1 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2										Van-Mo zed Tota				11.90 11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25
A c t i v i t y i n J	1 2 3 4	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information	••••	IMC IMC IMC JWA	2 3 3 3 3	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 0 1 2 1 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 2 3 0 2 2																		Van-Mo zed Tota				11.90 11.90 - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10
Activity in Japo	1 2 3 4 5	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination		IMC IMC IMC JWA	2 3 3 3 3	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 0 1 2 1 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 2 3 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2																	Mobili 1 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Man-Mo				11.90 11.90 - </td <td>- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25</td> <td>23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td> <td>- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85</td> <td>35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td> <td>- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10</td>	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10
A c t i v i t y i n J a p a n	1 2 3 4 5	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination		IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA	2 3 3 3 3 4	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 0 I 2 I 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2								0 1 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1										Man-Mo zed Tota		al		11.90 11.90 - </td <td>- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25</td> <td>23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td> <td>- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15</td> <td>35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td> <td>- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25</td>	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website		IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC	2 3 3 3 3 4	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 0 I 2 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 3								0 1 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1										Man-Mo zed Tota		al		11.90 11.90 -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.25 0.45
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting	····	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC	2 3 3 3 3 4 5	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan	0 3 0 I 2 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 3 3 0 2 2 0 2 2 0 2 3 0 2 3 0 2 3 0 2 3 0 2 3 0 2 3 0 3 3 0 4 4 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 5 1 5 <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>0 1 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>al 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4</td><td></td><td>11.90 11.90 - -</td><td>- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10</td><td>23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60</td><td>35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60</td></t<>								0 1 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 1 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 3 0 2 0 1 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1												al 2 2 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4		11.90 11.90 - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	····	IMC IMC IMC JWA JWA IMC IMC	2 3 3 3 3 4 5	Original Plan Mobilized	0 0 2 1 2 1 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 1 <t< td=""><td></td><td>1 1</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Image: Constraint of the sector of the se</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Mobili Mobili 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4</td><td>Vlan-Mo zed Totz</td><td></td><td>al </td><td></td><td>11.90 11.90 - -</td><td>- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.0</td><td>23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90</td><td>35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -</td><td>- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35</td></t<>		1 1				Image: Constraint of the sector of the se											Mobili Mobili 2 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Vlan-Mo zed Totz		al 		11.90 11.90 - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.25 0.10 0.0	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35
Асtivity in Јарап	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	····	IMC IMC IMC JWA IMC IMC	2 3 3 3 3 4 5	Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized Original Plan Mobilized	0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 2 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 0 3 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1																	Mobili Mobili 1 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Vlan-Mo zed Tota 2 2 2 3 2 4 3 2 4 3 2 6 3 2 1 2 2 6 3 1 2 2 1 2 1 1 2 1 1 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1 2 1		al 		11.90 11.90 - -	- 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 1.45 1.45	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90 5.20	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.25 2.60 2.60 6.35 6.65
Activity in Japan	1 2 3 4 5 6 7	Leader / Weather Forecasting Weather Guidance Meteorological Observation Technology Data Management / Information Technology Weather Information Dissemination Website Project Coordinator / Weather Forecasting Assistant	 Report	IMC IMC IMC JWA IMC IMC	2 3 3 3 3 4 5 5	Original Plan Mobilized Schedule	□ 3 □ 1 2 1 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3						Image: Constraint of the sector of the se		Π Π			□ 2 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 3 □ 1 0 3 □ 1 0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1						Mobili Mobili 1 2 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4 4	Vlan-Mo zed Tota 26 26 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0		al 2 2 2 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		11.90 11.90 - -	- 0.30 0.30 0.45 0.45 0.25 0.25 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.10 0.00 1.45 1.45	23.90 23.60 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.35 0.45 0.60 0.60 0.20 0.20 0.20 0.15 0.15 0.85 0.85 0.85 0.15 0.35 2.60 2.60 4.90 5.20	35.80 35.50 - - - - - - - - - - - - -	- 0.65 0.75 1.05 1.05 0.45 0.45 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.25 1.10 1.10 0.25 0.45 2.60 2.60 6.35 6.65

:Activity in Japan

JWA: Japan Weather Association

W/P : Work Plan (Phase1) / Monitoring Sheet Ver.1 B/R : Baseline Survey Report M/S2 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 2 F/R1 Project Completion Report (Phase1)
 G/R2
 : Work Plan (Phase2)

 M/S3
 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 3

 M/S4
 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 4
 M/S5 : Monitoring Sheet Ver. 5 F/R2 : Project Completion Report (Phase1)

Counterpart Trainings in Japan

Counterpart Trainings in Japan

(1) JICA C/P Training Programs arranged by the Consultant Team

<Name of the Counterpart Trainings>

First Training: Weather Forecasting & Weather Information Dissemination

Second Training: Weather Forecasting

<Participating Trainees>

4 personnel from the Operational Weather Forecasters of the Department of Meteorology (DOM), Sri Lanka.

< Training Contents and Schedule>

First Training

Course Period	February 29, 2016 to March 15, 2016 (16 days)
Participants	1. Mr. JAYASEKERA Siri Ranjith (Director of Forecasting & Decision
	Support)
	2. Mr. KARUNANAYAKE Athula Kumara (Deputy Director, Training
	Division)
	3. Ms. JAYAKODY Preethika Madhavi (Meteorologist)
	4. Mr. PEIRIS Thammahetti Mudalige Nandalal (Meteorologist)
Training Venues	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya), Gifu University, Nippon
	Television Network, Inc., and Life Safety Learning Center, Tokyo Fire
	Department, Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi), JICA Tokyo
	International Center (Hatagaya).
Training Contents	1. Learning the principles of the local meteorological forecast model and sea
	wave forecast model.
	2. Understanding of the meteorology of turbulent flow in the surface boundary
	layer.
	3. Understanding of the heat budget of meteorological phenomena and of the
	human body.
	4. Understanding atmospheric pressure patterns and local meteorology as well

Table: Summary of the First Training

as learning the classification method of atmospheric pressure patterns.
5. Weather Information Dissemination

	Date	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	28 February	Colombo \rightarrow Chubu Centrair International Airport,	
1	(Sun)	Nagoya	
2	29 February	Orientation Priofing	JICA Chubu International
2	(Mon)		Center (Nagoya)
3	01 March (Tue)	Local meteorological forecast model 1	Gifu University
4	02 March (Wed)	Local meteorological forecast model 1	Gifu University
5	03 March (Thu)	Sea wave forecast model	Gifu University
6	04 March (Fri)	Meteorology of surface boundary layer and turbulent flow	Gifu University
7	05 March	Holiday (Excursion to heavy snowfall area:	
/	(Sat)	Shirakawago)	
8	06 March	Holiday	
	(Sun)		
9	07 March	Utilization of renewable energy (wind-power and	Gifu University
	(Mon)	solar power generation)	
10	08 March	Heat budget of meteorological phenomena and	Gifu University
	(Tue)	human body	
1 1	09 March	Local meteorology in Japan 1	Gifu University
11			
12	(Thu)	Local meteorology in Japan 2	Gifu University
13	11 March (Fri)	Classification of pressure pattern and regional meteorology (work study)	Gifu University
14	12 March (Sat)	Gifu →Tokyo	
15	13 March (Sun)	Holiday	
16	14 March	Disaster experience learning center such as heavy	Life Safety Learning Center,
10	(Mon)	rain and earthquake.	Tokyo Fire Department

Table: First Training Schedule

			(Oshiage)
		Weather information provision service by a	Nippon Television Network, Co.
		commercial private broadcasting station	(Shinbashi)
		Counterry coll	Japan Meteorological Agency
17	15 March	Couriesy call	(Otemachi)
1/	(Tue)	HCA Frankrike Martine	JICA Tokyo International
		JICA Evaluation Meeting	Center (Hatagaya)
1.0	16 March		
18	(Wed)	Narita \rightarrow Colombo	



Local meteorological forecast model 1 Training Course



Excursion to heavy snowfall area: Shirakawago

Second Training

Table: Summary of the Second Training

Course Period	March 9, 2017 to March 23, 2017 (15 days)
Participants	1. Ms. WARNASOORIYA Anusha Rashanthi Patabedi (Deputy Director)
	2. Mr. RATHUGAMAGE Malith Prasanna Fernando (Meteorologist)
	3. Mr. PREMATHILAKE Jayasinghe Sepalage D. S. (Meteorologist)
	4. Mr. KUMARA Athdath Waduge Susantha Janaka (Meteorologist)
Training Venues	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya), Gifu University in Japan, Tsukuba
	University in Japan, Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi), JICA Tokyo
	International Center (Hatagaya)
Training Contents	1. Learning the WRF (Weather Research and Forecasting) model and WRF
	Data Assimilation System (WRFDA)
	2. Practice on the operation and tuning of the WRF model and WRFDA

	Date	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	07 March (Tue)	Colombo →	
2	08 March (Wed)	\rightarrow Chubu Centrair International Airport, Nagoya	
3	9 March (Thu)	JICA Orientation Briefing	JICA Chubu International Center (Nagoya)
4	10 March (Fri)	Installation and Operation check of Linux and WRF	Gifu University
5	11 March (Sat)	Holiday	
6	12 March (Sun)	Holiday	
7	13 March (Mon)	Set up and Practical Run of WRF	Gifu University
8	14 March (Tue)	Sea Wave Forecast Model	Gifu University
9	15 March (Wed)	Drawing and Analyzing Output from WRF Model	Gifu University
10	16 March (Thu)	Local Climate Change in South East Asia Gifu → Takayama	Gifu University
11	17 March (Fri)	Highland Meteorological Observation and Data Acquisition Takayama → Gifu	Gifu University Takayama Observation Station
12	18 March (Sat)	Gifu → Tokyo →Tsukuba	
13	19 March (Sun)	Holiday	
14	20 March (Mon)	Understanding the WRFDA	Tsukuba University
15	21 March (Tue)	Set up and Practical Run of the WRFDA	Tsukuba University
16	22 March (Wed)	Evaluation of the WRFDA Practical Run and Tune-up Method	Tsukuba University
1.5	23 March	Tsukuba \rightarrow Tokyo Courtesy call	Japan Meteorological Agency (Otemachi)
17	(Thu)	JICA Evaluation Meeting	JICA Tokyo International Center (Hatagaya)

Table: Second Training Schedule

10	24 March	Norite - Colomba	
18	(Fri)	Narita → Colombo	



Sea Wave Forecast Model Training Course



Set up and Practical Run of the WRFDA Training Course



Courtesy call on Japan Meteorological Agency

(2) JICA C/P Training Programs arranged by the JICA HQs and the Long-term Expert

<Name of the Counterpart Training>

The 1st Program: Meteorological Instrument Calibration

The 2nd Program: Meteorological Observation

<Participating Trainees>

The 1st program: Staff in charge of meteorological instruments and electronics engineering of the DOM

The 2nd Program: Staff in charge of meteorological observations of the DOM

< Training Contents and Schedule>

The 1st training Program

Four staff of the DOM instrument division and the electronic division were trained in RIC-Tsukuba of JMA during two weeks in February 2016 in order to obtain the technique of meteorological instrument calibration as an unit of the activities 1.3 in the project "Establish the traceability of meteorological instrument" (Photo 2-1). Coupled with the short-term expert training courses in DOM, 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration 1' and 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration 2', the staff of the instrument division of DOM have obtained the full technique to make calibration of pressure and temperature instruments by themselves, and have started the new instrument calibration scheme in DOM.

The contents of the 1st training are summarized in the following Table.

		, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,
		Meteorological Instrument Calibration
	Training Period	February 8, 2016 to February 19, 2016 (12 days)
	Tariaina	Meteorological Instrument Center, JMA (RIC-Tsukuba)
	Iraining	Head Quarters, JMA
Outline of the	venues	Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
training		Ms. WEERAPPERUMAGE DONA Liliyan Malani
	Participants	(Meteorological Officer in charge, Instrument Division)
		Mr. METTASINGHE Napagoda Achchillage

Table: Summary of the 1st C/P Training Program

	(Meteorological Officer Class, Instrument Division)
	Mr. PRIYADHARSENA Wannakuwattawaduge Prasanna
	Kelum
	(Electronic Engineering, Electronic Engineering Division)
	Mr. HATHTHOTUWA GAMAGE Prasanna Ranga Kumara
	(Telecommunication & Radar Technical Officer, Electronic
	Engineering Division)
Training	1. Learning the techniques of meteorological instrument calibration
purposes	2. Acquiring information on meteorological obeservations

	Date 2016	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	7 February (Sun)	Colombo→Narita International Airport	
2	8 February (Mon)	JICA Briefing and orientation Training Orientation	JICA Tuskuba Int. Center RIC-Tsukuba
3	9 February (Tue)	Instrument calibration work Calibration of humidity, rainfall and wind measurement instrument	RIC-Tsukuba
4	10 February (Wed)	Calibration of thermometers and barometers Site visit to the radiosonde observation	RIC-Tsukuba
5	11 February (Thu)	Holiday	
6	12 February (Fri)	Visit to the surface observation site Lecture on meteorological observations Visit to the forecast and observation operation rooms	Head Quarters, JMA Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
7	13 February (Sat)	Cultural visit to Tokyo	RIC-Tsukuba
8	14 February (Sun)	Cultural visit to Kamakura	RIC-Tsukuba
9	15 February (Mon)	Calibration of thermometer at the freesing point Testing of phygrometers using the Assmann phygrometer	RIC-Tsukuba
10	16 February (Tue)	Calibration of thermometer at the thermal bath	RIC-Tsukuba
11	17 February	Calibration of barometers	RIC-Tsukuba

	Table: Schedule of the 1st Training	1

	(Wed)		
12	18 February (Thu)	Practice on calibrations of barometers and thermometers	RIC-Tsukuba
13	19 February (Fri)	Production of calibration manual of barometers and thermometers Evaluating the training and awarding certificates	RIC-Tsukuba JICA Tsukuba Int. Center
14	20 February (Sat)	Narita International Airport→Colombo	

The 2nd training Program

This program was designed for the DOM staff to learn the latest knowledge on meteorological observations for planning the modernization of DOM weather services. The number of the trainees was increased from the originally planned 4 people to 8 people so that staff at various levels such as from a deputy director to heads of the regional offices of DOM could discuss the modernization. The training program was implemented by the staff of JMA and a meteorological instrument manufacturer, and a professor of Kyoto University specialized in meteorological observations during two weeks in February 2017. At the end of the training, all the trainees discussed problems and issues in promoting the modernization of the meteorological observations in the future DOM, and compiled a proposal as the final report, and submitted it to the Director General of DOM after their return to Sri Lanka.

The contents of the 1st training are summarized in the following Table.

Meteorological Observations				
	Training Period	February 13, 2017 to February 24, 2016 (12 days)		
		JICA Tokyo International Center		
		Head Quarters, JMA		
	Training Venues	Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA		
		Aerological Observatory, JMA		
Oradi a section		Meteorological Instrument Center, JMA (RIC-Tsukuba)		
Outline of the		Kumagaya Local Meteorological Observatory		
training		Meisei Isesaki Factory		
		■ Mr. A. G. M. M. Wimalasooriya		
		(Deputy Director in charge of meteorological instruments)		
	Participants	Mr. P. A. A. Priyantha		
		(Meteorologist, Computer Division)		

Table: Summary of the 2nd C/P Training Program

		Ms. K. G. P. S. Wijerathne		
		(Meteorological Officer, Radar Division)		
		Ms. G. R. L. Palihapitiya		
		(Meteorological Officer, National Meteorological Centre)		
		■ Mr. D. M. Podibanda		
		(Meteorological Officer, Kurunegala Regional Office)		
		■ Ms. M. B. Iranganie		
		(Meteorological Officer, Puttalam Regional Office)		
		Ms T. D. Malani		
		(Communication Officer, Communication Divison)		
		 Mr W A T K Palitha de Silva 		
		(Telecommunication & Radar Technical Officer Electronic		
		Divison)		
		Divison)		
Training	Acquiring know	vledges on the latest technology of meteorological observations in		
purposes	order to make plan of the modernization of meteorological observation of the DOM			

	Date 2017	Training Contents	Training Venues
1	12 February (Sun)	Colombo→Narita International Airport	
2	13 February (Mon)	JICA Briefing and orientation Training Orientation	JICA Tokyo Int. Center
3	14 February (Tue)	Meteorology for surface observation Manual surface observation	
4	15 February (Wed)	Automated surface observation	
5	16 February (Thu)	Operation of automated surface observation Data quality check	
6	17 February (Fri)	Visit to the surface observation site Lecture on remote-sensing observations Visit to the observation operation rooms	Head Quarters, JMA Tokyo Regional Headquarter, JMA
7	18 February (Sat)	Cultural visit to Kamakura	
8	19 February (Sun)	Tokyo→Kumagaya	
9	20 February (Mon)	Services of regional meteorological observatories of JMA	Kumagaya Local Meteorological Observatory, JMA

Table: Schedule of the 2nd Training

		Manufacturing of meteorological instruments	Meisei Isesaki Factory		
	21 February	Lecture on the JMA meteorological satellite			
10	(Tue)	Site visit of the Doppler Radar for Aviation	Head Quarters, JMA		
10		Weather	Haneda International Airport		
		Haneda→Tsukuba			
	22 February	Upper-air observation			
11	(Wed)	Meteorological instrument calibration	Aerological Observatory		
		Tsukuba→Tokyo	RIC-1sukuba		
	23 February	Analysis on thecurent situations of the			
10	(Thu)	meteorological observation in Sri Lanka			
12		Discussion on the modernization of the	JICA Tokyo Int. Center		
		meteorological observation in Sri Lanka			
	24 February	Planning of the modernization of the			
12	(Fri)	meteorological observation in Sri Lanka			
15		Evaluating the training and awarding	JICA Tokyo Int. Center		
		certificates			
1.4	25 February	Navita International Airport - Calenda			
14	(Sat)	Narita international Airport→Colombo			

The photos of the trainers and trainees in the 1st and 2nd C/P training Programs are shown in Photo.



Photo The trainees, trainers and training conductors of the JICA C/P training program 'Meteorological Instrument Calibration (left)' and 'Meteorological Observations (right)'.

Provision of Equipment

Provision of Equipment

The Equipment procured by the Consultant for the activities of each expert and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Installation Place	Procurement Date
	Phase 1						
1	Wireless Router	D-Link	DWR-113	For Internet Access (Forecasting Room)	1	DOM Head Office	October 04, 2014
2	Laminator (A3)	BIOSYSTEM	SOUL 330C	For the distribution of Weather Information Dissemination Products	1	DOM Head Office	January 15, 2015
3	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	2	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015
4	Laptop PC for Establishment of Website	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (17inch)	For the conduct of the Training for Website creation and maintenance	1	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015
5	Laptop PC for Conduct of Training on, Weather Guidance	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (15inch)	For the conduct of Training on Weather Guidance	7	DOM Head Office	January 17, 2015
6	Laptop PC for the Download of Observation Data	DELL	Inspiron 5000 (15inch)	For the distribution of Weather Information Dissemination Products	1	DOM Head Office	January 17, 2015
7	Monitor for Weather Briefing	SHARP, etc.	SHPLC60LE650, etc.	For the conduct of Weather Briefing	1	DOM Head Office	January 19, 2015

Table: List of Equi	pment Provided	Under the Pro	piect (Procured b	v Consultant Team)

8	Additional Lightning Protection System	-	-	For the strengthening of the AWS Lightning Protection	3	Polonnarumwa, Aralaganwill and Ratnapura Observation Stations	January 30, 2015
9	Multifunction Machine (Printer/Photocopy)	CANON	IR2545	For the copy and printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	March 13, 2015
10	Website Template Program	JB TECH ENGINEERING	Joomla 3.4 Compatible	For the production of the Website	1	DOM Head Office	June 21, 2015
11	Spare Parts for the AWS - Data Logger - Wind Direction and Speed Sensor - Temperature Sensor - Rain Gauge - Pressure Sensor - Hygrometer - Cap for Humidity Transmitter	MEISEI VAISALA MEISEI MEISEI VAISALA VAISALA VAISALA	113115-001 WMT-700 , MES-39457 MES-39459 PTB-330A HMT-333 DRW010281SP	For the maintenance of the AWS	2 4 1 1 1 1 1 10	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
12	- Solar Radiation Sensor Standard Meteorological Instrument (Electric	EKO CHINO	MS402 CAB-F201-2, R900-F25AD	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
13	Standard Meteorological Instrument (Electric Pressure Sensor)	VAISALA	PTB330TS, M170	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015

14	Portable Calibration	VAISALA,	PTB330A, DLM,	For the calibration of the	1	DOM Head Office	July 8, 2015
	System (Portable AWS)	DELAIRCO, etc.	etc.	Meteorological Instrument	1		5 ary 0, 2015
	Phase 2						
15	Laser Pointer	KOKUYO	ELP-G10	For Training and Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	December 1, 2015
	Gun 1 Guntan Gun Our	YAMAHA,					
16	Sound System for Open	ELECTRO	Stagepass 400i, etc.	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	December 14, 2015
	Class	VOICE, etc.		-			
17	Projector with Screen for	EPSON, etc.	EB-W04, etc.	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	May 07, 2016
	Open Class						
18	Cooler Box	LION STAR	22L	For the calibration of the Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 2, 2016
19	Extension Power Code	CABLE REEL	30m	For Open Class	1	DOM Head Office	July 4, 2016
• •	Ice Shaving Machine	CHUBU	Hatsuyuki	For the calibration of the			
20		CORPORATION	HA-110S	Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
0.1	Thermometer Inspection	THOMAS	Celsius 100L	For the calibration of the	1		L 1 00 0016
21	Bath	KAGAKU		Meteorological Instrument		DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
22	Barometer Calibration	DAIICHI	110704070 004 1	For the calibration of the	1		
22	Device	KAGAKU	112/048/8-004-1	Meteorological Instrument	1	DOM Head Office	July 22, 2016
	Spare Parts for the AWS						
	- Data Logger	MEISEI	113115-001		2		
	- Temperature Sensor	MEISEI	MES-39457		3		
	- Rain Gauge	OGASAWARA	RS-102N1		3		
	- Pressure Sensor	VAISALA	PTB-330A		3		
23	- Hygrometer	MEISEI	MES-39458	For the maintenance of	3	DOM Head Office	July 22,
	- Cap for Humidity	VAISALA	DRW010281SP	the AWS	10		2016

	Transmitter						
	- Solar Radiation Sensor	EKO	MS402		3		
	- Surge Arrester for Power	MORINAGA	ALPK-VNJ2P		2		
	- Surge Arrester for LAN	SANKO	LAN-100IS		2		
	- GPS Antenna for Data Logger	POSITION	GA-08R (3M) BNC		2		
24	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	November 05, 2016
25	Printer (A3 Inkjet)	HP	Officejet 7110	For the printing of Training Material and Products	1	DOM Head Office	November 11, 2016
26	Hard Disk (4T)	Western Digital Corporation (WD)	MY PASSPORT	For the WRF Data Storage	1	DOM Head Office	April 06, 2017
27	Projector Stand	Shonzon Screen Works	Portable Tripod Projector	To set a projector at appropriate place promptly	1	DOM Head Office	May 29, 2017

(2) The Equipment procured by the Long-term Expert and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

Table, Liste of Equipment Drevided L	ndarthe Draiget (Dr	a aurad by Lang Tarma Ever	+ \
Table: Lists of Equipment Provided U	nder the Project (Pro	ocured by Long Term Expe	ert)

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Imstallation Place	Procurement Date
1	Camera	Nikon	D3300 Camera with 18-55mm VR II Lens	For the recording of project activities	1	DOM Head Office	January 7, 2015
2	Laptop computer	HP	Pavilion 15-P022tu	For the production of	1	DOM Head Office	January 16, 2015

			Core i3-4030U	training documents			
3	Multi-function Printer	Canon	iC MF 8580 CDW Multi-function Machine	For the printing training documents	1	DOM Head Office	February 5, 2015
4	Projector	Epson	Epson Multi- Media Projector	For the projecting training materials	1	DOM Head Office	March 12, 2015
5	Vehicle	Toyota	Hilux 4WD Double Cab including canopey	For the of survey of regional offices of DOM	1	DOM Head Office	March 31, 2015
6	GPS Receiver	Garmin	GPS eTrex 30	For the survey of identifying latitudes and longitudes of meteorological instruments	1	DOM Head Office	October 15, 2015
7	Freezer	Candy	Chest Freezer	For the producing ice to make freezing point calibration of thermometers	1	DOM Head Office	June 21, 2015
8	Air conditioner	Panasonic	S24RKH%6938905 133	For the air conditioning of the training center of DOM	2	DOM Head Office	August 11, 2016
9	Air conditioner	Panasonic	S24RKH%6938905 133	For the air conditioning of the training center of DOM	2	DOM Head Office	December 12, 2016
10	Digital Barometer	Vaisala	PTB330TS & Indicator M170	For the sub-standard of pressure	1	DOM Head Office	March 17, 2017
11	Printer	Canon	ImageCLASS LBP-8100n	For the printing weather charts to be connected with	1	DOM Head Office	August 18, 2017

		the GTS/MSS terminal		

(3) The Equipment procured by JICA and provided to the DOM under the Project is listed in the following table.

No.	Name of Equipment	Manufacturer	Model	Purpose	Q'ty	Installation Place	Procurement Date
1	GTS Message Switch System	ESS Weathertech Pty Ltd.	GTS Message Switch System	For the Exchange of Meteorological Information	1	DOM Head Office, Colombo International Airport and Mattala Rajapaksa International Airport	December 18, 2015
2	HimawariCast Reception System	Delairco Japan KK	HimawariCast Reception System	For receiving the Himawari-8 data	1	DOM Head Office and Colombo International Airport	August 16, 2017

Table: List of Equipment Provided Under the Project (Procured by JICA)

Minutes of Meeting for the Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)

Minutes of Meeting for the 1st Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)

0 MINUTES OF MEETING ON JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC) ආපදා කළනොකරණ දමානහංශය அனர்த்த முகாமைத்துவ அமைச்சு FOR MINISTRY OF DISASTER MANAGEMENT TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT FOR Vidya Mawatha Colombo 07, SRI LANKA "IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION" 260.538V 2003170 Labor - 2005120 Course ing AND "LANDSLIDE MITIGATION PROJECT" (CAL) 22412 2014 IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA The Chief Representative The Japan International Cooperation Agency Sri Lanka Office The series of discussions on the above captioned project among the official: Secretary to the Ministry of Disaster Management. Minutes of meeting on Joint coordination committee (JCC) for Technical cooperation project for "Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination" and "Landslide Mitigation Projects" As the result of the discussions, both sides have confirmed the main items described in the attached sheet. Two copies of the above meeting minutes which are signed by the Secretary are been sent herewith for necessary action please Colombo, December 19, 2014 Source Ver 15 But Wasantha Samaraveera Kiyoshi Amada Chief Representative, The Japan International Cooperation Agency Sri Lanka Office S. M. Mohamed Additional Secretary For Secretary Secretary The Ministry of Disaster Management Copyc Witness: Director General - Department of Meteorology - Ln.a Director General - NBRO - Ln.a. brannapole Irin Lalith Chandrapala Director Gener Director General The Department of Meteorology

ATTACHMENT

- 1. Date and Venue of Joint Coordination Committee
 - 1) Date: Tuesday, October 14th 2014
 - 2) Time: 14:00hrs to 17:00hrs
 - 3) Venue: Conference Room of Ministry of Disaster Management
 - 4) Agenda: As per attached.

2. Main Points Discussed

1) Welcome Address by Secretary to the Ministry of Disaster Management

Secretary, Ministry of Disaster Management welcomed IICA officials, JICA Experts and relevant officers from Department of Meteorology, National Building Research Organization and Disaster Management Centre.

She appreciated the past cooperation projects from Japan and JICA, which fulfilled the gaps existed in Disaster Risk Reduction. Though the project formulation took several years, she re-iterated her confidence that both projects would produce satisfactory results. She also expressed that meaningful and fruitful discussions are required for successful implementation of the project.

Therefore, she appreciated the conduct of JCC meetings every quarter and requested to conduct On-The-Job (OJT) Training to relevant officers for the sustainability of the projects. Based on the signed Record of Discussion (R/D), she requested the JICA Experts to transfer their skills and knowledge to counterparts to sharpen their skills.

2) Opening Address by JICA Chief Representative

JICA Chief Representative appreciated the cooperation between Sri Lanka and Japan to inaugurate both projects. While thanking all the related officers, he expected smooth and successful implementation of the Project as these two projects are mentioned in the Joint Statements of Japanese Government and Sri Lankan Governments

3) Explanation of the Work Plan on the Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination

Sri Lankan side indicated the following points for successful implementation of the project.

 $\boldsymbol{\diamond}$ The importance of the supply of the required equipment for the project as

concerned of the Government of Sri Lanka and the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) Sri Lanka Office have been conducted under chairmanship of Ms. S M. Mohamed,

Asiri Karunawardena The National Building Research Organization

indicated in the Record of Discussions (R/D).

- ◆ Request to provide the ID and password of data for SATAID by Japan Meteorological Agency through JICA.
- · To keep the first two years for mainly the project implementation and the third year for monitoring/verification
- JICA Sri Lanka responded to the above inquiries as follows.
- # JICA Sri Lanka will reconfirm the equipment to be procured in line with R/D.
- IICA Sti Lanka will contact JMA through JICA HQ and ask for ID and password of SATAID data.
- JICA Expert team indicated the schedule of weather forecasting and warning activities has been considered so that the first two years for mainly the project implementation and the third year for mainly verification of the accuracy and appropriateness.
- JICA expert team requested hazard information available at NBRO and NBRO agreed to provide them.
- 4) Explanation of the Work Plan on the Technical Cooperation for Landslide Mitigation Project

Sri Lankan side indicated following points for the successful implementation of the project:

- ϕ To expedite the survey and design process in order to start physical construction before the next monsoon season, which starts next April.
- Include the DMC staff when conducting OJT training on Early Warning.
- 4 Conduct trainings in Japan in the early first and second year, rather than having one in year 2016 and 2017.
- Since the four pilot sites are ear-marked by JICA out of 46 places approved by the cabinet, Sri Lankan side wishes to have the early implementation of the physical mitigation works in the project as the pattern of the rainfall changes.

JICA Sri Lanka responded to the above inquiries as follows

- JICA and JICA Expert team will try their best to meet the request from Sri Lankan side for expediting the physical works.
- JICA and JICA Expert team agreed to include DMC staff to conduct OJT on Early Warnings.
- JICA Expert team will reconsider the timing of trainings in Japan.

- JICA Expert team asked about the procedure of utilizing UAV for surface observation. Sri Lankan side agrees to take necessary arrangement for UAV usage with Ministry of Defense and Urban Development, Sri Lankan Air Force and Civil Aviation Authority.
- 5) Revision of Project Design Matrix (PDM)

While the percentage mentioned in the revised PDM is set below 100%, based on the request of Sri Lankan Side, JICA Expert team assured to conduct OJT to all the staff concerned in the project. Proposed revision of the PDM was approved as per attached (Annex 2).

6) Project Launch

Both the Sri Lankan Side and JICA side agreed to organize Project Launch for both project. Date of the Launch should be late November or early December as budget related works finish in middle of November.

Both sides agreed to have further discussion to finalize the date.

7) Next JCC Meeting

Chairperson has informed that next JCC meeting to be organized in January 2015.

Amex:

Annex 2

r 20'4

- 1 Agenda of JCC
- 2. PDM version 1
- 3. List of Attendants

Agenda on Joint Coordinating Committee for

"Landslide Mitigation Project" and "Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination"

Date: 14th October, 2014

Venue: Conference Room, Ministry of Disaster Management Time: 14:00 -

- 1. Opening Address: Secretary, Ministry of Disaster Management
- 2. Opening Remarks: Chief Representative, JICA Sri Lanka
- 3. Explanation of Work Plan: DoM project expert team
- 4. Explanation of Work Plan: NBRO project expert team
- 5. Revision of PDM: DoM project
- 6. Revision of R/D (Assignment of Counter Part and other necessary revision): Both project
- 7. Launch of the project: Both project
- 8. Closing remarks

END

11

Peujee for Improvi	ag of Meteorological Observation. Weather Fore	catting and Diverniantion Very	ion 1 as of 14th Deliab
Narrauye sammany:	Objectively Ventiable Indicators	Mems of Verification	Temportum Assum
Overall Gent: Wether advantage determinated from the DOM is well without by the public and the disaster related arguminations	 Number of the tirtl work projects for theaster miligration that fully or partly ublice the intertored meteorological information from DOM 	 Aumul reports from Distate Management Centre (OMC), Integroos Department Nanoual Building Research Organization, Department of Fisheries and other relevant 	1
	 Number of the community level with witzung costen hazard maps or exocution plan, that fully or putity unline the mattored networkological information from DOM. 	- Interview onthe above organizations - Interview onthe tabove organizations - Westher forceast disseminated furough mass media	1
Project Purpose: More presents and finale memorylamori information is	 Tracebulity of matteoroio gy unitruments (Availability of seismul) 	- Amnul administration reports of DOM Pacced of the MC conscise	The government's
distantialed to the priblic and the district related	vanderds frequency of impertum)	- Plotters reports of the Angel	cultipation and rep
	2 Number of maissage objectivation data	 Work reports of the consultant learn. Work reports of the consultant learn. Withere of DOW 	tretevant organizati includant DOM in Administration
	 Accuracy of manifull forecast in the selected starnon: 	success of the local data	significant charge
	 Number of selected (price wheely) forecast is embled in bill base. 		
Ourpure: Capacity on maintenance and collicitation of meteorological observation equipment is improved	 Revuine of the inspectant and repairing (purst registrant) manual fits AWS is completed during the Project Townseed during the Project 	 Atmual admanistration reports of DOM Record of the JCC meeting Ploguers reports a the Project trob 	Necessary budgen montaining meteorological
 Trensanting and receiving capacity of varous kinds of averaging data is trensphered 	AWS is conducted for XXVs of the relevant DOM shaft	 West reports of the consultant reports Website of DOM The draft mainfeatore manual of 	to DOM in 2015 - 2016
 Capacity of treatmer forecasting is improved trang element meteors logical data 	AWS it conducted for "G", of the relevant DOM real	meteorological equipment - Thaining (records on maantements of meteorological economent	
4. Warting tribens in elaborarda	 Data from AWS are obtained and ande available to a full entreat on DOM. 	-AWS data irransmission percords - Trucoury records on the short range	
 The method of dissemination and contents of methodological 	made uralible to a full extent in DOM	- Transmer records on the weekly tange	

policy inster doute one

In cored

forecast	- Linda Parange concela - Educitorical Indential Si weller services			
duung the Preject.	3.1 At Ferri XX, percenti in the DOM obtain its statistic solution terms in the DOM obtain the statist is resonant DOM obtain the involution of the constraints and weather around the CXX retention the DOM obtain the weather fiscast patients.	 Number of area where newly designed warming enterna field cho meet the part district necoch me prepared. 	6.1 Number of developed encentation antend for weather services 5.2 Months zerses manner of the DOM Weither surgested by XXTs, or more Districtly zorses number of the DOM Weathy zorses number of the DOM	M SCHIE II UNFERGED OF AU COLOUR M
information are improved.				Actuaties

					Ry-conditions The appropriate comparing properties in participate as second framing provided by the Physici are second
Sn Lether ode Administration.	Project Director, Project Mualifier Counterpart periorabil	CP personnel from the relevant distribution under DOM	Facelines and Equipment	 Office space in the logic structure experiment and solver spaces: a cabo 2003, molecular and cabo structure in the compared structure in the logic structure experiment. 	
Japanete alde Laug-terra expert	Chief Adviser - Expert of Weather Sension Montation caperts	 Expert of Meteorological Observation Expert of Sateline Data Analysis. 	Experts departched from the consultant	Linder Expert of Media Forecanner Expert (Media Stereaution February) February February February February Dave of Webue Davemante Davemante Davemante Propert (Orbanie Propert Orbanie Propert Prop	Lipper Per Rule at Human of Nether multipler enablisher training of Nether Lanson Per Rule Annulosedine data Bona Artis's Jarres Date and Mitchinering auxiliare (Trainer Parasis) and Artis's articular (Trainer Parasis) and Artis's artistical (Trainer Parasis) and Artis's artistical (Trainer Parasis) and Artis's artistical Artistical (Artistical California (Trainer) Artis's artistical (Network) Artistical (Network) Artistic
leview the current apputton on mombenance and alibration of mercorological equipment and identify the same to be improved	Possite the necessary measurements for calibration of mercorological equipments and establish terms(s) for proper municensities and calibration.	control are necessary to unrecording an anomalization (under traume to calibration of conventional and AWS equipment Petros and recise the Standard Operation Procedure for	maranal and AWS observations Review and revise trabestion and reprintments	Optional just's indust for AUS Condentization, or importance of AUS Condentization, or importance of AUS Forese the approximation of explanation of AUS Forest the Approximation or intransmission of AUS Forest the Contrast anticological and the Australian Forest the Contrast anticological and the Australian Forest the Contrast AUS and AUS and Australian Australian Australian Australian Australian Forest the Contrast anticological and Australian Australian Australian Australian Australian Palaine and Agreente and Australian Australian Australian Australian	Construct remains on Arrangement of Weather product problems for about names for lives and weather product problems for about names for lives and weather forecast publications instructions in the second second second second second results. There weather product for short name and models are understanding to the second second results of the second second second second results are understanding to the second results of the second second second second results are results for second second result (pather of large second second second result (pather of large second second second result (pather of large second second second second results results).

animum tabelane proper RC for the training of editing a crypture relation who paper balancial lightmang provision system tables. Additional lightmang provision system tables. Additional lightmang provision system	gane Valle for Poinciens Transens gane rechtening Syntem 175 Metodige Switchung Syntem		
errors transmission of Sheddler Aumentiat and Entreprise . Montext transmission Sheddler Aumentiat and Entreprise . Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montextext(AATAD) Montext(AATAD)	The second secon	Informate Revents the contents of current meteorological unformation and elemptic the treates to be improved languest the contents of the meteorological unformation. Revense the remote of antenenties docentration to cherry and there	improve the excention to the numeric numeric and menopatities. Proprior transmittures of the contention of the numeric of the

LIST OF ATTENDANCE

JOINT COORDINATING COMMITTEE (JCC) FOR TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT FOR "IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION" IN

THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Location: Conference Room, Department of Meteorology Time: 1400 hrs , October 14, 2014

No.	Name	Position	Signature
1	S. M. Mohamed.	seeny	Ser.
2	habilk Chandrapele	DG, DOM	lein
3	MAD GEN. A.B. R. MARK (Rel)	39. 3Mc 4	De~
4	Asir lamanwark	P. N BRU	A
5	R.H.S. Randor-	D/LALLO. NERO	1 L
6	K HMS Preneabl	Direct (DOBA)	()e
7	Numer Kumerssiethe	Glangher com	2
8	J. D. G. Sungel	Assist Drock	B-
9	A-2- Riyas	Engineer	Pg.
10	krotahi Kawakami	JICA Expert	ME

-	Rywichi HARA	JICA Expert for TO LAMP	i in
12	Karichi HANDI	JICA EXPART	atig:
13	Kobulana NOGWER!	1	Ste
14	Takanovi FEJ71		in t
15	Toshihide EKDO	JICA Export	34
16	Soshi Iwata	JICA Expert	(Tob)
17	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	JICA Expert	(30)
18	Masahite Ishiham	JICA Expit	(2743)
19	Toshiyuk Shimano	Representative JICA Sri Lamba	352
20	kiyoshi AMADA	Chief Representative JISA Sei Conton	30)
21	J. D.G. Sennych	Asses) Dinedo	F
22			<u> </u>
23			
24			
25			

Minutes of Meeting for the 2nd Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC) FOR THE TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT ON THE "IMPROVEMENT OF THE METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION" IN

THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

The series of discussions on the above captioned project among the officials concerned of the Government of Sri Lanka and the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) Sri Lanka Office have been conducted under the chairmanship of Mr. S. S. Miyanawala, Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management. As the result of the discussions, both sides have confirmed the main items described in the attached sheet.

Colombo, November 18, 2016

1 Anto

Chief Representative, Japan International Cooperation Agency JICA Sri Lanka Office

Lalith Chandrapala Director General, Department of Meteorology (DOM)

with the long term JICA expert for the project activities.

Activity 1: Capacity on the maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.

The long term JICA expert emphasized the significance of the establishment of the traceability of wind and minfall measurements in the DOM and also recommended the replacement of the existing aluminum screens with wooden screens in order to improve the performance of the existing thermometer screens of AWS against solar radiation. The DOM agreed to this comment and recommendation.

Activity 2: Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened

The JICA consultant team requested the DOM to provide the information on the progress of the tender result of the procurement for IP-VPN Service for the existing AWS observation network in lieu of the existing VSAT network and the schedule of transition from the existing VSAT network to the new IP-VPN. The DOM mentioned that the IP-VPN Service provider would be selected by March 2017 and the transition from the existing VSAT network to the new IP-VPN should immediately commence after the selection.

The IICA consultant team noted the necessity of the official request of the DOM to the India Meteorological Department for the provision of meteorological data through GTS in the "Binary Universal Form for the Representation of Meteorological Data (BUFR)." The DOM replied that the request has already been made and that they would make a follow-up. In addition, the DOM mentioned that an alternative such as the Than Meteorological Department: might be considered in lieu of the India Meteorological Department.

The JICA consultant team further noted that the training on Moving Weather module to access WAFS data via the Secure SADIS FTP has already been approved by the JICA Head Office and is scheduled to be conducted in 2017 after meteorological data through GTS in the "Binary Universal Form for the Representation of Meteorological Data (BUFR)" coming to the National Meteorological Center, Colombo has been transferred.

Activity 3: Capacity of meteorological forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.

The JICA consultant team emphasized the importance of the continuous operation of the Numerical Weather Prediction (NWP) model of the DOM (WRF) by a high speed computer

A 6-

ATTACHMENT

L. Project Name

Technical Cooperation Project for the Improvement of the Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

2. Implementing Agency

Ministry of Disaster Management, Department of Meteorology (DOM), Sri Lanka and the Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

3. Presentation of the Project Progress by the Project Manager of DOM

Director (project), Department of Meteorology presented the progress of the project. On average 80% of the project has been completed and still there are some mismatching with the development of warning criteria. Copy of the presentation is attached as annex 2,

4. Presentation of the Project Progress by the JICA Long Term Expert

As shown in Annex 3, the JICA long term expert described the activities of establishment of the traceability of meteorological instruments and reviewing the upper-air observation schedule. He reviewed tow training courses in Japan on instrument calibration and weather Jorecasting, and also showed three training programs planned in DOM by short-term experts on tropical meteorology, as well as the lecture on basic meteorology by the long term expert. He particularly stressed the importance of implementation of the daily upper radiosonde observation in Sri Lanka, which is currently made three times a week.

5. Introduction of the Project Products by the DOM and the Consultant Expert Team

the JICA consultant team gave to each of the attendees some of the major project products such as the DVD of the Disaster Awareness Cartoon entitled "Save Yourself," EP1: Climate of Sri Lanka, EP2: Thunderstorm and Lightning, EP3; Heavy Rain and Disaster), a rubber DOM mascot, leaflets and the Beaufort Scales of Land and Sea (Shinhsla, Tamil and English) and showed EP2: Thunderstorm and Lightning for a few minutes.

6. Relevant Items Discussed

The following discussions were held between the DOM and the JICA expert team together

Als

system, establishment of easy acquisition environment of the required Numerical Weather Prediction value and also the development of more qualified technical personnel for the Numerical Weather Prediction (NWP) model for the establishment of automatic weather forecast guidance in the DOM. The DOM has completely agreed with all the recommendations made by the team.

Activity 4: Warning criteria is elaborated

The JICA consultant team introduced the newly proposed Warning/Advisory Criteria of Heavy Rain and Warning/Advisory Signs (Heavy Rain, Strong Wind, Lightning, Cyclone and Tsunami) which conform to the "Universal Design" and which is a result of the data analysis of the events caused by strong wind in Sri Lanka. In addition, the JICA consultant team recommended to the DOM to request the Disaster Management Center to indicate necurate occurrence time and location (latitude and longitude) of each event in the disaster database for effective utilization of the disaster database by many sectors.

Activity 5: The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information is improved.

The JICA consultant team introduced the following options to be made in 2017 by the team and the DOM together in order to increase the number of access to the new DOM Web site.

- Distribution of leaflets (flyers) to promote the DOM URL to visitors including students who attended the school trips and open classes.
- Embedding the link of the DOM Web Site in the weather forecasting videos available in Youtube.
- Establishment of more external links from Web Sites to be accessible by users who require weather information (golf courses, ferry terminals, TV stations, airport, hotels, wedding halls, sports stadiums, tourism sector, government authorities, JICA Sri Lanka office's Facebook page) through the provision of a banner icon to link the new DOM Web Site
- Improvement of the new DOM Web Site's placement on the major search engine results

The JICA consultant team requested the DOM to select the schools where the Open Classes would be conducted and to make necessary arrangements and appointments with the schools selected. The DOM positively agreed to the requests and indicated to conduct the Open Classes together with the team.

7. JICA Senior Representative appreciated the cooperation between Sri Lanka and Japan

Au

regarding the Technical Cooperation Project. The Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management and Director General of the Department of Meteorology indicated their appreciation to the JICA officials. Annex 1: List of Attendees of the JCC Annex 2: Presentation file of the project progress by the Project Manager of the DOM Annex 3: Presentation file of the project progress by the JICA Long Term Expert Annex 2 1.0 j. A los

Joint Coordination Committee (JCC) 18th November, 2016

THE PROJECT FOR IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION

> TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT DOM and JICA Team

Title of the Project

The Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination

Overall Goal

7

la.

Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations.

Project Purpose

More accurate and timely meteorological information is disseminated to the public and the disaster related organizations.

Main Outputs

A

Let.

Se

Charlestoke	Result
Output [1]	Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.
Output [2]	Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.
Output [3]	Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.
Output [4]	Warning criteria is elaborated.
Output [5]	The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.
SPF 4	

THE PROJECT FOR IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION















Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS





Forecast in Different Scales

Activities

A

6

- Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.
- Conduct the training on the development of short range (every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecast guidance and verification.



- Prepare weather guidance products for rainfall for short range (4 stations: Colombo, Ratnapura, Potuvil and Puttalam), weekly and seasonal (2 stations: Colombo and Ratnapura) at the selected stations.
- Produce weather forecast guidance of sea wind at the selected stations.
- Verify and improve the existing methods of seasonal forecast.
- · Conduct on-the-job training on improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of various data.
- · Conduct training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).



Results		100	
Colombo			
Short Range Rainfall Forecast	12h	24h	36h
Eirst Intermonsoon	0.57	0.62	0.42
Southwast Mansoon	0.90	0.43	0.54
Second Intermonsoon	0.66	0.69	0.62
Northeast Monsoon	0.52	0.59	0.52
		(Mit	Itiple Regressi

State and a state

T

4

ler



Output [4] Early Warnings Activities • Review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved. • Examine methods for the improvement of criteria through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept. of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rainfall, strong winds and lightning




DOM Warning Symbols





Improvement of Warning Afferia (Heavy Rain)



A ler













Man-Month Schedule for Implementation

PROJECT FOR MIRROWIG OF NETLORIO, ORIGINATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMILITION IN THE DEMOCRATIC BOOM ST REPURING OF SRI LAWA, IPHOSED

7

64

X

(e)



Man-Month Schedule for Implementation



PROJECT FOR MPHIDING OF METEOROLOGICAL DESERVATION WEATHER FORECASTING AND DESEMINATION IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIAL BY REPUBLIC OF SPULANAL IPHOSES

Activities of Long-term Expert During 2014 to 2016

- 1. Total Advising for the Project
- 2. Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments
- 3. Reviewing the Upper-air Observation Schedule
- 4. Training Courses in Japan and Training Programs by Short-term Experts in DOM
- 5. Lecture on Meteorology
- 6. Others

 \geq

5

Ser

2 Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments

Annex 3

Activities of Long-term Expert During 2014 to 2016

in

A

ler

4

4

JICA-DOM Joint Technical Cooperation Project for "Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in Sri Lanka"

> Second Joint Coordination Committee 18 November 2016

> > Masahito Ishihara Project Chief Advisor JICA Long-term Expert



Improved Pressure Calibration Flow



Improved Temperature/Humidity Calibration Flow



Preparation of New Instrument Calibration System

Training Course in Japan, February 2016



X

E

Renovation of the calibration room



DOM Continuous Education and Training Program at Bandarawela, August 2016



Draft of the rule of inspection of meteorological instruments

(General provision) Article 1

This rule defines the inspection of the meteorological instruments (hereinafter referred to as "instruments") in Sri Lanka Department of Meteorology (hereinafter referred to as "DOM"). The inspection is hereinafter referred to as "instrument inspection".



3 Reviewing the Upper-air Observation Schedule

P

Activities of Long-term Expert During 2014 to 2016

- 1. Total Advising for the Project
- 2. Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments
- 3. Reviewing the Upper-air Observation Schedule
- 4. Training Courses in Japan and Training Programs by Short-term Experts in DOM
- 5. Lecture on Meteorology
- 6. Others

 \geq

5





2 Establishment of the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments

Time Table for New Calibration System



Improved Pressure Calibration Flow

A

Ser





Preparation of New Instrument Calibration System

Training Course in Japan, February 2016



Renovation of the calibration room

5

P



DOM Continuous Education and Training Program at Bandarawela, August 2016



Draft of the rule of inspection of meteorological instruments

(General provision) Article 1

This rule defines the inspection of the meteorological instruments (hereinafter referred to as "instruments") in Sri Lanka Department of Meteorology (hereinafter referred to as "DOM"). The inspection is hereinafter referred to as "instrument inspection".



Reviewing the Upper-air Observation Schedule

Recommendations

T

A

5

 The schedule of the radiosonde observations of DOM, three times per week, should be shifted to daily observation.

Until the daily observation through a year will be established, daily operation should be made during two inter-monsoon seasons, when risk of heavy rainfall is higher than in the Monsoon seasons.

 Although DOM radiosonde observation time (06 UTC) is not much to the WMO standard time (00 UTC, 12 UTC), the current observation data are appropriately utilized in the forecast services of DOM. Radiosonde observation at 00 UTC and 12 UTC, should be considered in the middle-term operation plan of DOM to coincide with the WMO standards.

The existing pilot-balloon observations should be continued in order to

monitor the mesoscale circulation over Sri Lanka. Installation of a wind profile network system should be discussed in the long-term plan of DOM.



Accuracy of Radiosonde Observation in the world (00 UTC)



Accuracy of Radiosonde Observation in the world (00 UTC)



4 Training Courses in Japan and Training Programs by Short-term Experts in DOM

Planned Training Courses by Short-term Experts

Theoretical Meteorology in the Tropics:

21 November to 2 December, 2016 Manabu YAMANAKA, PhD Senior Researcher, Professor Emeritus of Kobe University, Japan Maritime Continent Climate Team Japanese Agency Marine-Earth Science and Technology (JAMSTEC)

Operational Meteorology in the Tropics:

23 to 27 January, 2017 Atsushi GOTO, MSc Scientific Officer Tokyo Climate Center, Climate Prediction Division Global Environment and Marine Department, Japan Meteorological Agency

 Weather Analysis in the Tropics using SATAID: April, 2017 After the installation of the Himawari-cast system at DOM by JICA

- Planned Training Courses by Short-term Experts (cont.)
- Instrument Calibration I: 13 to 20 January, 2017

Sadanori Arakaki, Msc

Satoshi Hagiya

6

WMO Regional Calibration Center, Japan Meteorological Agency

- Instrument Calibration II: July or August, 2017 Details are not decided.
- Planned Training Courses in Japan
- Weather Forecasting II: February to March , 2017
 Details are being arranged by the JICA Consultant Team.
- <u>Meteorological Observations</u>: 13 to 24 February, 2017 Modernization of meteorological observations

 Training Courses in Japan (Instrument Calibration) 8 to 19 February 2016, Tsukuba and Tokyo, 4 DOM staff





A

6

6





 Training Courses in Japan (Weather Forecasting) 29 February to 15 March, 2016 Gifu University and Tokyo Organized by the JICA Consultant Team 4 DOM staff





-7

6 Others

- Participating in the surveys of landslide sites conducted by Mr. Handa of the JICA-NBRO Project: Koslanda 2014, Kotmale 2015 and Aranayake 2016.
- Suggesting basic planning of the JICA Project for the Establishment of a Doppler Weather Radar Network in Sri Lanka.
- Coordinating the short-term research visits to the Disaster Prevention Institute of Kyoto University.

A

5

 Visiting the DOM weather stations in order to examine the current situation of the surface observation in Sri Lanka. 5 Lecture on Meteorology



X

ler.

7

6v



18



Minutes of Meeting for the 3rd Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)

MINUTES OF THE MEETING

OF THE JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC) ON THE TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT FOR THE IMPROVING OF THE METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION

IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

The series of discussions on the above captioned project among the concerned officials of the Government of Sri Lanka and Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA) Sri Lanka Office have been conducted under the chairmanship of Mr. S. S. Miyanawala, Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management. As the result of the discussions, both sides have confirmed the main items described in the attached sheet.

Colombo, May 02, 2017

te Inta

bennompele

Fusato Tanaka Chief Representative Japan International Cooperation Agency JICA Sri Lanka Office Lalith Chandrapala Director General Department of Meteorology (DOM)

complete the transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system as soon as possible. The DOM indicated that the contract procedures are in progress and agreed to complete the transition quickly.

 Introduction of the Current Progress of each Activity of the JICA long term expert as of April 2017

The JICA long term expert made the Introduction of the Current Progress of each Activity in his scope as of April 2017.

7. Presentation of the JICA Counterpart Trainings in Japan in 2017

After the Introduction of the Current Progress of each Activity in his scope by the JICA long term expert, he continued to make the Presentation of the JICA Counterpart Trainings in Japan in 2017.

 Presentation of the Further Activities of the JICA long term expert and the Consultant experts by the end of the Project

The JICA long term expert and the Consultant experts presented the Further Activities that will be conducted by the end of the Project.

9. Explanation of the Prospective Recommendations for the Overall Goal of the Project

The JICA long term expert explained that the Prospective Recommendations delivered to each attendee is just the draft and that it would be finalized soon.

10. The Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management and the Director General of the Department of Meteorology expressed their appreciation to all the attendees of the JCC.

Annex 1: List of Attendants of JCC

- Annex 2: Project Achievement
- Annex 3: Important issues for the successful completion of the Project
- Annex 4: Further Activities of the JICA Consultant Experts Team Annex 5: Activities of JICA Long Term Expert
- Annex 6: Planning up to the completion of the project

Annex 7: Prospective Recommendations (Draft)

JI ler

ATTACHMENT

1. Project Name

Technical Cooperation Project for the Improving of the Meteorological Observation. Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

2. Implementing Agency

Ministry of Disaster Management, Department of Meteorology (DOM), Sri Lanka and Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

3. Summary on the Achievements of the Activities of the Project

An introduction of the summary on the Achievements of the Activities of the Project was made by the Director General of the DOM and the DOM mentioned that it is expected that all the Achievements indicated in the Project Design Matrix (PDM) will be satisfied by the completion of the Project. Especially, the DOM mentioned that the re-tender for the selection of the IP-VPN service provider was already completed last March for the transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system.

 Introduction of the Current Progress and Issues of each Activity and Achievement of Output by the JICA consultant team as well as the Achievement of the Project Purpose in the PDM as of April 2017

After the introduction delivered by the DOM, the JICA consultant team made the Introduction of the Current Progress and Issues of each Activity and Achievement of Output as well as the Achievement of the Project Purpose in the PDM as of April 2017.

5. Explanation of the Significant Issues for the Successful Completion of the Project

The JICA consultant team explained the following significant issues for the successful completion of the Project.

- Training on the operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch procured under the Project.
- · Transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system.

The JICA consultant team mentioned that the last training on the operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch just started today for 5 days which will be completed by May 06, 2017. In addition, the JICA consultant team requested the DOM to

2

m.

Lev!

Annex-1

LIST OF ATTENDANTS

JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC)

FOR TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT FOR

IMPROVING OF METFOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION

> IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Location: Conference Room, Ministry of Disaster Management Time: 40:00, May 02, 2017

No.	Name	Position	Signature
1	S.S. Mizjanawala	Sec /MOM	Gu
2	habita chandrapale	DG LOOM	leson
Ē	KHMS Premale	Director (Daw)	Ju
4	viasahitu Isluhara	JICA Long taring Esport	るならに
5	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	JICA CONSULTANT Expert Team	the
6	NobutaFa NOGUCHI	JICA Consultant Team	野口管房
7	Toshihide ENDO	DICA CONRIBUST TEAM	Stal
8			
9	L		
10			

Project	Indicators		Achievements of Project Purpose
Purpose Weather information disseminated from the DOM is well attilized by the public and the disaster	 Traceability of meteorolo instruments (Availability standards/frequency of in 	gy of national spection)	In addition to the completion of the planned establishment of the traceability of the meteorological instruments for temperature and atmospheric pressure, the traceability of the meteorological instruments for humidily and wind speed were also partly established which was not part of the original plan.
related organizations.	2. Number of missing obser	vation data	The transition, from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system is planned to be implemented from May to June 2017. Once done, the number of missing observation data will be confirmed.
	 Accuracy of rainfall force selected stations. 	tast in the	Preparations for the increase in the accuracy of rainfall forecast have been completed after the completion of minfall forecast guidance 12, 24 and 36 hours alteral 4: 2 points (Colomba and Ratnapura) using the Grid Point Value of DOM's numerical prediction model (WRF). Semi-automatic: Linux, Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours precipitation) Weather Forecast Guidance with the WRF Grid Point Vale has been operating for the increase in the accuracy of rainfall forecast of Colombo.
	 Number of selected static weekly forecast is enable basis. 	m where d in trial	Colombo and Ratnapura: Weekly forecasts guidance was conducted from January to July 2017 on a trial basis using Model Output Statistics (MOS) with the GFS numerical prediction model of the NOAA.
Output	Indicators		Achievement of Output
1.	[-]	-	100%5
Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation	Revision of the inspection of (parts replacing) manual completed during the Project 1-2	and repairing for AWS is t	The Cleaning/Maintenance Procedure for the AWS, Preventive Maintenance Record Book for the AWS and the Spare Parts Replacement Procedure for the AWS lave been revised. 100%
equipment is improved.	Training on inspection and AWS is conducted for relevant DOM staff.	repairing of 70% of the	29 engineers, technicians and officers (81%) of the total relevant DOM staff) have participated in the training sessions.
	Activities	Activities Ratio (%)	Achievements of Activities
	1-1 Review the current situation on mnintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be immoved.	100%	Through several discussions with the DOM and the results of the Baseline Shudy, the identification of the current losues to be improved by the Project has been done.

1

Output

2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.

3

(see 27.

Ler

FT

(ers

55

3 9.T.



rocurement of all the planned equipment ha en completed.

Activity of the JICA Long Term Expert
The traceability of pressure and temperature has been established.
An Instrument Calibration Laboratory ias been established in the DOM in January 2017.
Rules, guidelines and manuals to maintain the traceability will be completed by June 2017.
Activity of the Short Term Expert to be arranged by JICA.
The training on instrument calibration by the Short Term Experts from the JMA was conducted at the DOM in January 2017.
The second training on instrument calibration by the Short Term Experts from the JMA was conducted to be conducted at the DOM in January 2017.
The second training on instrument calibration by the Short Term Experts from the JMA was conducted to be conducted at the DOM in January 2017.
The second training on instrument calibration by the Short Term Experts from the JMA was conducted to be conducted at the DOM in January 2017 to evaluate the achievement of the new calibration method.
Preparation of the "Comparison & Inspection Manual" for manual doservation fus been completed.
Revision of the "Automatic Weather Station (AWS) Cleaning/Inspection Report for Observation Station" and "AWS Cleaning/Inspection Manual" of the Meteorological Observation fus theorements with the Standard Instruments' and "User Guide for Observation of the "Calibration Manual" of the Meteorological Observation fustaments with the Standard Instruments' and "User Guide for AWS Falibration of an additional of spare parity has been completed.
Construction of an additional Lightning protection pole which is needed at three paritular size (Ranapura, Polonaruwa, and Aralagonvilla) vulnerable to lightning strikes have been completed to longar.
Tensing in accordance with the "Automatic Heather particular size (Ranapura, Polonaruwa, and Aralagonwilla) vulnerable to lightning strikes have been completed to fuel three particular size (Ranapura, Polonaruwa, and Aralagons (Ranapura, Polo

- 16 -

			Weather Station (AWS) Cleaning/Inspection User Guide for Observation Station" and "Comparison & Inspection Manual of the AWSs with the Portable Observation Data Comparison & Maintenance Tool (Portable AWS Operation Manual) have been conducted. The trainings in accordance with the "Regular Inspection Book (AWS Periodic Inspection Manual)," "Calibration Manual of the Meteorological Observation Instruments with the Standard Instruments" and "User Guide for AWS Failure Recovery" (replacement of spare parts) has been completed. The training on Automatic Weather Station (AWS) Maintenance conducted after the Regional Meteorological Offices has been completed.		2-2 Examine the backup mode for the data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters.	<u>80%</u>	The trial test on the possible backup means (IP-VPN utilizing a ground communication network) for the transmission and receipt of observation data in order to observe weather phenomera on a real-time basis has been successfully completed. The diagram of the force and after scenario on the change of the system network which utilized the IP-VPN has been prepared and presented. A flowchart has been prepared for the smooth transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system. Re-tender for selection of the IP-VPN service provider will be conducted by the DOM in May 2012.
	1-8 Review the upper air observation schedule		Activity of the JICA Long Team Expert • The report to revise the upper air observation schedule was completed. In the report prepared, the daily implementation of radiosonde observation in Colombo is highly		2-3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSS, and identify the issues to be improved.	100%	Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, Identification of the current issues to be improved upon has been completed.
		75%	recommended. • A Short Term Expert on upper air observation from the JMA will visit the DOM in June 2017 to evaluate the report and to provide additional support to strengthen the upper air observation canacity of the DOM.		2-4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MS5.	100%6	Procurement of all the required GTS/MSS equipment for replacement with the existing one by the JICA Head Office and installation and necessary operation & maintenance training at the DOM Head Office by the equipment supplier's engineers have been completed.
	Indicators		Achievement of Output	Output	Indicators		Achievement of Output
of of is	2-1 Data from AWS are obtain available to a full extent in D 2-2. Binary data via. GTS are o made available to a full ext	ed and made DOM. obtained and	The transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system is planned to be implemented from May to June 2017. Once done, the indicators will be confirmed, 00%, Binary data from the India Meteorological December in base here obtained. Additional	3. Capacity o weather forecasting i improved usin obtained meteorological data.	 [3-1] At least 4 persons in DOM to produce the short range weather forecast guidance. [3-2] At least 4 persons in DOM to produce the weather fore of sea wind. 	obtain ability and weekly obtain ability cast guidance	100% 15 Forecasters can produce the short range and weekly weather forecast goidance. 100% 15 Forecasters can produce the weather forecast guidance of sea wind.
	during the Project.	ent in Lion	Trainings for GTS operation have been started from May 2, 2017.		Activities	Activities Ratio (%)	Achievements of Activities
	Activities	Activities Ratio (%)	Achievements of Activities		3-1 Review the current		Through several discussions with the DOM and the results of the Baseline Study, the
	2-1 Review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed		Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues to be improved upon have been identified. The		situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved.	100%	identification of the current issues in weather forecasting which is in transition from a qualitative forecast to a quantitative forecast bas been completed.
	data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be improved.	100%	current situation on transmitting and receiving observed data between the AWS sites and the headquarters of the DOM has been reviewed by the DOM and the Team togetlier.		3-2 Conduct the training on the development of short range (every 12 hours)	100%	The required trainings for development and verification of;)) Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapum: every 12 hours precipitation up to 36 hours ahead)

precipitation up to 36 hours alread) and weekly (7 days alread) weather forecast guidance and verification.		Weather Forecast Guidance. Short Range (Pothwil and Puttalam; 24 hours and 48 hours uhead) Sea Wind Weather Guidance and, Weathy (168t) Rain Weather Guidance (Colombo and Ratnapura), liave beet completed. Cellections of the Grid Point Value of: Ragional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka and the observation data of the AWSs for the production of short range weather forecast guidance; and, GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the production of: Soft Weather (Colombo and Ratnapura: Productions of: Soft Sin Colombo and Ratnapura: Productions of: Soft Noar Procesal (System) Soft Noar Sof		3-6 Verify and improve the existing methods of seasonal forecast. 3-7 Conduct on-the-job training an improvement of weather forecasting operation through integration of various data.	109% 109%	Installation of the Himswari Cast Receiver in June 2017. Development and verification of seasoned weither Forecast guidance (by 2040) with sea surface temperature observation data at 5 selected points in Pacific, Indian and Atlantic Oceans and inifial observation data of Colombo for 36 years with the CPS (NOAA Climate Forecast System) Grid Point Valle lawe been completed. Installation trainings of VMware. Linux (CentOS) und Wgirb2 have been completed. Trainings for downloading reanalysis data and utextnaction of the required CSV data and other produets from grib2 data of the global metoorological organizations (NOAA Climate Forecast System, etc.) which is useful for NWP model operation have been completed. Trainings for preparation of attractive forecast products. with Power Point Jave been completed.
	100%	Ratnapura Rain and Colombo Mesh Rain)	Output	Indicators		Achievement of Output
		 Short Range (Pothwil and Pattalam: 24 hours and 48 hours inlead). Sea Wind Weather Guidance with the WRF Grid Point Vale; Weekly (168h) Rain Weather Guidance (Colombo and Ratrapura) with the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale of U.S and 0.25 degree mesh data; and, Semi-automatic, Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo; every 12 and 25 hours) 	Warning criteri is elaborated.	a Number of areas where ne warning eriteria that can t disaster records are prepared	wly designed neet the past I.	 Warningadvisory criteria of heavy rain: 2 climatic cones (Wet Zone and Intermediate Zone / Dry Zone) and 2 geographical zones (Plain Area / Mountain Area) Warningadvisory criteria of strong wind: 1 area (whole county) Advisory criteria of flightning: 2 climatic zones (Wet Zone and Intermediate Zone / Dry Zone)
		precipitation) Weather Forecast Guidance with the WRF Grid Point Vale		Activities	Activities Ratio (%)	Achievements of Activities
3-4 Produce weather forecast- guidance of sea wind at the selected stations.	(00%	[have been completed. Collection of the Grid Point Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka and the observation data of the AWSs for production of forecast guidance has been completed.		4+1 Review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved.	100%	Through several discussions with the DOM and the results of the Baseline Study, the identification of the current issues has been completed.
3-3 Conduct training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID).	7544	Activity of the Short Team Expert to be arranged by JICA. • A lecture on Basic Meteorology was conducted by the JICA Long Term Expert. • Two types of training on theoretical and operational mopical meteorology were conducted by JICA Short Term Experts in December 2016 and January 2017 under the guidance of the JICA Long Term Expert. • The Hinnawari Cast Receiver and SATAID will be installed at the DOM in Jone 2017 by JICA HO.		4-2: Review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved.	90ª8	 Warning/Advisory signs for heavy rain, strong wind, lightning, cyclone and istanani have hean improved which follows "Universal Design". Warning/advisory criteria of heavy rain have been newly soi in 2 climatic zones (Wet Zone and Internediate Zone/Dry Zone) and 2 geographical zones (Plain Area/Mountain Area) Intrough several discussions with DOM. Warning/advisory criteria of strong wind have been newly set in whole country through several discussions with DOM.

1	<u></u>		Set in 3 climatic zeries (wet Zone and intermediate Zone/Dry Zone) through several discussions with DOM. To conduct internal operation and validation of the new Warning/Advisory criteria for Heavy Rain & Strong Wind and also the new Advisory criteria for Lightning, with the Daty Porecasters.
Output	Indicators		Achievement of Output
Output	Indicators		Active citere of compar-
The method of tissemination and contents of meteorological anformation are improved.	S-1 Mumber of developed material for weather services	educational	 DOM mascot for disaster awareness Disaster Awareness Cartoons for Disaster Prevention Education Climate of Sri Lanka (English, Sinhala and Tamil) Thunderstorm and Lightning (English, Sinhala and Tamil) Heavy Rahi and Disaster (English, Sinhala and Tamil) DOM Beaufort Scalé Land (English, Sinhala and Tamil) Sea (English, Sinhala and Tamil)
	5-2 Monthly access number of	f the DOM	Total: 6 materials Currently being monitored
	Activities	Activities Ratio (%)	Achievements of Activities
	5-1 Review the contents of current meteorological information and identify the issues to be improved.	100%	Through several discussions with the DOM and the results of the Baseline Study, the identification of the areas to be improved upon has been completed.
	5-2. Improve the contents of meteorological information.	100%	Meteorological information for timely provision to the users has been improved and posted on the new DOM Web site.
	5-3. Review the timing of information dissemination to ships and teet.	100%	Meteorological Information for ships and fleet for timely provision to the users have been posted on the new DOM Web site.
	5-4 Improve the contents of Website	100%	 Medification/optimization of the Website products prepared by the DOM suitable for any device of the stakeholders with Windows OS. Mac OS, iOS (iPhone, iPad) and Android: 2) Preparation of the external site mumde "Save Yourself" for displaying and downloading the animated cartoons by any access devices of the stakeholders: 3) Althogation a link banner on the front pace of

7

I share he at all works around only wear work

5-5 Prepare smartphone compatible website 100%5 5-6 Prepare educational materials (disaster awareness materials) for the weather services. 100%

the new DOM Website which is connected with an external link of the animated carloors; and,
4) Allocation of the meteorological satellite (Himawari-8) and radar pictures on the new DOM Website
have been completed.
Design and development of the new DOM Website by Joomía 3.4. CMS (Contents Management System) which enables compatibility with any device(PC, smartphone, tablet, etc.) and eav, website update have been completed.
The new Website programs have been submitted by the DOM to the ICTA (Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Larka) for replacement of the existing DOM Website.
Replacement of the existing DOM Website with the new one by ICTA after the examinations in accordance with the technology agency of Sri Larka) for replacement of the existing DOM Website.
Design of Scharch DOM to the ICTA (Information of 3.0,000 pieces of the DOM mascen technolegy and the device of Sri Larka) States and the set of the DOM mascent of ICTA has been completed.
Design of Scharch States of the DOM mascent of Scharka, 6P2: Thunderstorm and Lightning and EP3: Heavy Rain and Disaster) in English, Sinhala and Tamil the weare ompleted.
Production of Jacpicodes of disaster awarenees aroons (EP): Clinars of Scharcters in the cartoons las been completed.
Production of Jacpicodes of disaster awarenees aroons (EP): Clinars of Scharcters in the cartoons las been completed.
Production of a cartoons ly DOM personnel) has been completed.
Production of the CDM Beastort Scale of chard and Sea" (English, Sinhala and Tamil have been completed.

7.7 605 31 Fg.

Important Issues for the successful completion of the Project

1. Training on operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch (Visual Weather, Moving Weather module of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch, Access of WAFS data via the Secure SADIS FTP, BUFR Data Transmission) procured under the Project.

<Training Schedule>

09:00 - 16:30 between May 02, 2017 (Tuesday) and May 06, 2017 (Saturday) at the Head Office of DOM, Colombo

- 2 Re-tender for selection of the IP-VPN service provider by the DOM
- 3 Transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system (May to June 2017)

Further Activities of the JICA Consultant Expert Team

	PDM Output	Further Activities of the Consultant Expert Team as of May 02, 2017
1	Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.	 To conduct an additional training to the staff of the Instrument Section who will be responsible for the cleaning/inspection work of the AWSn in the Collaborator Stations. To conduct an additional training on repairing (parts (eplacing) to the staff of the Engineering Section.
2.	Trausmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.	To conduct the trainings on the Operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch (Visual Weather and Moving Weather medules of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch) supplied by the Contractor and Access to the WAFS data via the Secure SADIS F17P, BUFR Data Transmission between May 02, 2017 (Tuesday) and May 06, 2017 (Saturday). To support the DOM in the transition from a VSAT network to an IP-VIPN for the Automatic Weather Observation Systems establishes under the previous project financed by Janan's Grant Aid.
a.	Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data:	To install the Semi-automatic Linux Program developed under the Project for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours precipitation) Weather Forecast Guidance with the WRF Grid Point Vale for operations. To continue Weekly forecasts guidance by July 2017 on a trial basis using Model Output Statistics (MOS) with the GFS numerica americation model of the NOAA.
4,	Warning priteria is plaborated.	 To conduct internal operation and validation of the new Warning/Advisory criteria for Heavy Rain with the Darp Forecasters. To conduct internal operation and validation of the new Warning/Advisory criteria for Strong Wind with the Duty Forecasters. To conduct internal operation and validation of the new Advisory criteria for Lightning with the Duty Forecasters.
5	The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	 To combut additional Open Classes at four schools in the Nuwan Eliya district by using the animated cartoons. "Save Yourself prepared under the Project with the DOM counterparts. To conduct additional Open Classes at the DOM audiorium in the absence of the Japanese expert. To distribute additional DOM rubber muscots prepared under the Project to school children who participated in the Open Class. To distribute additional DOM rubber muscots prepared under the Project to school children who participated in the Open Class. To distribute the additional laminated DOM Beaufort Scale (Land an Sea versions: English, Stinhal and Tamil) prepared under the Project to the stakeholders (school teachers, mass media, governmen organizations concerned with disaster management, militury services etc.). The conduct an additional lecture on drawing graphics: usin PowerPoint applying multiple animation effects.

St. Late

T.T. Leve-

Activity 1.3 Establish the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (1) Progress • The traceability of pressure and temperature instruments is partially established. • The traceability of brunidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. • The traceability of brunidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. • The traceability of brunidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. • The traceability of brunidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. • Details 1. Instrument Calibration were conducted and opened in January 2017. • A late for the surface meteorological observations b. Guide for the inspection of meteorological instruments c. Manuals for inspection of barometer, thermometer and others) c. Manuals for inspection of barometer, thermometer and others)	2 May 2017	3rd Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination		2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan
 The traceability of humidity, wind and rainfall instruments should be completely 	Activity 1.3 Establish the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments (Long-term Expert) Progress The traceability of pressure and temperature instruments is completely established. The traceability of pressure and temperature instruments is partially established. The traceability of humidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. The traceability of humidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. The traceability of humidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. The transfor calibration were procured, and prened in January 2017. We Instrument Calibration weeks, February 2016, with 4 DOM staff a. IICA C/P training in JMA, two weeks, February 2016, with 4 DOM staff b. JICA Short-term Expert training 1 at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff a. Rule for the surface meteorological Instruments b. Guide for the surface meteorological Instruments c. Manuals for inspection of meteorological Instruments c. Manuals for inspection of harometer, thermometer and others) c. Deration of the new instrument calibration has been started by DOM staff.	Activity 1.3 Activity 1.3 Establish the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert (The traceability of pressure and temperature instruments is completely established. <i>Progress</i> The traceability of brumidity, wind and rainfall instruments is partially established. <i>Details</i> (Instruments for callbration were procured, and trainings to handle them were made by the consultant team. (Instrument callbration new exconstructed and opened in January 2017, 14 DOM staff b. JICA Short-term Expert training 1 at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff b. JICA Short-term Expert training 1 at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff b. JICA Short-term Expert training 1 at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff b. JICA Short-term Expert training 1 at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff b. Guede for the inspection of meteorological lostervations c. Manuals for the inspection of meteorological lostervations c. Manuals for the inspection of meteorological lostervations c. Guede for the inspection of the new instrument calibration has been started by DOM staff.	3rd Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination 2 May 2017 3 Activity 1.3 A	ard Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination 2 May 2017 2 May 2017 2 May 2017 2 May 2017 Activity 1.3 Activity 1.3 Activity 1.3 Activity 1.3 Activity 1.3 Completely established, (Long-term Expert) (Long-term Expert) (Long-term instruments is completely established, The traceability of pressure and temperature instruments is completely established. The traceability of pressure and tampeature instruments is completely established. The training of instrument and anifal instruments is completely established. Details 1 Contracted and opered in January 2017, 14 DOM staff 2 Decomments on instrument calibration were conducted a follows: a. ICA C/P training in JMA, two weeks, February 2016, with 4 DOM staff Conduction of meteorological observations b. ICA Short-term Expert training at DOM, two weeks, January 2017, 14 DOM staff Conduction the sourced and parated in January 2017, 14 DOM staff Conduction for inspection of meteorological instruments b coulder for the inspection of meteorological instruments c Manuels for inspection of meteorological instruments c Manuels for inspection of meteorological instruments
2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan 3rd Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination 2 May 2017	2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan 3rd Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination	2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan	2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan	
1. Activities of the Long-term Expert 2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan and Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination 2 May 2017	1. Activities of the Long-term Expert 2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan 3rd Joint Coordination Committee Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination	1. Activities of the Long-term Expert 2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan	1. Activities of the Long-term Expert 2. JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan	1. Activities of the Long-term Expert

27 les 32



Activity 3.5 Conducting Training on Satellite Animation and Interactive Diagnosis (SATAID)

Progress

- In advances of the SATAID training, three training courses for forecasters of DOM were implemented: <u>Basics of meteorology</u>, theoretical tropical meteorology and operational tropical meteorology.
- Installation of a HimawariCast (JMA Geostationary Weather Satellite Data Broadcasting System) receiving system with the SATAID Program at DOM was planned in JCA HQ and has been shipped out from Japan in mid April 2017.

Details

- The training course on basics of meteorology "Lecture on Meteorology" was held by the JICA Long-term Expert during the period from January 2015 to August 2016 with the attendance of 18 trainees.
- The training course on "<u>Theoretical Tropical Meteorology</u>" was given by Prof. Yamanaka of JAMSTEC during 21 November to 2 December 2016 with the attendance of 18 trainees.
- The training course on "<u>Operational Tropical Meteorology</u>" was held by Mr. Goto of JMA during 23 to 27 January 2017 with the attendance of 23 trainees.

plan

- <u>A HimawariCast receiver</u> will be installed at DOM in late May 2017 as well as the interactive diagnosis software "SATAID".
- The SATAID training will be held by the short-term experts of JMA in late June 2017.

Activity 1.3 Establish the Traceability of Meteorological Instruments (Long-term Expert)





3

Opening Ceremony of the DOM Calibration Laboratory on 16 Jan. 2017

JICA Short-term Expert training I

at DOM, Jan. 2017



Activity 1.6 Review the upper Air Observation (Long-term Expert)

Progress

The review paper on the current upper-air observation was submitted to DG of DOM.

Details

- 1. The current situation of radiosonde observation was surveyed in Colombo.
- The current situation of pilot balloon observation was surveyed at Polonnaruwa, Mannar and Colombo.
- Analyses and evaluation were made, considering the usage of upper-air observation data in DOM and the other foreign countries.
- 4. The following recommendations are reported in the review paper.
 - "The current schedule of the radiosonde observations of DOM: three times per week, should be shifted to daily observation."

plan

<u>A JICA short-term expert of upper-air observation</u> will visit DOM in June 2017. He will make
evaluation of the review paper made by the long-term expert and to make re-analysis of
the situation of upper-air observation in DOM as well as making technical support to
improve the current upper-air observation.

JICA Counter Part Trainings in Japan

Training Course on Meteorological Instrument Training Course on Weather forecasting and Calibration February 2016



Training Course on Meteorological Observations February 2017



information dissemination I at Gifu Univ. rv 2016



Training Course on Weather Forecasting and Information Dissemination II at Gifu Univ. and Tsukuba Univ. March 2017





Planning up to the completion of the project

MAY	JUNE	JULY	AUG	SEP
• 3rd JCC	1.1.1.1.1.1	• Final JC	CC • Final	Report
2nd GTS/M	SS Training	• Weat	her Disaster Se	eminar

Test Operation of Lighting Information Issuing

3rd Open School on Weather Disaster at Nuwara Eliya

Internal Operation of 12 and 24hr Guidance Forecasting Survey on Upper-air Observation by Sort-term Expert Installation of HimawariCast Receiver

Training on Instrument Calibration II by Short-term Experts SATAID Training by Sort-term Expert

Installation of IP-VPN and restart of the operation of AWS

	Progress
Four	train courses were implemented in Japan for the Counter parts of DOM in 2016 and
2017	7.

JICA Counter Parts Trainings in Japan

- 1. Training course on Meteorological Instrument Calibration, RIC-Tsukuba, JMA, Japan, two weeks , February 2016, 4 DOM staff, coordinated by the JICA Long-term Expert.
- 2. Training course on Weather Forecasting and Weather Information Dissemination I, Gifu University, Japan, two weeks, February and March 2016, 4 DOM staff, coordinated by the JICA Consultant Experts.
- 3. Training course on Meteorological Observations, two weeks, February 2017, 8 DOM staff, coordinated by the JICA Long-term Expert.
- 4. Training course on Weather Forecasting and Weather Information Dissemination I I, Gifu University and Tsukuba University, Japan, two weeks , March 2017, 4 DOM staff coordinated by the JICA Consultant Experts.

5

	Overall Goal
Weather information disseminate organizations.	d from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related
Output of PDM	Recommendations
 Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 	To conduce a technical maining for the DOM staff in charge of the maintenance and inspection of the meteonological observation instruments using knowledge gained from this Project. To establish close communication and association with the overseax Regional Instrument Center of the World Meteorological Organization (WMO). At the same time, to ensure the continued traceability of the meteorological observation instruments (atmospheric pressure & temperature) lineagh the constant calibration of the domestic meteorological observation instruments. To establish the traceability of the meteorological observation instruments instruments and calibration environment of the domestic meteorological observation instruments and calibration environments and calibration environments and calibration.
 Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 	To encourage and continue the maintenance of the observation field (prevention of animal intrusion, etc.) and the environmental improvement of the observation rooms (installing an air conditioner). In order to enhance and guarantee the continuous operation of the unionative weather observation systems (AWS) and to ensure the technical training of the electrical engineering staff; the establishmen of appropriate measure against system (AWS) and to ensure the technical training of the electrical engineering staff; the establishmen of appropriate measure against system (AWS) and to ensure the vehicument of parts and a fully documented maintenance system with proper document control is indispensable. To conduct technical training for new staff and periodic inspection by the manufacturing company for the stable operation of the GTS/Message Switching System (MSS).
 Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data. 	Continuous recruitment of human resources for roles in forceas operation for lite next generation. Simultaneously, the development or excellent wather forceasters need to be sustained by conducting forceast training myserum abraid and supporting staff to earn Masters a Dectoral degrees. To conduct accurate evaluation of the Local Numerical Weather Prediction WRF model aimed at actual operation, to put the Weather Prediction wRF model to excellent wather for the WRF model score of the model. Continuous improvement of overall forecasting works taking in the knowledge and tails of meteorology. In arder to undertand real time local weather conditions across the country and utilize time for accuration at the Dorbition across the country and utilize without any decky for accurate evaluation of the Numerical Weather Prediction Model to material real time local weather conditions across the country and utilize them for disaster prevention operations. It is purposed and the torgen and the AWS in the DON Head Office without any decky for accurate evaluation of the Numerical Weather Prediction and Weather Conditions.

	transmission conditi To conduct furture understanding/know mechanisms along v To improve forecas through the implen same time continua verification and revi
The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.	 In order to reduce n cooperation with management and u disaster information To conduct continu- prevention To develop and rec- nibove recommendation To develop and rec- nibove recommendation To continuously ce unduct Open Class To excitinuously de conduct Open Class To excitinuously de conduct Open Class To excitinuously de information through DOM, and try to fi products for furtilinously.

tion), ther research to increase the level of wedge about meteorological disasters and its with other related meteorological phenomena, asing works relevant to meteorological disasters mentation of the above recommendations at the did develop human resources capable of doing the riew of warning criteria. mutual disaster risk, it is important to improve the organization/agencies related to disaster mase media as the means for transmission of n.

uous public awareness activities about disaste

pablic to find weather information easier, it is ve the DOM's Website continuously. zuit the luman resources needed to implement the films. onduct Open Class both in Colombo city and in

velop human resources within the DOM who can

conduct Open Class. • To exclusing class and opinions on a regular basis with stakeholders on the method of distemination and the contents of meteorological information brough the Monseon Forum conducted biannoally by the DOM, and by to feed back the results into the DOM's activity and products for further improvements. • To continuously inform availability of the renewed DOM website through the Monseon Forum and Open Class.

F-T- Low

WAX

Minutes of Meeting for the 4th Joint Coordinating Committees (JCCs)

MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 4th JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC) FOR THE TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT FOR "IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION"

IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

The series of discussions on the above captioned project among the officials concerned of the Government of Sri Lanka and the Japan International Cooperation Agency. (JICA) have been conducted under the chairmanship of Mr. S. S. Miyanawala, Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management, As the result of the discussions, both sides have confirmed the main items described in the attached documents.

Colombo, July 26, 2017

F.t. Tala

Fusao Tanaka Chief Representative Japan International Cooperation Agency JICA Sri Lanka Office

Director General Department of Meteorology (DOM)

Each representative of the counterpart groups of Activities 1.5 of the DOM delivered a detailed explanation of the results of the activities and achievements made under the Project in accordance with the draft Project Brief Notes made by the JICA consultant (cam.

7. Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal (Annex 4)

The JICA consultant team and the JICA long term expert communicated the recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal. The DOM indicated their appreciation to the JICA long term expert and the JICA consultant team.

 Recommendations to the DOM for further mitigating the damages caused by natural disasters (Annex 4)

The JICA consultant team and the JICA long term expert communicated their recommendations to the DOM for further mitigating the damages caused by natural disasters. The DOM has indicated they will follow such recommendations as much as possible.

9. Other discussions (Annex 5)

Mr. Miyanawara presented some comments on the problems and issues in the weather services in Sri Lanka and discussions were made with all the attendees of the meeting.

10. Closing remarks of the Director General of the Department of Meteorology

The Director General of the Department of Meteorology expressed his appreciation to all the attendees of the JCC and the hard work done by all parties. Specifically, the valuable activities and recommendations of the JICA long term expert and consultant team for enhancing the capabilities of the DOM as well as the willingness and cooperation of the DOM to implement the project plans. The DOM will study the recommendations and execute the necessary as soon as possible.

Annex 1: Agenda

Annex 2: List of Attendees of the JCC

12

- Annex 3: Actual Activities done under the Project by the DOM counterparts and the JICA team.
- Annex 4: Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal and for further contribution for mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters made by the JICA consultant term and the JICA Long term expert

Annex 5: Other discussions

ATTACHMENT

1. Project Name

Technical Cooperation Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination in the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka

2. Implementing Agency

Ministry of Disaster Management, Department of Meteorology (DOM), Sri Lanka and Japan International Cooperation Agency (JICA)

3. Opening Address of the Ministry of Disaster Management

The Secretary of the Ministry of Disaster Management expressed his appreciation to all the attendees of the JCC especially the cooperation of JICA for the improvement of the capabilities of the DOM and the significant contributions and recommendations of the JICA long term expert and consultant team.

- Discussion of "the significant issues for the successful completion of the Project" presented by the JICA consultant team at the previous JCC meeting held on May 02, 2017
- The additional training on GTS/MSS The JICA consultant team conducted an additional training on the operation of the Global Telecommunication. System Message Switch procured under the Project for 5 days between May 02 and May 06, 2017.
- · Transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system.
- The DOM indicated that the contract of the IP-VPN service was already concluded and the transition from the current VSAT system to the IP-VPN system is smoothly going on now and the transition is expected to be completed by the end of September 2017. However, since some of the existing stations located in the mountainous area have some difficulties on the telecommunication environment, the transition to the IP-VPN system at those stations may be completed at the end of October 2017.
- 5. Presentation of the first draft of the "Final Report of the Project"

The JICA consultant team and the JICA long term expert presented the first draft of the "Final Report of the Project (Consultant Team)" and requested the DOM to brush it up. As per the request, the DOM kindly agreed to do so.

3

6. Results of the Activities 1-5 and Achievements of the Project Purpose (Annex 3)



24

Agenda on the 4th Joint Coordinating Committee for the Project for Improving of Meteorological Observation, Weather Forecasting and Dissemination

Date: July 26, 2017 Venue: Conference Room, Ministry of Disaster Management Time: 10:00

R

1. Opening Address: Secretary, Ministry of Disaster Management

- Achievement of "the very important issues for the successful of the project" presented at the 3rd JCC (Consultant Experts)
- General Description of "the 1st draft of the Final Report of the Project" (Consultant Experts)
- Discussion on Results of the Activities and Achievements of the Project Purpose (DOM)
- Discussion on Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal (Long-term Experts, Consultant Expert)
- Discussion on Recommendations for further contribution for miligating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM (Long-term Expert, Consultant Expert)
- Introduction of Project Brief Notes (Consultant Experts)
- 8: Comments from the JICA Sri Lanka Office

Mr.

9. Closing Remark: Project Director (Director General of the DOM)



Narrative summary	Objectively Verifiable Indicators	Manual Medication	Townshing Alexandre
Overall Gaak Verafier information doscremated frien the DON is well sufficed by it public and the discaser related organizations.	 Number of the covil work projects for disaster continues in the noiling or parity unlike the improved insteadolgical information from DOM DOM Domes of the atominative ford entry commany. Seed entry commany, peed anote or exercision plant than fully a parity infact he conversion 	 Atunal reports from Daster Alangement Center (20KC), impaire Dapatrumos, National Building Research Organization, Dapatiment of Follorius and safer relevant regratizations Interviewwich the alante erganizations when the forcent diagrammeted though must write. 	
Project Purpuse: More accurate and timely meteorological information is discrimined the public and the disance reduced organizations	 Thereading the interment prior to service and the service of the ser	 Annual Administration reports of DOM Receiption of the ACC meetings Progress reports of the Monetaern - Work reports of the Ador-team expense - Work reports of the consultant remi- , when are of DOM 	The government's po to prioritize the disma- unitymican and related referent organization inteleding DOM is continued without inputficant changes:
Conditions 1. Computers Octoorback on matimetance and californium of merconducta Action of the second second second second constraining second second second second second constraining second second second second second 1. Topological data second second second second 1. Second second second second second second second 2. The medical of information and constrain 3 second 2. The medical of information and constrain 3 second 3. The medical of information are and constraints and and 3. The medical of information and constraints are and 3. The medical of information are and constraints are and 3. The medical of information are and 3. The medical of	 Revisine at the respection and requiring types of physical model (no. 30% st. 7000/jeted (b) %%, st. the relevant pd AMS 11 your-period and younger pd AMS 11 your-period for %%, st. the relevant pd AMS 12 Data form. AMS are adapted and mul- physical form. AMS are adapted and mul- ration of the strain and younger pd AMS 10 physical is not the relevant pd AMS 11 Data form. AMS are adapted and mul- nishiphous statistical and mul- iphous and and and physical and mul- physical and and and and hole way 13 AM least 4 presens in DOM adam holipy to produce the laner, muler and veckly varies for a statistical and and and and and and and a strain and the statistical and and produce the laner, and and and the path distant revolution product and and the statistical distant revolution are partent. AMM hole of distribution of the path distant revolution are partent. AMM hole of distant revolution and and distant revolution are partent. AMM hole of distribution are partent. AMM hole of distribution and and and and and and and and and an	 Armust dömmetrations report of DOM Registers report of the York Negless report of the Sorten response with report of the remeasance with report of the remeasance with report of the remeasance with report of the remeasance with response of the remeasance of the remeasance of the remeasance of the remeasance resort Training version and material of the remeasance resort and the remeasance resort of the remea	Meteology hudjach for manutuning merenalistication are afficated to DOM 2015 suid 2016
Activities	lapt	15	Pre-conditions
 Review the current attantian an maintenance and artification a material and an attantian and allowidy, the same in the material of the current of the same and allowidy of the same in the material of the same in the same and allowidy of the same in the material of the same in the same and allowidy of the same in the material of the same in /li>	(Japanese sale) Lond-terni-sapert	(Sei Lanka side)	The Appropriate counterpart personnel

tranting provided by the Project are secured				
Connection prosumer: C.P. personnel finite relevant diversion under DOM	Eaclines and Equatment - Office areas (b) use to DOM feed/outers and these sectors are to DOM feed/outers Office Eurnisus, futilities and expirition (These Eurnisus, futilities and expirition Reidestrux Ammaziment Ibs DOM Administrations and local operation (sector)			
ShortJerni Experts Copert of Meteoningscal Obsert Minn Expert of Satillite Data Analysis	Exercit dispatched fram the consultant - Load Capeta Oreal-criterion (Secondary Event Varilee Conducter Event of Management Information Capation (Data Management Information Capation (Data Management Information Capation (Data Management Information Event (Neutrer Information Dotermunity Proper (Conditions Mentur Freierling Motor)	Machinera Machinerane and Construction and Examinary of warehost guadance - and the first and the straining of warehost guadance - and the straining of the straining of the straining and straining - Machineration machiner (Phonesery) - Primale Cardinaryon systems (Phonesery) - Primale Cardinaryon systems (Phonesery) - Primale Cardinaryon systems (Phonesery) - Machineraterimer, animatives pressure	municy on dimensional wind great municy on dimensional wind great properties and Networking Information Advances properties and the second second second data provide the second second second conduction of the second second second second fragments and second second second second second second second projection for Open Class Device More Second Seco	Instruction1
epuptuenti, and scatoliofi tami(o) fui pupte maintenance and enformance tratanistic excelution of meteorological instantenena. Candide truttang on calibration of scoretrained and AWS	Requesting the constraints of pertainant broadcare for vensual and the constraints on the role standard of pertaining uptions of pertaining and a standard of the constraints of a standard of the constraints on interpretain and constraints on the standard of the constraint of a standard of the constraint of the constraint of the constraints of the constraint of the constraint of the constraints of the constraint of the constraint of the constraints of the constraint of the constraint of the constraints of the constraint of the c	be improved and applied the CTS/MSS Relevolve the analysis of the CTS/MSS Relevolve the marriest annualise networking intercenting that a started the transmission of the observation of the Alson transmission (considered the transmission of the observation) of the Alson transmission to experiment up to 34 bears induced and version (17 days a deard) and the observation of the observation of the Alson transmission and a start of the Alson transmission of the Alson transmission and a start of the Alson marked and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson marked of the Alson transmission and and a start of the Alson marked and a start of the Alson transmission and and a start of the Alson marked of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson marked of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and a start of the Alson and a start of the Alson and and and and and and and and and an	Provide a setting protection, parameter and a more an environmentation of a setting of a starting with a starting methods of storageneous for experimentation of a starting methods of storageneous for exact and a starting and anyon of the storage methods of storageneous formed and a starting and a start	Recises the entiting or incommon custommation to single must next linguous the constents of Webside Prepare standardisent compatible webside - Prepare standardisent compatible webside - Prepare standardised
	0 5 0 2 3 1 7	7.7 T T T		2428

Annex 2

LIST OF ATTENDEES OF THE JCC

JOINT COORDINATION COMMITTEE (JCC)

FOR TECHNICAL COOPERATION PROJECT

FOR IMPROVING OF METEOROLOGICAL OBSERVATION, WEATHER FORECASTING AND DISSEMINATION

IN THE DEMOCRATIC SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF SRI LANKA

Location: Conference Room, Ministry of Disaster Management Time: 10:00, May 26, 2017

No.	Name	Position	Signature
Ŷ	S.S. Myjomanustin	Seineding	- Er
÷	R H M S Present	Block to Hidmonds	Der
Ŧ	A F-homascon 79	separate Direction (100)	h
4	Newson Kinnedestyly	e/injr-	12
2	ALK Wijemannage	Deputy Director	and and
6	RMP Fernando	Meteorologist	(ACA)
7	EAIB Eleanayah	Meleanologist	Ray
8	Torchi moue	TICA Has	1/2
ġ	AKATSLI Kunic	TICA HQS	Fitte
10	Vine 1000	have being	- 1

11	Nobulara Noguchi	SIEN Consultant Learn	際ロ
12	Toshihid e ENDO	DICA Consultant Tean	Stil
13	Masalit - Ichhara	JICA Long-Term Expert	石雪玉に
14	Yoshihisa UCHIDA	JICA Consultant Team	attet
15			-
16			
17			
18			
19			
20			
21			
22			
23			
24			
25			

Do

0

22

FA.

Annex 3-1

Output 1 Actual Activities done under the Project

the PDM	Actual Activities done under the Project
Dutputs 1 Capacity on maintenance and authorition of meteorological observation equipment is improved. Activities 1,1 Review line current situation on maintenance une entipention of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved. 1,2 Procure the tecessari instruments for	 Review the current situation on the maintenance and calibration of meteorological equipment and identify the issues to be improved? Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study conducted, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified. The tristruments used for calibration of weather observation instruments were getting outdated. The DOM did not have the equipment to be used for the calibration of weather observation instruments. The board instruments used for the calibration of meteorological abservation instruments were not calibrated with international standard instruments used for the calibration of meteorological instruments. The standard instruments used for the calibration of meteorological instruments. The standard instruments were not calibrated with international standard instruments for a long time. The manuals for maintenance were not revised for a long time since the original document of the manuals for meteorological instruments. The manuals for maintenance were not revised for a long time since the original document of the manuals for meteorological instruments. The manuals for maintenance were not revised for a long time since the original document of the manuals for meteorological instruments were prepared in PDF format only and the revision based on the current situation cannot be done smoothly Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to JICA and the manuals for the prepared in the situation cannot be done smoothly.
ealibration o meteorological annectorological equipment, ann establish team(s) for calibration. 1.3. Establish the traceability of meteorologica inseruments. 1.4. Conduct training o calibration & conventional and AW equipment. 1.5.	Procurement of the necessary instruments for the calibration of meteorological equipment> All the required documents necessary for the procurement process moduling the technical specifications for the new instruments for the calibration of meteorological equipment were prepared Procurement of all the planned equipment and standard instruments incessary for the calibration has been completed. Observation accuracy of the procured instruments was to be secured as follows. Electric Thermometer: Calibration Certificate of the Laboratory certified by ISO/IEC17025 Electric Barometer: IMA Certificate Portable Automatic Weather Station: JMA Certificate

F.T.

Review and revise the Standard Operation - The ter Procedure for manual The team responsible for proper maintenance and calibration was Procedure for mam and AWS observations established by the staff of the "Conventional Instrument and Observation Management Division" and "Electric Engineering 6.6 Division" Review and revise inspection and repairing (parts replacing) user's guide for AWS. <Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments> (Activity of the JICA Long Term Expert) <Conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment> (Activity of the JICA Short Term Expert) Conduct training Craining on the calibration of AWS>
 Calibration and Maintenance Manual for Meteorological Instruments inspection and repairing of AWS (Drafi)⁶ and "Inspection Guideline for Meteorological Instruments (Draft)" were prepared. Review the upper a observation schedule 10 Trainings on the calibration of AWS and Synop observation Station were conducted on "Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual" prepared as part of "Calibration and Maintenance Manual for Meteorological Instruments (Draft)" · Based on the results and lessons learned about the training on calibration and maintenance of AWS and Synop observation stations, the "calibration and maintenance manual (draft) of meteorological instruments" and the "inspection guidelines for meteorological instruments (draft)" were revised. <Monitoring the state of the calibration and maintenance in accordance with the manuals and guidelines created>
 Comparative observation based on the prepared "Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual" has already been conducted at 8 existing observation stations and the remaining 14 observation stations are scheduled to be conducted within 2017, 1) was confirmed. · Cleaning inspections based on the prepared "Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System" have been conducted at all observation stations and the implementation rate was 95%. Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observations> Revision of the "Observation Guideline" for manual observation by meteorological instruments was implemented. · Understanding of the situation of current meteorological observation (meteorological observation elements, observation equipment, observation time, etc.) 1 Activity 1-2 Tit.

Review and revision of the existing Meteorological Observation Manual (including description on inspection of equipment) Review and revision of the existing Meteorological Observation Manual ÷. (including description on inspection of equipment) Extraction of important parts from equipment manufacturer creation manual Adoption of photographs extensively for easy understanding <Review and revise the user's guide for the inspection and repair (parts replacement) of the AWS> All manuals to be revised in the project were newly prepared in Microsoft Word Format (doc. format) which can be easily updated since the format of the electronic data of all the existing manuals was "pdf". As a result of the discussions with the DOM, the user's guide for the ġ, inspection and repair (parts replacement) of the AWS were reviewed and revised mainly by improving the following items. Visualization by inserting photos and figures; Correction by model change of wind direction/speed sensor; Descriptions of inspection items (grounding resistance measuren 2. etc.) added after the handover of the Automatic Weather Observation System (AWOS) procured under Japan's grant aid; and, - Selection and editing of the most important parts from the existing namuals. Using the revised manual, the training on inspection and repair was conducted for the following staff. · For Electric Engineering Division and Conventional Instrument and Observation Management Division () Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including the preparation of the Cleaning/Inspection Report. 2) Preventive Maintenance Record - For Electric Engineering Division 1) Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure 2) Spare Parts Replacement Procedure for Recovery · Construction of an additional lightning protection pole which is needed at three particular sites (Ratnapura, Polonnaruwa, and Aralagatonwila) vulnerable to lightning strikes were conducted through practical trainings. <Review the upper air observation schedule> (Activity of the JICA Long Term Expert) De

Details of the PDM Outputs under the Project

 Output 1 Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.

<Establish the traceability of meteorological instruments>

(Activity of the JICA Long Term Expert)

<Conduct training on calibration of conventional and AWS equipment>

(Activity of the HCA Short Term Expers)

Description of the "Calibration and Maintenance Manual for Meteorological Instruments (Draft)

«Maintenance»

- Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System
- Preventive Maintenance Record for Automntic Weather Observation System
- Trouble Shooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System
- * Spare Parts Replacement Procedure for Recovery of Automatic Westher Observation System

Calibertions

De

AT.

- Manual for Meteorological Instrument Calibration 1 and 2. Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual

Description of the "Inspection Guldeline for Meteorological Instruments (Dra(()* Guideline and Manuals for Instrument Calibration

<Review and revise the Standard Operation Procedure for manual and AWS observations>

As the result of the survey on the existing weather observation provisions (observation elements, observation order, observation time, routine observation procedure: observation

Acuvity 1-3

7.7

Activity T-4

time and weather observation value, report allowable time range) and the existing mereorological instruments and the automatic weather observation system, the preparation of like following manuals were implemented.

- (1) Observation Guidelines including the rules necessary for meteorological observation (observation elements, observation order, observation time, routine observation procedure; observation time and weather observation value, report allowable time range), beaufort scale, cloud types for observer, etc.
- (2) Portable Automatic Weather Station Operation Manual for the verification of the observation accuracy of the meteorological instruments and the automatic weather observation systems.

<Review and revise the user's guide for the inspection and repair (parts replacement) of the automatic weather observation system>.

In accordance with the following procedures, the review and revision of the "Cleaning/Inspection Procedure including Cleaning/Inspection Report for Automatic Weather Observation System" and "Preventive Maintenance Record for Automatic Weather Observation System" were implemented.

- 1) Implementation of inspection on trial base with the DOM using existing manual
- 2) Identification of the points to be revised from the existing manuals
- 3) Implementation of the experimental re-inspection using the revised manual
- 4) Implementation of re-verification of revised content and proofreading

In accordance with the following: procedures, the review and revision of the "Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System" and Spare Parts Replacement Procedure for Recovery" were implemented.

1) Preparation of simulated fault condition using real equipment

 Validation of inspection procedure using existing operation and maintenance manual



2.7.

Chr. Activity 1-5





Table 8: Number of failures of the equipment due to lightning

	Before installation of Additional Lightning Protection (November 2009 – February 2015)	After installation of Additional Lightning Protection (February 2015 – November 2016)
Frequency of damage caused by lightning at Ratnapura, Polonnaruwa	9 times	None

Using the prepared namuals, trainings were conducted for the engineers of the Electronic Engineering Division, the Observation Instrument & Observation Management Division and the responsible officer from the local weather observation stations.



<Review the upper air observation schedule>

(Activity of the JICA Long Term Expert)

Activity 1-7

- Identification of the points to be revised from the existing operation and maintenance manuals
- 4) Implementation of re-verification of revised content and proofreading

Since the existing operation and maintenance manual (prepared by the equipment manufacturer) of the automatic weather observation system had considerable thickness and is composed of several volumes, it was difficult to figure out the required section/s needed and peruse it carefully. Therefore, it was not used frequently in daily maintenance. Only the important page is selected as an autiline, a photograph or a diagram is newly inserted so that it is easy to understand, and "Troubleshooting and Inspection Procedure for Automatic Weather Observation System" and "Spare Parts Replacement Procedure for Recovery" were reedited.

<Training on the inspection and repair of Automatic Weather Observation System>

Since three observation stations, Ratnapura, Polomaruwa and Aralagatonwila, had frequent problems due to lightning strikes in the Automated Weather Observation System and communication system that was established through grant aid from Japan, the installation of the following additional lightning protection facilities were implemented through practical training in this project.

- Connection between lightning rod and earth rod: Copper flat bar
- Grounding Type: "Common Earth" with additional earth rod and existing earth rod, interconnected

Selivity 1-6

Earth resistance value: 5Ω or less

0-

Annex 3-2

Output 2 Actual Activities done under the Project

	Table: Actual Activities done under the Project
Outputs and Activates of the PDM	Actual Activities done under the Project-
Activities and the backum motor of the backum motor of the backum motor of the backum and the backum motor of the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and the backum and t	 Review the current situation on transmitting and receiving of observed data between AWS sites and the headquarters of DOM, and identify the issues to be improved> Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified. Operation of the existing VSAT satellite data communication system is unstable, and it is frequently discontinued. VSAT satellite data communication system manufactured by Gilar Satellite Networks Ltd. of Israel. Since the communication satellite (INSAT3E) currently in use lass already passed its service life of 10 years, it needs to be replaced within the next few years as its communication performance has deteriorated. For migration of the communication satellite with a new one, rechnical supports from the Gilat agent in India is indispensible and the cost (communication satellite replacement assisting cost) was estimated to be about 10.3 million yen (100,000 USD including one-year support) Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM. https://www.sets.and-the-backup.mode-for-the-data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the headquarters> www.sets.and-the-backup.mode-for-the-data transmitting and receiving between AWS sites and the backquarters> <a href="https://www.sets.and-withe-backup.mode-for-the-data transmitting-withe-backup.mode-for-the-data transmitting-withe-for-the-dwos abserved-backup.mode-for-the-dwos abserved-by-the-for-for-for-for-for-for-for-for-for-for</td>
 2.3 Review the current situation on GTS/MSI and identify the issue to be improved. 2.4 Replace and upgrade the GTS/MSS. 	 policy. Since the cost of technical support from Gilat Agent in India was too expensive and the reliability of the existing VSAT satellite data communication system was also low. DOM decided to stop the operation the existing VSAT satellite data communication system after exhausting the own ispare parts. As an alternative communication means, IP-VPN was the top priority. The examination is carried out while comparing with SMS and GPRS. The trial test on the possible backup means (IP-VPN utilizing a groun communication network) for the transmission and receipt of observation data in order to observe weather phenomena on a real-time basis him been successfully completed. The new communication method we decided to IP-VPN.

Activity 2-1

D



Details of the PDM Outputs under the Project

 Output 2. Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened.

<Backup of the existing VSAT system for observation data transmission between Automatic Weather Observation System and the DOM office>

The following items concerning the backup of the existing VSAT system for (ransmitting the observation data between the Automatic Weather Observation System and the DOM Head Office were examined. As a result, it was decided to adopt IP-VPN as the backup of the existing VSAT system.

- Confirmation of available communication methods for observation data transmission of the existing Automatic Weather Observation System
- Confirmation of service area, fee, fullute rate etc. of various communication services from the communication service providers in Sri Lanka
- 3) Implementation of transmission/reception experiment of observation data

A system network configuration diagram before and after the change to the system network, using IP-VPN is attached hereunder.

Activity 2.2



The required technical specifications for selecting an IP-VPN service provider and a procedure flow chart for transitioning from the VSAT system to IP-VPN attached below were prepared.

Operation Flow Chart for the Transition from VSAT to IP-VPN

MWS Observation Stations	0.0ht Head Office
and the second state is a state of the Vot Card Second	$= p_{1}(\theta_{1}, \phi_{1}, \phi_{2}) p_{2}(\phi_{1}, \phi_{2}) p_{3}$
$\begin{array}{c} \mathrm{Reprise } \left\{ e^{i \mathbf{r} \mathbf{r}} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \right\}_{\mathrm{out}} = \left\{ e^{i \mathbf{r}} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \right\}_{\mathrm{out}} = \left\{ e^{i \mathbf{r}} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \right\}_{\mathrm{out}} = \left\{ e^{i \mathbf{r}} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{\mathrm{out}}^{*} \mathbf{r}_{$	Construction of the second sec
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	$\label{eq:states} W_{\rm eff}(\mathbf{z}) = g_{\rm eff}(\mathbf{z}) W_{\rm eff}(\mathbf{z}) = 0.000 + 0.0000 + 0.000 + 0.000 + 0.000$
$0 \leq i \leq m > 0 \text{ or } (i \leq k \leq m > 1) \leq m < i \leq m < i \leq m > 1 \leq \leq m > $	a state of the sta
The second secon	$\left(\begin{array}{c} 1 & \dots & 1 \\ 1 & \dots & 1 \\ 2 & \dots & \dots \\ 2 & \dots & \dots \\ 1 & \dots & \dots$
Consective Lorence of Consertings	
0.	Complete II
Activity 2-	6 T

<Replacement of the existing GTS Message Switch System>

Technical Specifications of a new GTS Message Switch System necessary for the procurement procedures were prepared and the following equipment was procured by JICA. Equipment installation work and training completed on 18th December 2015.

Activity 2-3

- ♦ GTS Message Switch System
- ♦ Serial port Terminal Server
- Data Input Terminal
- ♦ Firewall Unit
- Compact Uninterruptible Power Supply

Training on the operation and maintenance of GTS Message Switch System by the equipment supplice engineers was implemented.





- First Training
 Schedule: December 10 December 18, 2015
 Training Content: Operation and Maintenance of GTS Message Switch System
- Second Training
 Schedule: May 02 May 06, 2017

0

Training Content: Training on Operation of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch (Visual Weather, Moving Weather module of the Global Telecommunication System Message Switch) and Access of WAFS (World Area Forecast System) data via the Secure SADIS FTP, BUFR Data Transmission

Activity 2-5

Mit.

7-7.

Annex 3-3

Output 3 Actual Activities done under the Project

Outputs and Activates of the PDM	Actual Activities done under the Project
Outputs 3 Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data. Activities 3,1 Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved. 3,2 Conduct the training on the development of short range (every 12)	 Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved? Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified. Acquisition of the Grid Polint Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri. Lanka (DOM WRF) at the National Weather Center was impossible. The DOM had no experience for production of Weather Forecasts Guidance. Weather forecasts of the DOM were qualitative (not quantitative). Meteorological Satellite Images of Chinese Fengrum (FY) and Communication, Ocean and Meteorological Satellite (COMS) of Korea were directly received for forecasting (Japanese Meteorological Satellite, Himawari could not be received). The Grid Polint Value of the Numerical Weather Prediction (NWP) of Japan Meteorological Agency UMA) was not received of profereasting. Number of the DOM personal who can operate Linux system was a few. Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM
36 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead) weather forecass guidance and verification. 3.3 Produce short range (every 12 hour precipitation up to 34 hours ahead) and weekly (7 days ahead guidance at the selecter stations.	 <training for="" forecast="" guidance="" weather=""></training> Procurement of the PCs for Weather Forecast: Guidance was implemented. Configuration of the processed PCs was conducted through the trainings. Collections of the Grid Point Value of the Regumal NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanku (DOM WRF) and the observation data of the AWSs for the production of Shot range weather forecasi guidance was completed and the database was implemented. Collections of the Grid Point Value of the GFS (NOAA Global Forecasi guidance was completed and the database was implemented. Collections of the Grid Point Value of the GFS (NOAA Global Forecasi guidance was completed and the database was implemented. The following trainings on Weather Forecast Guidance were conducted. Short Range (Colombo and Ratrapari: serve) 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead Short Range (Colombo Mestr: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead)

Activity 3-1

Que

Activity 3+3

7.8 7.8

3.4

Produce

Interactive

(SATAID).

3.6

3.7

Conduct training

improv

weather

Diagnosis

of -

forecast guidance of sea -

wind at the selected stations.

Conduct training on Satellite Animation and

Verify and improve the existing methods

seasonal forecast.

Point Vale for | Year

Rampurgi (Tortherbang) weather process Guidance (Cotombo and Rampurgi for Precipitations with the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale of 0.5 degree mesh data Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WDF Grid Down Value on-the-job WRF Grid Point Vala <Production of Weather Forecast Guidance> 10 nt of weather forecasting operation Comparison between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale and the GFS through integration of (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy was various data. implemented. · Production of the following Weather Porecast Guidance was implemented. 2 Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapara: every 12 hours up to 36 hours abead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the First Intern-Monsoon Season Short Range (Colombo and Ratnapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours Short Range Common and Rampurat every 12 nours up to 16 nours abend) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Southwest Morison Season Short Range (Colombo and Ramapurat every 12 hours up to 36 hours . ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Northeast Monsoon Season Short Range (Colombo and Rainapora: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Second Intern-Monsoon Season Weekly (144h-168h) Weather Forecast Guidance (Colombo and Ratnapura) for Precipitation with the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point Vale of 0.5 degree mesh data Addivity 7.7 Pr-

Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid

Short Range (Colombo and Ratrappira: every 12 hours up to 36 hours nhead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the First Intern-Monssan Season

Short Range (Colombo and Ratriagura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Southwest Monsoon Season

Short Range (Colombo and Rathapura: every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF

Short Range (Colombo and Ramapura: every 12 linitrs up to 36 hou

ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale for the Second Intern-Monsoon Season Weekly (144h-168h) Weather Forecast Guidance (Colombo and

Grid Point Vale for the Northeast Monsoon Season

C 19485 1 1	

 Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Runge (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale Trail operation of Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation with the WRF Grid Point Vale was commenced. Monitoring of Weather Forecast Guidances Revision/inprovement of Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidances Revision/inprovement of Semi-automatic Linux Program for Short Range (Colombo: every 12 and 24 hours) Weather Forecast Guidance Discussions with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale was implemented. Discussions with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale was implemented. 	 CSV data and other products from grib2 data of the glob meteorological organizations (NOAA Climate Forecast System, etc which is useful for NWP model operation were implemented. Trainings for preparation of attractive forecast products with Pow Point were implemented. www.energinal.org/antibusticasta-system. Trainings for preparation of attractive forecast products with Pow Point were implemented. www.energinal.org/antibusticasta-system. wwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwwww
WRF Grid Point Vale at the National Weather Center in the DOM Head Office were conducted Acquisition of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale at the National Weather Center was realized.	
 <trainings guidance="" on="" sea="" weather="" wind=""></trainings> Collections of the Grid Paint Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka and the observation data of the AWSs for the production of short range weather forecast guidance was completed and the database was implemented. Production of Short Range (Putalam and Pothavil; 24 hoars and 48 hours altead) Sea Wind Weather Guidance with the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale was implemented. Trainings on Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance were conducted. 	
<conduct and="" animation="" diagnosis<br="" interactive="" on="" satellite="" training="">(SATAID)> (Animation of the UCAL one Term Extent)</conduct>	
 Seasonal Weather Forecasts Production and verification of Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation (by 2040) with sea surface temperature observation data at 5 selected points in Pacific, Indian and Alantic Oceans and rainfall observation data of Colombo for 36 years with the CFS (NOAA Climate Forecast System) Grid Paint Vale was completed. Verification of Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was implemented for 15 minutes. 	
<on-the-job forecasting="" improvement="" of="" on="" operation<br="" training="" weather="">through integration of various data></on-the-job>	

Br.

5.4.

A cuvity 314

(1-

Details of the PDM Outputs under the Project

 Output 3: Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.

<Short Range (every 12 hours up to 36 hours ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following precedures, the Short Range (every 12 nears up to 36 murs ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for precipitation was produced.

 Comparison between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy

Comparison of "Multiple Correlation Coefficient" and "Intercept" hetween the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy with observation data of the existing automatic weather observation systems (AWS) was implemented. The results are as shown in the table below. According to the result, the Grid Point Value of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka (DOM WRF) was used for the Weather Forecast Guidance.

Table 9: Comparison of "Multiple Correlation Coefficient" and "Intercept" between the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale (GPV) and the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) for the Data Accuracy

	GPV of the Regional NWP Model (WRF) of Sri Lanka	GPV of GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System)
14 billets Completion Coafficient	0.839	0.763
Multiple Correlation Cocriterati	0.966	10.979
Intercent		

- (2) Grid Point Distance of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale: 10km
- (3) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the North-East Monoton Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC and 12UTC
 Real observation time corresponding to the forecast
 target time: 00:00 and 18:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)

(4) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast

0.

Activity 1-5

South-West Monsoon

1 at Inter Mor

27.

7.2

for Colombo rainfail (24 hours) between April 4, 2017 and July 18, 2017, the root mean square error between the forecast value and the observation value was 13.1 mm.

<Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance for precipitation was produced.

- (1) Grid Point Distance of the DOM WRF Grid Point Vale: 10km
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast target time of NWP data: 00UTC.
 Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
- (3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Puttalam and Pothuvil
- (4) As a result of analysis and examination, it was clarified that the accuracy of Weather Forecast Guidance was improved by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons. For this reason, it was decided to carry out the Weather Forecast Guidance separately for each Monsoon Season.
- (5) The predictors that give the highest Multiple Correlation Coefficient were extracted by the developed program. Details of the predictors used for the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance are shown in Annexes 2.
- (6) Confirmation of the accuracy of the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance

In order to confirm the accuracy of the Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours aliead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance, Multiple Correlation Coefficient and Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons were calculated. The results are as shown in the tables below.

0.

- Grid Point Distance of the GFS (NOAA Global Forecast System) Grid Point value: 0.5 degree
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast larget time of NWP data: 00UTC
 Real observation time corresponding to the forecast larget time: 06:00 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
- (3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Colombo and Ratnapura
- (4) As a result of analysis and examination, it was clarified that the accuracy of Weather Forecast Guidance was improved by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons. For this reason, it was decided to carry out the Weather Forecast Guidance separately for each Monsoon Season.
- (5) The predictors that give the highest Multiple Correlation Coefficient were extracted by the developed program. Details of the predictors used for the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation are shown in Annexes 2.
- (6) Confirmation of the accuracy of the Weekly (144h-(68h shead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation
- In order to confirm the accuracy of the Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation, Multiple Correlation Coefficient and Rooi Mean Square Error (RMSE) by dividing into 4 Monsoon Seasons were calculated. The results are as shown in the tables below.

Table 20: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monroson Sasaa	(Thirdhaddin Deabdins)
Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.44
1st Inter Monsoon	0.12
South-West Monsoon	0.351
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.323

Table 16: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Puttalam (4 Monsoon Seasons)

24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast	-
0.64	0,56	1
0.70	0.63	
0.73	0.72	
0.68	0,65	
	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast 0.64 0.70 0.73 0.68	24 fautrs Sea Wind Forecast 48 hours Sea Wind Forecast 0.64 0.56 0.70 0.63 0.73 0.72 0.68 0.65

Table 17: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea-Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pothuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-Fast Monspou	0.75	0.70
Let Inter Mansoon	0.74	0,67
South-West Monshon	0.65	0,69
Ted Inter Monsorn	0.69	0.74

Table 18: Rool Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
North-Fact Monsoon	0.6m/5	0.6m/s
La Inter Monsoon	0.5m/s	0.6m/s
Sauls West Mankow	0.4in/5-	0,4m/s
Test lane Manager	0.7m/s	0.7m/s

Table 19: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Short Range (24 hours and 48 hours ahead) Sea Wind Weather Forecast Guidance at Pothuvil (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24 hours Sea Wind Forecast	48 hours Sea Wind Forecast
Nauh Eng Monsonn	0.5m/s	0.5m/s
Lis Latas Mansaon	0.7m/s	0.7m/s
Foul Wast Monton	1.3n/s	0.9m/s
South-west Monsoon	0.8m/s	0.7m/s
2nd inter wonsown		

<Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Weekly (144h-168h alread) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was produced.

()r

Activity 3-0

Ser.

7.7.

Activity 3-10

(Jr

Table 21: Multiple Correlation Coefficient of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Ratnapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)

Monsoon Season	24bours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	0.40
1st Inter Motisioon	0.44
South-West Monsoon	0,46
2nd Inter Monsoon	0.26

Table 22: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather

Forecast Guidance for Precipitation at Colombo (4 Monsoon Seasons)	
Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	9.9mm
1st Inter Monsoon	14.0mm
South-West Monsoon	
2nd Inter Monsoon	

Table 23: Root Mean Square Error (RMSE) of Weekly (144h-168h ahead) Weather

Forecast Guidance for Precipitatio	n at Rathapura (4 Monsoon Seasons)
Monsoon Season	24hours Precipitation Forecast
North-East Monsoon	8.6mm
1st Inter Monsoon	[]1.3mm
South-West Monsoon	A CONTRACTOR OF THE OWNER
2nd Inter Monsoon	

<Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation>

In accordance with the following procedures, the Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation was produced.

- (1) Grid Point Distance of the CFS (NOAA Climate Forceast System) Grid Point value: 0.5 degree
- (2) Time of Observation Data and NWP Data used for the Weather Forecast Guidance
- Forecast larget time of NWP data: 00UTC
 Real observation time corresponding to the forecast target time: 06:09 (Local Time of Sri Lanka)
 - Do Activity 3-11

(3) Selected Forecast Point of the Weather Forecast Guidance: Colombo and Ratnapura

(4) The predictors used for the Seasonal Weather Forecast Guidance for Precipitation Sea Surface Temperature (SST) up to 9 months ahead of the NOAA Climate Forecasting System at 5 points indicated on the map below.





F.T.



Annex 3-4

Output 4 Actual Activities done under the Project

Dutputs and Activates of the PDM	Actual Activities done under the Project
Autputs 4 Warning criteria is laborated. Activities 4.1 Review the current situation on warnings, and identify the areas to be improved. 4.2 Examine methods for	 Review the current situation on weather forecasting and identify the issues to be improved> Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be improved upon were identified. Current issuance of advisory/warning is universally applied all over the country using the same criteria. The advisory/warning signs are not comprehensible for the public. The advisory/warning bulletin is mainly stated as textual information and difficult. Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.
he improvement of riteria through discussion with DOM, DMC, Dept of Fisheries, etc. and make new criteria for heavy rinital, strong, winda and lightning strike.	 cPreparation of New advisory/warming chemical or neavy randomoting wind and advisory criteria for lightnings? Collection of Weather observation data and disaster events has been conducted. Introduction of JMA advisory and warming has been made. Existing advisory/warming criteria of heavy rain and strong wind have been verified using weather observation data and disaster information. Revised advisory/warming criteria for heavy rainfall has been set at each climatic/geographical zone. Approach1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/raingauge rainfall data. (Using disaster events whose tocations are within 10km from the nerest AWS/raingauge) Approach2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/raingauge rainfall data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWS/raingauge rainfall data. (In the daily rainfall data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the area-averaged 00k0/s0h percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical greas as possible criteria for beavy rain warning/davisory.) Approach4: Statistical analysis using AWS/raingauge rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the area-averaged 00k0/s0h percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical greas as possible criteria for beavy rain warning/davisory.) Approach4: Statistical analysis using AWS/raingauge rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily ra

Details of the PDM Outputs under the Project

Output 4: Warning criteria is elaborated.

<Preparation of New advisory/warning criteria of heavy rain/strong wind and advisory criteria for lightning>

Revised advisory/warning criteria for heavy rainfall has been set at each elimatic/geographical zone

- (1) Approach 1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/rain gauge minfall data. (Using disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS/rain gauge)
- Data used for the analysis:
- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at thirty-eight (38) SYNOP and AWS stations.
- Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at about three hundred (300) stations.
 Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toll due to flood, landslide and cyclone); 462 events.

Period in scope of the analysis: January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Extract disaster events due to flood: 462 → 199 events.
- Extract disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS/rain gauge; 199 \$114 events. .
- Extract maximum daily rainfall observed by the AWS/rain gauge during the 5 days prior . to the occurrence of each disaster.
- Classify the AWS/rain gauge stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet -Intermediate Zone
- Sort the extracted AWS/rain gauge daily rainfall data in descending order for the two climate zones
- Assume the 40th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climite zones as essible criteria for heavy rain advisory
- Assume the 50th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zone possible criteria for heavy rain warning,

Advisory > 70mm/24h + 50mm

Results of the Analysis; Criteria for Dry Zone?

De

- Warning > 100mm/24h
 - Activity 4-3

areas as possible criteria for heavy rain warning/advisory.) Revised advisory/warning criteria for strong wind has been set. Approach1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Using disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS) Approach2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWS) Approach3: Statistical analysis using AWS wind speed data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the hourly wind speed data in descending order for each AWS station. Assume the averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning/advisory.) Newly advisory criteria for lightning has been set. Approach1: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data at SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSD) calculated from GFS. (Assume the averaged CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory at Dry Zone. Wet + Intermediate Zone and Whole country.) Approach2: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSI) calculated from GFS. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all CAPE and SSI data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the averaged 99th percentiles of the CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory. Internal operation of revised warning criteria of heavy rain and strong wind have been conducted in the period of rainy season (1st inter-monsoon season, 2017). The advisory/warning signs (Heavy Rain, Lightning, Strong Wind, Cyclone & Tsumami) have been improved in compliance with the universal design and which are comprehensible for anyone. The advisory/warning bulletin have been improved from TEXT product to VISUAL product. .

Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:

Advisory > 100mm/24h + 50mm/6h Warning :- 120mm/24h

(2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS/min gauge rainfull data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWS/rain gauge)

Activity 4-7

Data used for the analysis

- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at thirty-eight (38) SYNOP and AWS stations
- AWS ramital usual (nourty in university of three hundred (300) stations.
 Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at about three hundred (300) stations.
 Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toil due to flood, landslide and cyclone): 462 events.

Period in scope of the analysis

January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Extract disaster events due to flood: 462 → 199 events.
- Extract maximum daily rainfall observed by the AWS/rain gauge during the \$ days prior to the occurrence of each disaster.
- Classify the AWS/rain gauge stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet -Intermediate Zone
- · Sort the extracted AWS/rain gauge daily rainfall data in descending order for the two climate zones.
- Assume the 40th percentile of the daily rainfall data for the two elimate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the 50th percentile of the daily minifull data for the two climate rones as possible criteria for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis: Criteria for Dry Zone:

D.

Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:

Advisory = 70mm/24h = 50mm/6l Warning> 100mm/24h Advisory $\simeq 90 mm/24h + 9$ Warning > 120mm/24h

(3) Approach 3: Statistical analysis using AWS/rain gauge rainfall data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the daily rainfall data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the area-averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criterin for lieavy min warning/advisory.)

Activity did

t-T.

17

9.1

9-7-

Data used for the analysis: Before the operation of the AWS: .

- Raiss gauge rainfall data (datly) at selected twenty (20) SYNOP stations. After the operation of the AWS:
- AWS rainfall data (hourly) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP

Period in scope of the analysis: January 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- Sort all the daily rainfall data during the period to scope of the analysis in descending. order for each SYNOP station.
- Extract the 95th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SVNOP station.
- Extract the 99th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station
- In case daily rainfall data is missing (-999) or daily rainfall is below 0.1mm/24h, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Classify the SYNOP stations into two climate zones; Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone
- · Assume the area-averaged 95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criteria for heavy rain advisory.
- Assume the area-averaged 90th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two climate zones as possible criterin for heavy rain warning.

Results of the Analysis;

Criteria for Dry Zone: Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone:

Advisory > 55mm/24h Warning > 100mm/24h Advisory > 45mm/24h Warning > 85mm/24h



- Data used for the analysis:
- Before the operation of the AWS: Rain gauge rainfall data (daily) at selected twenty (20) SYNOP stations.
- After the operation of the AWS

0.

Activity 4-5

2T

A.T.

Cherry Wounder (Stierte (Coory Leffs)



Revised advisory/warning criteria for strong wind has been set.

(() Approach 1: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Using disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the nearest AWS)

Data used for the analysis;

- AWS wind speed data (hourly, average/gust wind speed) at selected twenty (20) stations eo-located at the SYNOP stations.
- Disaster events recorded by the DMC (death toll, destroyed and damaged houses due to strong wind): 703 events.

Period in scope of the analysis: January 2009 to December 2014

N

- Method: Extract disaster events whose locations are within 10km from the AWS: 703 \rightarrow 144
- events. Extract maximum average/gust wind speed data observed by the AWS 48 hours prior to
- the occurrence of each disaster Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (144 data) in descending order.

Activity 4-7

· Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind

AWS rainfall data (hourly) at selected twenty (20) stations co-located at the SYNOP

Period in scope of the analysis:

uary 1978 to December 2014

Method:

- · Son all the daily rainfall data during the period in scope of the analysis in descending
- order for each SYNOP station, (Sume as Method 1 of Approach No. 3) Extract the 95th percentille of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station
- Extract the 99th percentile of the daily rainfall data for each SYNOP station
- * In case daily rainfall data is missing (v99) or daily rainfall is below 0.1mm/24h, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Classify the SYNOP stations into two geographical areas: Mountain area and Plain area. Assume the area-averaged 95th percentiles of the daily rainfall data for the two
- geographical areas as possible criterta for heavy rain advisory
- Assume the area-averaged 99th percentiles of the daily minfall data for the two geographical areas as possible criteria for heavy rain warning

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Mountain Area: Criteria for Plain Area

Advisory > 35mm/24h Warning > 65mm/24h Advisory > 50mm/24h Warning = 100mm/24h



advisory

0-

 Assume 95th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Advisory: Average Wind Speed > 20km/b, Gust Wind Speed > 45km/b

Activity 446

- Criteria for Warning Average Wind Speed > 40km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 70km/h
- (2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using both the disaster records and AWS wind speed data. (Without considering the distance between the place where the disaster occurred and the nearest AWSV

Data used for the analysis

Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (144 data) in descending order. Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.

Period in scope of the analysis: January 2009 to December 2014

Method:

- Use all the disaster events on record even if the distance from the nearest AWS exceeds 10km: 703 events
- Extract maximum average/gust wind speed observed by the AWS 48 hours prior to the occurrence of each disas
- Sort the above extracted AWS wind speed data (703 data) in descending order.
 Assume 50th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind advisory
- Assume 95th percentile of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning.

Results of the Analysis:

Criteria for Advisory . Average Wind Speed > (5km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 40km/h Criteria for Warning: Average Wind Speed > 35km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 75km/h

(3) Approach 3: Statistical analysis using AWS wind speed data. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all the hourly wind speed data in descending order for each AWS station. Assume the averaged 99th/95th percentiles of the wind speed data as possible criteria for strong wind warning/advisory.)

Data used for the analysis

AWS wind speed data (hourly, average/gust wind speed) at selected twenty (20) stations

Activity 4-8

0.

the T-

5.4

co-located at the SYNOP stations.

Period in scope of the analysis: January 2009 to December 2014

Method:

- Sort all the AWS wind speed data during the period in scope of the analysis in . descending order for each AWS station. (24-hr x 365-day x 6-year data) Extract 95th percentile of the wind speed data for each AWS station.
- Extract 99th percentile of the wind speed data for each AWS station. + In case AWS wind speed data is missing (-999) or below (m/s, those data are not
- included in the statistical analysis. · Assume the nationwide average of the 95th percentiles as possible criteria for strong wind advisory.
- Assume the nationwide average of the 99th percentiles as possible criteria for strong wind warning.

Results of the Analysis;

Criteria for Advisory: Average Wind Speed > 20km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 35km/h Criteria for Warning: Average Wind Speed > 25km/h, Gust Wind Speed > 45km/h

Rospective Wanting Ciliade (Strong Wind)

	Existing Offertia	Approach No. 1 Criteria (Disaster Event Analysis)	Approvit No.2 Consta (Disaster Event Apply (d)	Approach No.3 Criteria (Statistical Analysis)
America	Advisory W > 30km/h	Advisory W > 20km/h	Advisory R > 15km/h	Advisory W > 20km/h (templant Scale 1)
Wind Speed	Warning W > S0km/h	Warning W > 40km/h	Warning R > 35km/h	Warning W > 25km/h (bewelori Scales I)
Gudina	Advisory W > 60km/h	Advisory W > 45km/h	Advisory R > 40km/h	Advisory W > 35km/h (IIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
Wind speed	Warning W > 70km/b	Warning W > 70km/h	Warning 8 > 75km/h (Besulton scale 7)	Warning W > 45 km/h (Beaufort Scales 6)

Activity 4-9

2-7.

Fr.

Tra.

- Newly advisory criteria for lightning has been set.
- (1) Approach 1: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data at SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSI) calculated from GFS. (Assume the averaged CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory at Dry Zone, Wet + Intermediate Zone and entire country,)

Indicators used CAPE and SSI*

*SSI: Showalter stability index

SSI = Tem - Tr

Tim: the temperature ("C) at 500 hPa

To the temperature EC) of a parcel filled from 850 to 500 mb. dry-adiabatically to saturation and moist-adiabatically above that.

*By using the correspondence table (TL_table.xisx) about temperature (T850) and humidity (R14850) at 850hPa and FL at 500hPa, adequateness of SSI was also confirmed.

(References)

Rough indication of atmospheric instability	CAPE	SSI
Stable	< 0	> 0
Weak instability (Chance of thunderstorm)	0 - 1000	0-3
Moderate instability (Chance of severe thunderstorm)	1000 - 2500	-36
Strong instability (Chance of severe thunderstorm)	2500 - 3500	+69
Extreme instability (Chance of severe thunderstorm)	> 3500	2.0

Source: Japan Meteorological Agent

Data used for the analysis;

- CAPE extracted from the GFS* (lifted from the ground)
 SSI derived from the GFS* (calculated by using T850, T500 and RH850)
- *GFS: 0.5 degree grid, 6 hourly initial value, Re-analyzed data
- (https://www.nede.noau.gow/data-access/model-data/model-datasets/global-forcast-system-gfs) Lightning observation data from the ROB at the selected twenty (20) SYNOP station

Activity 4-10

1-2

1

 SSI derived from the GFS (calculated by using T850, T500 and RH850 extracted from the GFS)

Period in Scope of the Analysis:

January 2015 to December 2016.

- Method:
- Select the nearest GFS GPV grids to represent each selected SYNOP station
- Sort all the 6 hourly CAPEs and SSIs in descending order for each SYNOP station
- Extract the 99th percentile of the CAPE and SSI for each SYNOP static
- * In case CAPE or SSI data are missing (-9909) in the GFS GPV, those data are not included in the statistical analysis.
- Assume the area-averaged CAPE and SSI for the two climate zones and whole country as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

Results of the Analysis:

0.-

Criteria for Dry Zone Criteria for Wet + Intermediate Zone: Criteria for Whole Country:

CAPE = 2500, SSI = -3.5 CAPE > 2000, SSI = -3.5 CAPE > 3300, SS(<-3.5



Reepartice Accisory Charlen (holized



Internal operation of revised warning criteria of heavy rain and strong wind have been conducted in the period of tainy season (1st inter-monsoon season, 2017).

Activity 4-12



O.

- Method:
- Select the nearest GF8 GPV grids to represent each selected SYNOP station.
 Extract CAPEs and calculate SSIs from the GF8 GPV at the time of lightning
- observation or at the closest time before lightning observation for each SYNOP station. Calculate the average of the above extracted CAPEs and calculated SSIs for each SYNOP stati
- · Classify the SYNOP stations into two climate zones: Dry Zone and Wet + Intermediate Zone
- Assume the area-averaged CAPE and SSI for the two climate zones and whole country as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

Reputs of the Analysis; Criteria for Dry Zone.

Criteria for Wet - Intermediate Zone: Criteria for Whole Country:



(2) Approach 2: Statistical analysis using lightning observation data at SYNOP station and atmospheric instability data (CAPE and SSI) calculated from GFS. (In consequence of discussion with DOM, sort all CAPE and SSI data in descending order for each SYNOP station. Assume the averaged 99th percentiles of the CAPE and SSI data as possible criteria for lightning advisory.

- -The reason for using 99" percentile of CAPE and SSI-
- If $100^{\prime\prime\prime}$ percentile (largest value) is used, lightning advisory might be hardly issued. As the first stage for operating new lightning advisory, 99th percentile (generally representing extreme value) was adopted.
- It is necessary for DOM to accumulate lightning events for a few years and to verify most suitable percentile in the future. (e.g. 95^{th} percentile would be better than 99^{th} .)
- Indicators used: CAPE and SSI

De

Data used for the analysis;

CAPE extracted from the GFS (lifted from the ground)

Activity 4-11

Procedure of verification :

Every 3 hourly rainfall data observed at the synoptic stations have been used for verifying Heavy Rainfall Warning/Advisory. Every hourly wind data observed at Colombo station have been used for verifying Strong Wind Warning/Advisory.

Criteria of Heavy Rainfall and Strong Wind Warning/Advisory have been verified when Severe Weather Warning/Advisory was issued.



Validation result for prospective W/A criteria of heavy rainfall : Weather advisory for heavy rainfall was issued at 18th May, 2017 13:00.

Criteria of approaches 3 and 4 satisfied the conditions for issuing advisory at 14:30.



COLOMBO 18 May 2017	Selme St
Angrage Wind Second Quarks	MITTER
	THE REPORT OF A DRIVEN
WEATHER ADVISORY FOR STRONG WINDS, FAIRLY HEAVY RAINFALLS (WW17-14) was issued at 13-00	
	en e
e Orient	Portende (miles (mass)) 2 (03183 pay afternises What recountry have many
and	the CRV or trains operating the Mesony Inc. Rocease operation
1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 1000 100	n from Colombox Nor Anisan 1914/A areas after trevi i kili 14 Colombo in antina egan
11:00, 18:00 : deals entening to 12	Telepher Annal affilies Annan Institution of the Colorenge
Kind of Existing Approach Approach Incom Criteria Criteria No.3 No.3 No.3 No.3	And Streams and Market Differences
Advisory - (Stotementar) -	William State of the State of t
Warning	

The advisory/warning signs (Heavy Rain, Lightning, Strong Wind, Cyclone & Tsummi) have been improved in compliance with the universal design and which are comprehensible for anyone.

Advisory/Warning Signs



Annex 3-5

7.2

8.7.

Output 5 Actual Activities done under the Project

and the second se	Table: Actual Activities done under the Project
Outputs and Activates of the PDM	Actual Activities done under the Project
Outputs 5 The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved. Activities 5.1 Review the contents of current meteorological information and identify the protect to the	 cldentification of the Contents of Meteorological Information and the Current Issues> Through several discussions with the DOM and the Baseline Study, the current issues indicated below to be Improved upon were identified. There were many weather information by letters. Weather information visualized by graph etc. was small. The existing DOM Website was displayed with mixed English, Sinhala, and Tamil languages. The existing DOM Website was incompatible with various internet terminals (PC, smart phone; tablet, etc.). Taniplates could not be changed on the existing DOM Website. There was no information on weather educational materials. Baseline Survey Report was prepared and submitted to the JICA and the DOM.
improved. 5.2 Improve the contents of meteorological information. 5.3 Review the timing of information dissemination to ships and fleet. 5.4 Improve the contents of Website	 <improvement contents="" information="" meteorological="" of="" the=""> As a result of the discussions with the DOM, the weather information of the new DOM Website was developed mainly by improving the following items. Reduction of character information Warning alert placed on top page Click button to important information with graphs etc. Display in English, Sinhala, Tamili Easy weather information applied Posting commentary on simple weather by image Posting the publication of meteorological radar images at the lime the meteorological radar observation network is completed Posting information for educational materials (disaster awarenest materials) </improvement>
5.5 Prepare smartphon compatible website.	<review dissemination="" information="" of="" the="" timing=""> Discussions in fiming of issuance of meteorological Information for ships and heet were held. After the discussions with the DOM, it was decided to post meteorological Information for ships and fleet on the new DOM Web</review>

Activity 5-1

De

The advisory/warning bulletin have been improved from TEXT product to VISUAL product. Map information of advisory/warning issued area has been added in the 2nd page.



Prepare educations materials (disaste waraness materials) fe the weather services.	 Meteorological Information far ships and fleet for timely provision to the users was posted on the new DOM Web site. "Improve the Content of the DOM Web site compatible with smartphones." Development of a new DOM Web site compatible with various internet terminals. Brainstorning was conducted to consider the best way to develop a new DOM Website. Preparation of a new template for the DOM new DOM Website was completed. After discussions with the DOM, the page layout and design of the new DOM Website was completed. After discussions with the DOM, the page layout and design of the new DOM Website was for a new template for the DOM new DOM Website was completed. Consultation with the Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka (ICT), which operates and maintains attl the Websites of the government organizations of Sri Lanka, Joomia 3.4 which is the most suitable CMS (Content Management System) was adopted for realizing computibility with various Internet terminals (PC, strait phone, tablet, etc.) and easy update. In order to develop a new DOM Website that notpied Joomla 3.4, the selected local contractor was ordered. The DOM applied for updating of a new DOM Website to ICTA. The DOM applied for updating of a new DOM Website. Confirmation of that the new template has appropriate compatibility was made by a smartphone. Innorowend/optimization for the Contents created by the DOM on the new DOM Website to be approprintely displayed on various internet terminals (Windows, Mac OS, IPhone, IPad, Android, etc.) was carried out. An external site "Save Yourself" that can display and download animated cartoons or various Internet terminals was established. A ink hanner was placed on the from page of the new DOM Website to access the animated cartoon site maned Save Yourself? Jananese meteorological satell	 -Monitoring status of utilization of educational materials > Educational materials for weather information disaster respectively in the state of the
_	ereparation of educational materials for weather information dissemination >	 By merging animated images, recorded voices and background ma- animated cartoon consisting of the three episodes, Climate of Sri La-

	program on disaster risk reduction was completed. Open class Open classes using minitted cartoon consisting of the three episodes for awareness program on disaster risk reduction were implemented fourteen (14) times in Colombo, Kalitana and Nayara Eliya tilstricts. Comprehension tests were conducted for 2,922 students/participants/just before/after showing the animated cartoon for awareness program or disaster risk reduction to understand their understanding. DOM rubber mascets, on the back side of which the new DOM Webbin address was printed, have been distributed to the students who attended the open classes. Implementation of open classes was confirmed to be effective considering that average score of comprehension test just before/after showing the minimated cartoon is fifty two (52) and eighty (80) respectively. Open classes organized by the DOM are continuously implemented. Educational materials for weather information dissemination Beaufort Wind Scale Laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale on Land and at Sea in three languages, English, Sintulates and Tamil, were mude. The laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale on Land and at Sea in three languages, English, Sintulates and Tamil, were mude. The laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale services, staff of oversets weather-related organizations and others.
--	---

Details of the PDM Outputs under the Project

 Output 5: The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved.

<Development of a new DOM Website compatible with various Internet Terminals>

In order to overcome the issues clarified in the Baseline Survey, a new DOM Website that can be compatible with various Internet terminals (PC, smart phone, tablet etc.) and easily update, which satisfy each item listed below was ileveloped under the Project.

- Reduction of character information
- · Warning alert placed on top page
- · Click button to important information displayed on top page
- · Provision of visualized information with graphs etc.
- = Display in English, Sinhala, Tamil
- + Easy weather information upload
- · Posting commentary on simple weather by image
- + Posting weather satellite images
- Enabling the publication of meteorological radar images at the time the meteorological radar observation network is completed.
- + Posting information for educational materials (disaster awareness materials)

In addition, the basic policies of designing a new DOM Website are as follows.

- As the design goal of a new DOM Website, Keen It Simple (KIS) was adopted
 Setting up a reasonable blank space (white space) between lines, letters, elements, etc.,
- and made it a website that reduces the burden of reading by the user was considered. A website that effectively utilized visual communication (layout (format, composition, grid), typography (type selection, character handling), color and texture, animation etc.) was made.
- As soon as a user sees the page, he/she makes it a structure and design that can
 understand the contents and functions of the page.

Activity 5-5

A clear link to move to another page was made.

0.

FT-

Images were easier to see than text, making bold more prominent than plain text.

The images of the top page of the existing and new DOM websites are attached below.



a time the



WEATHER FORECASTS

2%

2003 000 000

0 Activity 5+6 the ICTA (Information and Communication Technology Agency of Sri Lanka), the technical review by the ICTA was carried out.

Since the renewal was approved through technical review by the ICTA, the existing DOM Website was replaced with a new Website on November 25, 2016.

The operation test and adjustment were conducted between November 25 and December 31, 2016, and January 01, 2017 was set as the date of launch of the new DOM Website,

The results of the investigation on the number of accesses of the new DOM Website are as follows.

Average Number of Accesses per day during Baseline Survey: 2,000

- Target of Average Daily Access of the new DOM Website (Indicator of PDM Output: 30% up): 2,600
- Average Daily Access of the new DOM Website between January and June 2017: 2,714 (36.8% up)

As a result, the indicator of PDM Output which is "access number increased by 30% or more" was satisfied (Average Daily Access: 2,736 / Target of Average Daily Access: 2,600 = 1.368 = 36.8%)

Month	1	lotal.	Monthly	Access	Days	Average nun	aber of Accesses/day
January 2017		1	63,355	5 /	31		2,044
February 2017	1	3	49,379	2 7	28		1,764
March 2017	-	-	\$3,053	2 /	31		1,714
April 2017	-		47,380	6 /	30		1,580
May 2017	-	1	193,883	2 7	31	1.00	6,254
Jung 2017		-	\$8,15	6 /	30	-	2,939
July 2017			-	1	31		
	Total	1	495,21	0 /	181	1.1	2,736

0. Activity 5-7



<Open Class>

Open classes using animated cartoan consisting of the three episodes for awareness program on disaster risk reduction were implemented fourteen (14) times in Colombo. Kalitatar and Nutwara Eliya districts. Comprehension tests were conducted for 2,022 students/participants just before/after showing the animated among for awareness program on disaster risk reduction to understand their understanding. Implementation of open classes was confirmed to be effective, considering that average score of comprehension (esi just before/after showing the animated cartoon is fifty two (52) and eighty (80) respectively.

Table 25: Records of Open Class

No,	Date & Time	Venue	Name of School	Shown Version of the Cartoon	Number of Sessions	Grade	Number of Students Participants	Average Score	
								Pre	Post
t	March 08, 2017 14:00-15:00	DOM Auditorium	Siridhammi College, Galle	Sinhala	(.).	-8-	209	52	81
2	March 10, 2017 10:00-11:00	Ananda Gid's College, Colombo	Ananda Girl's College, Colombu	Sinitala	1	8	217	60	92
3	March 30, 2017 09:00-10:30	National Youth Corps, Walapana, Nuwara Eliya	National Youth Corps, Walapani, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	Ē.	À-D	123	55	91
á	March 30, 2017 11:30-13:00	Nandarama College, Nuwara Eliya	Nandarama College, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	T	6-11	(2)	47	74
5	March 31, 2017 09:00-10:30	T.B.M. Herath Secondary College, Nuwara Eliya	T.B.M. Herath Secondary College, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala).	6-11	306	46	77
6	March 31, 2017	Kalagamwatta Navodya	Kalagamwatta Navodya	Sinhala	1	6-12	246	43	68

Activity 5+10

0.

	12:00-13:30	School, C.S. Nuwara Eliya	School, C.S. Nuwara Eliya				-40		
7	March 31, 2017 15:30-17:30	Community Centre, Kandayaya, Nuwara Eliya.	(For general public)	Sinhala	ĵ.	-	75		
8	April 26, 2017 10:00-11:30	Princess of Wales girls school. Colombo	Princess of Wales girls school. Colombo	Sinhala	1	8-9	440	62	89
9	May 19, 2017 10:45-12:10	Walagedara Navoya School, Mathugama, Kalutara	Walagedara Navoya School, Mathugama, Kalutara	Sinhala	$\overline{\mathbf{b}}$	9-11	258	68	93
10	May 23, 2017 09:40-11:10	Holy Trinity Central College, Nuwara Eliya	Holy Trinity Central College, Nuwara Eliya	Tamil	Ť	8-13	487	51	80
	May 23, 2017 15:25-16:35	Maskeliya Plantation P.L.C. Troup Estate Dispensary & Maternity Ward Talawakelle, Nuwara Eliya	"Barathy Maha Vithyalayan, Talawakelle, Nuwara Eliya	Tarrol	4	6. 8-13	-51	47	7)
12	2 May 23, 2017 17:15-18:00	Talawakelle Ter Estate P.L.C. Holyrood Estat Training Centre	a (For tea plantation workers and their children)"	Tamil	a.		64	-	
13	May 24, 2017 09:20-11:00	St. Xiver's College, Nuwara Eliya	(For ten plantation workers)	Tamil	1	6-13	255	37	6(
1.	May 24, 2017 11:20-12:20	St. Xiver's College, Nuwara Eliya	St. Xiver's College, Nuwara Eliya	Sinhala	0	1+11	70	4	
-			Tab	d			2.922	52	8

Activity 5-11

Annex 4-1

Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal

The Overall Goal of the Project is for the "weather information disseminated from the DOM is well utilized by the public and the disaster related organizations". For that purpose, it is important to issue highly accurate weather forecasts and warnings to contribute to mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters, and as a result, it is necessary to improve the public trust with the DOM's weather information.



Figure: Issuance of Meteorological Forecasts & warnings and Collaboration with Disaster Prevention related Organizations to be Strengthened

In order to alleviate damage from gusts, floods and landslides caused by heavy rain in Sri Lanka, if is important that the DOM grasps accurately the current weather conditions through observation and issues highly accurate weather forecasts and warnings. Furthermore, if is indispensable for each disaster prevention related organization to cooperate with each other and in fulfill their own services. In particular, the DOM has the role of the preparation of accurate forecasts warnings and promptly disseminating them to each organization. and the information from the DOM is a trigger for the initial activity of each disaster prevention related organization. For itial reason, further improvement of the weather forecasts/warnings of quantitatively (= issuance frequency) and qualitatively (= accuracy) is strongly required in order to further strengthen the DOM; meteorological observation system, reliably send observation data to the National Weather Center (NWC) in the DOM Head Office, analyze and process the information and reflect these observation data in the forecasts.

In order to further enhance the benefits of the Project, recommendations towards the achievement of the Overall Goal of the Project are as follows.

() Manpower Development

().-

<Educational materials for weather information dissemination. Beaufort Wind Scale>

Laminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale on Land and at Sea in three languages, English, Sinhalese and Tamil, were made. The faminated sheets of Beaufort Wind Scale were distributed to visitors to the DOM such as school teachers, government officials, military personnel in charge of meteorological services, staff of overseas weather-related organizations and others,

<Cloud Types for Observers in Sri Lanka>

The DOM original "Cloud Types for Observers" was prepared by the Consultant Team. However the DOM original "Cloud Typess for Observers" with 27 (the required munber of total cloud pictures) cloud pictures was not yet completed since 4 types of the cloud pictures in red frames on "Cloud Types for Observers" attached the right side unfortunately were not taken in Sri Lanka by the Consultant Team.

This is to request the DOM to take the remaining 4 types of the cloud pictures and replace them with original pictures to be taken by the DOM for the completion.

D=



14
- The development of more qualified technical personnel through continuous training and, other related manpower development programs; and,
- The conduct of timely research to increase the level of understanding/knowledge ubout meteorological disasters.

2) Natural Disaster Prevention and Management

- The creation of effective communication and collaboration with the various government agencies, NGOs, and international institutions for better coordination of natural disaster prevention and management;
- The formulation of effective and consistent disaster prevention schemes through different stages from Weather Porecasting, Warning Annunnement, Disaster Occurrence, Information Dissemination, all the way to Evacuation Stage;
- Implement and ensure wider dissemination of knowledge and information on disaster-prevention activities to all sectors including government disaster management agencies, the private sector, and the population at risk.
- Setting up of redundancies in the announcement of warnings and other information dissemination to ensure reaching out to the general populace;
- Continuing education to the general public, especially the population at risk, through the Local Government Units (LGUa) in coordination with various related disaster management agencies on effective natural disaster prevention and management;
- Further strengthening of a cooperative structure among the mass media (TV, radio, newspaper), the Prime Minister's Office, Ministry of Disaster Management, Ministry of Irrigation & Water Resources Management, Ministry of Transport, Ministry of Agriculture, Civil Aviation Authority, Ministry of Health & Indigenous Medicine, Ministry of Fisheries and Aguatic Resource Development, Ministry of Highways, Ports & Shipping, Department of Police, Fire Station, other government-affiliated organizations, Sri Lanka/Red Crescent Society, etc.; and,
- Furtherance of utilization of the meteorological information/data and forecasts/warnings by the mass media (TV, radio, newspaper), the Prime Minister's Office. Ministry of Disaster Management, Ministry of Irrigation & Water Resources Management, Ministry of Transport, Ministry of Agriculture, Civil Aviation Authority, Ministry of Health & Indigenous Medicine, Ministry of Pisheries and Aquatic Resource Development. Ministry of Highways. Ports & Shipping. Department of Police. Fire Station, other government-affiliated organizations, Sri Lanka Red Crescent Society. etc.

0.

软

	the knowledge and data of meteorology. In order to understand real time local weather conditions acros the country and utilize them for dissister prevention operations, it i imperative to transmit observation data of all the AVSs to the DOM Head Office without any delay for accurate evaluation e the Numerical Weather Prediction and Weather Guidance.
 Warning cristeria is elaborated. 	 To create an updated, accurate and consistent dambase in meteorological disasters (deaster occurrence time, disaste location, damage situation, weather condition, weather informatio and transmission condition). To conduct further research to increase the level o understanding/knowledge about meteorological disasters and it mechanisms along with other related meteorological disaster through the implementation of the above recommendations at the same time continually develop human resources capable of doing the verification and review of warning criteria.
 The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved. 	 In order to reduce natural disaster risk, it is important is improve the cooperation with organizations/agencies related to disaster management and mass media as the means for transmission or disaster information To conduct continuous public awareness activities about disaster prevention. In order for the public to find weather information easier, it is necessary to improve the DOM's Website continuously. To develop and recruit the human resources needed to implement the above recommendations. To continuously develop Human resources within the DOM who can conduct Open Class both in Colombo zity and in local regions. To externing ideas and opinions on a regular basis with stakeholders on the method of dissemination and the contents of mecerological information through the Monsoon Forum conducted biomently the FOM and the forum to ford hors.

into the DOM's activity and products for further improvements. To continuously inform availability of the renewed DOM website through the Monsoon Forum and Open Class. To produce "Weather Summary on Severe Weather Disaster (tentative title)" immediately after disaster occurrence (within one day after the disaster), and distribute it to the retevant

organizations and be on the DOM website.

64

Recommendations for further contribution for mitigating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM

Recommendations of each Output of PDM for further contribution for mittigating the damage caused by natural disasters by the DOM are described in the following table.

Output of PDM	Recommendations
 Capacity on maintenance and calibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved. 	To conduct a technical training for the DOM staff in charge of the maintenance and inspection of the meteorological observation instruments using knowledge gained from this Project.
 Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data is strengthened. 	To encourage and continue the maintenance of the observation fields (prevention of animal intrusion, etc.) and the environmental improvement of the observation rooms (installing an air conditioner). In order to enhance and guarantee the continuous operation of the nutomatic weather observation systems (AWS) and to ensure the technical training of the electrical engineering staff, the establishment of appropriate measures against system failure, scheduled replacement of parts and a fully documented maintenance system with proper document control is indispensible. To conduct technical training for new staff and periodic inspection by the manufacturing company for the stable operation of the GTS/Message Switching System (MSS).
3 Capacity of weather Forecassing is improved using obtained meteorological data.	Continuous recruitment of human resources for roles in forecast operation for the next generation. Simultaneously, the development of excellent weather forecasters need to be sustained by conducting forecast trainings within the DOM, encouraging staff to attend a training program abroad and supporting staff to earn Masters or Doctoral degrees. To conduct accurate evaluation of the Local Numerical Weather Prediction WRF model atmed at actual operation. to put the Weather Guidance using the data of the WRF model/the Globa Numerical Weather Prediction Model to practical use. To consumulate the grid point values (GPV) after the calculation of the WRF model every day for the evaluation and the improvemen of the model.

0

Annex 4-2

Recommendations towards the Achievement of the Overall Goal (Long-term Expert)

1) Modernization of surface meteorology observation

- The current parallel operation of the manual observation and the automatic observation at the DOM regional offices have been a large burden regarding budget and human resources.
- Transformation to automatic observation using the current AWS should be planned.
- Firstly, several test bed stations of automatic observation should be started to make the total plan of the transformation.
- Training of the observers on full automatic observation of the AWS should be implemented in parallel.
- After establishing the technology of full automatic observation, the full automatic observation will be started at the all sites.

2) Renovation of the organization of DOM

- In accordance with the modernization of the surface meteorological observation and installation of the dual-polarization Doppler radar systems, the renovation of the organization of DOM and reducation and relocation of human resources should be planned.
- It should be discussed that the role of the regional offices of DOM could be shifted from the current observation points to the dissemination bases of weather information for the local citizen.

3) Capacity development

- DOM has been making efforts to make capacity development through the inhouse training, the JICA group training, and graduate programs in foreign countries. Such explicitly developments should be continued corresponding to abilities of the DOM staff members.
- Research activities and inhouse seminars concerning meteorological analysis for disaster events should be made in order to enhance their knowledge on the latest meteorological knowledge.

4) Establishment of the system of rules

Acts covering the entire weather services of DOM, rules, guidelines and manuals for all the duties on the weather services of DOM should be prepared in order to authorize and standardize the weather services of DOM.

Ur.

SIL

Recommendations to the DOM for further contribution to mitigate the damage caused by natural disasters

(Long-term Expert)

Output of PDM	Recommendations
Capacity on maintenance and enlibration of meteorological observation equipment is improved.	 To continue the new instrument calibration scheme established in the project and ensure the traceability of the meteorological instruments concerning, pressure and temperature through the constant calibration of the domestic meteorological instrument. To continue close communication and association with the oversais Regional Instrument Center of the World Meteorological Organization (WMO), particularly with RIC-Tsukuba Concerning instruments of humidity, with RIC-Tsukuba Concerning instruments of humidity, with RIC-Tsukuba Concerning instruments and calibration devices, with receiving technical supports from the RIC-Tsukuba. To make regular calibration of the DOM standards with the RIC standards to ensure the traceability of instruments. To connect an internel line to the instrument division of DOM to contact the RIC-Tsukuba (or exchange information on the instrument traceability. To schedule daily radiosonde observation considering the budget and humes and schedule and schedule and schedule and schedule daily radiosonde observation considering the budget
 Transmitting and receiving capacity of various kinds of meteorological data in strengthened. 	no onder resoluces.
3 Capacity of weather forecasting is improved using obtained meteorological data.	
 Warning criteria is elaborated. 	
 The method of dissemination and contents of meteorological information are improved 	

7.1.

- Secretary mentioned that it's important to detect lightning to give prior warning but improving awareness of people to prevent such natural disasters take part more important.
- Severe drought is continuing in 15 districts from last year. Weather forecast is more important than earlier due to this kind of serious weather disasters occurring time to time.
- DOM expects there will be showers during end September or October

Q.

0-

- Mr. Akatsu mentioned that through it is important to forecasting weather, it will be more
 important to have sound knowledge on current weather situation. Secretary agreed with him.
- Secretary asked DOM to check the status about meteorological lessons in the school text books for school students with Education department, to make sure whether students having sufficient knowledge on meteorology through the education system.
- Secretary agreed with the Dr. Ishihara's recommendation to make act on meteorological services.

Annex 5

Other discussions in the 4th JCC on 26th July 2017

- DOM was mentioned that the current service provider (ICTA) for website is not efficient as when there is some breakdown during the night time, there is no engineer to attend for the maintenance. Therefore DOM has to wait until next day morning if some error occurred during the night.
- Secretary asked DOM to check the possibility to change the service provider in order to get better service for DOM.
- Secretary asked DOM regarding MOU (Memorandum of Understanding) for Himawari Satellite and Ms. Anusha mentioned still there is no MOU for Himawari satellite.
- Secretary concerned about possibility to get satellite images for public people. Then Mr. Wijemmanage explained the difference between satellite image and satellite data. (Satellite image can be taken by any public person which can't be analyzed and Satellite data which is receiving through satellite data receiving system, could be analyzed based on temperature data etc.)
- Secretary stated that Data dissemination part is most important.

n.

- DQM mentioned that they are using Norwegian software to downsize the data which they got through WRF. Mr. Akatsu mentioned: that JMA provides those data free of charge and Mr. Malith stated that JMA data has been limited to some areas and JMA grid size is 20 KM while Norwegian gird size is SKM. Using the Norwegian software they were able to take more accurate data due to grid size is smaller.
- Secretary mentioned that media organizations must have good knowledge to present meteorological forecast to public due to awareness through the media organizations take part important role in dissemination.
- Mr. Wijemannage proposed to telecast daily weather forecast each & every channel during specific time period. So that people will not miss it as whatever the channel they are watching same time every channel telecast the weather forecast. Secretary did not much agree with that idea.
- Mr. Nuwan proposed to introduce pop-up system with different color codes and color codes will be decided based on the condition of the weather (serious/not serious).
- DDM stated that VAISALA introduced them very accurate software for lightning detection which they can use free of charge for 2 years on period. Dr. Ishihara gave some information on the world wide lightning detection system provided from a NPO group.